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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

CASE MANAGEMENT TRACK DESIGNATION FORM
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In accordance w1th the Civil Justice Expense and Delay Reduction Plan of this court, counsel for
plaintiff shall complete a Case Management Track Designation Form in all ¢ivil cases at the time of
filing the complaint and serve a copy on all defendants. (See § 1:03 of the plan set forth on the reverse
side of this form.) In the event that a defendant does not agree with the plaintiff regarding said
designation, that defendant shall, with its first appearance, submit to the clerk of court and serve on
the plaintiff and all other parties, a Case Management Track Designation Form specifying the track
to which that defendant believes the case should be assigned.

NO.

SELECT ONE OF THE FOLLOWING CASE MANAGEMENT TRACKS:
(a) Habeas Corpus — Cases brought under 28 U.S.C. § 2241 through § 2255. ()

(b) Social Security — Cases requesting review of a decision of the Secretary of Health
and Human Services denying plaintiff Social Security Benefits. ()

(c¢) Arbitration — Cases required to be designated for arbitration under Local Civil Rule 53.2. ()

(d) Asbestos — Cases involving claims for personal injury or property damage from
exposure to asbestos. ()

(e) Special Management — Cases that do not fall into tracks (a) through (d) that are
commonly referred to as complex and that need special or intense management by
the court. (See reverse side of this form for a detailed explanation of special
management cases.)

(f) Standard Management — Cases that do not fall into any one of the other tracks. (V)/
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United States District Court
Eastern Digtriet Of Pennsylvania
United States Courthouss
Independence Mall West

601 Market Straet :
Philadelphis, PA 19106-1797

Chambers of Clerk's Office
James T. Giles Room 2609
Chiaf Judge ‘ Telephone
(215)387-7704

Michae! E. Kyrz
Clark of Court

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO CONSENT TQ EXERCISE OF JURISDICTION
BY A UNITED STATES MAGISTRATE JUDGE

The district judges of this Caurt have found that the United States magistrate judges are
experienced judicial officers who have regularly hancled the disposition of hundreds of civil cases
through motions and trials and are fully qualified to try any civil cases arising before thig Court.

Tn gecordence with the provisions of 28 U.5.C. §636(c), you are hereby notifled that pursuant
to Locel Rules 72.1(h), the United States ragistrate judpes of this distriet, in addition 1o their other
duties, may, upon the consent of all the parties in a civil case, conduct any or all proceedings in a civil
case, including a jury or non-jury trial, and order the entry of a final judgement. Appropriate consent
forms for this purpose are availabls from the clerk of court.

Your decision to consent, or not to consent, to the referral of your case to a United States
magistrate judge for disposition is entirely voluntary and should be sommunicated solely to the olerk of
the district eourt, Only if all the parties in the case consent to the reference to & magistiate judge will
either the judge or magistrate judge be informed of your decision. Ifyou decide to consent, _your case

will receive g date certain for trial. :

No action eligible for arbitration will be referred by aonsent of the parties until the arbitration
hag been concluded and trail de novo demeanded pursuant to Local Rules 532, Paragraph 7. The Court
may, for good cause shown, or on its own motion, or under extrsordinary circumstances shown by any
party, vacate a refarence of a civil matter to a magistrate judge.

Whett & cade iz referred to a magi strate judge for all further proceedings, inciuding the entry of
final judgement, the final judgement shall be appealed directly to the Court of Appeals for the Third
Cireuit in the same manner as-an appeal from any other judgement of 8 distriot court.

Nathing herein shail be construed to be a limitation of any party’s right to sesk review by the
Supreme Court of the United States,

JAMES T, GILES
CHIEF JUDGE

MICHAEL E, KUNZ
CLERK OF COURT

w
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HARDWICK COLLIER, LLC
BY: VIRGINIA HARDWICK, ESQ. (Attorney 1.D. No. 202649)
JOYCE L. COLLIER, ESQ. (Attorney L.D. No. 54324)
TIFFANIE C. BENFER, ESQ. (Attorney LD. No. 202096)
179 North Broad Street '
Doylestown, PA. 18901 Attorneys for Plaintiff

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

TALBOT (TODD) SMITH : No.
Plaintiff, .
V.
UNILIFE CORPORATION,

UNILIFE MEDICAL SOLUTIONS, INC,,
ALAN SHORTALL, and RAMIN MOJDEH

Defendants.

COMPLAINT

I INTRODUCTION AND NATURE OF CLAIMS

L. Plaintiff Talbot (Todd) Smith (*“Smith” or “Plaintiff™) by his attorneys,
Hardwick Collier LLC, brings this action for equitable, monetary, and other relief to
redress intentional violations by defendants Unilife Corporation and Unilife Medical
Solutions, Inc. (collectively, “Unilife”), and Unilife executives, Alan Shortall (*Shortall”)
and Ramin Mojdeh (“Mojdeh”) pursuant to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. §
1514A; the Dodd-I'rank Wall Street Reform & Consumer Protection Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78u
— 6; and related state common law claims.

2. This action arises out of defendants’ discriminatory and retaliatory

termination of plaintiff Smith because of his opposition to and protected disclosures
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relating to sharcholder fraud and Unilife’s failure to comply with the requirements of the
Food and Drug Administration (“FDA™),

IL JURISDICTION AND VENUE

3. This action is‘ brought pursuant to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18
U.S.C. § 1514A (“Sarbanes-Oxley” or “SOX”).

4, A Sarbanes-Oxley Complaint was filed and received by the U.S.
Department of Labor/OSHA on or about November 15, 2012,

5. The Secretary of Labor did not make a final determination in this matter
after 180 days of a timely filed Complaint pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1541A(b)(1)(B),
although sufficient prima facie evidence was found to begin an investigation,

6. On August 12, 2013, Plaintiff filed a notice of his intention to file a
complaint. Accordingly, under the provisions of 29 C.F.R. 1980.114, Smith now has the
right to bring this claim in federal court. |

7. This action is also brought pursuant to the Dodd-Frank Wall Stree;t Reform
& Consumer Protection Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78u— 6 (“Dodd-Frank™).

8. This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331 since this matter is
founded on the existence of a federal question.

9. This Court also has pendent jurisdiction over related state law claims under
28 U.S.C. § 1367(a).

10.  Venue is proper in this District pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b) because a
substantial part of the events or omissions giving rise to the claims occurred in this
district. Venue is also proper in this District pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b), (¢) and (d)

because one or more defendants is a resident of this District.
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HI. PARTIES

11.  Plaintiff, Talbot (“Todd”) Smith (“Plaintiff or “Smith™) is an adult who
currently resides at 54 Peoples Line Road, Somerset, New Jersey. Smith was hired by
Unilife in September 2011 as Vice President, Integrated Supply Chain, and was thus an
employee of Unilife.

12.  Smith is a 1987 graduate of Stanford University with a B.S. in Industrial
Engineering and a 1988 graduate with an M.S. degree in Operations Research,

13.  Smith is highly respected in his field, with substantial experience in supply
chain consulting, inventory management, and supply chain management.

14. Smith’s educational and professional background affords him the
opportunity to reasonably believe, both subjectively and objectively, what constitutes mail
fraud, wire fraud, bank fraud, securities fraud, fraud against shareholders and/or SEC rules
and regulation violations.

15. During the time of Smith’s employment, he never received a negative
performance evaluation, or any indication that there was any performance-based rationale
for the termination of his employment.

16.  Smith’s employment was terminated in August 2012, after he made
whistleblowing complaints about violations of the law that had occurred or were about to
occur, and after he provided information relating to a violation of the securities laws to the
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”).

17. Smith was discharged from his employment because he engaged in lawful

acts that were protected by SOX.



Case 2:13-cv-05101-MMB Document 1 Filed 08/30/13 Page 9 of 141

18.  Defendants retaliated against Smith in contravention of SOX and in
contravention of Dodd-Frank after he made disclosures that were required or protected
under SOX.

19.  Defendant Unilife Corporation is corporation organized under the laws of
Delaware.

20.  Defendant Unilife Medical Solutions, Inc. is the operating division of
Unilife Corporation.

21.  Unilife is a company covered by Section 806 of SOX having a class of
securities registered under Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act and/or required to
file reports under Section 15(d) of that Act.

22, Unilife is a public traded company (NASDAQ:UNIS/ASX:UNS) and
describes itself as a “U.S.-based developer, manufacturer and supplier of advanced drug
delivery systems . ...”

23, Unilife’s products include the Unifill and Unitract product lines of safety
{retractable) syringes.

24. Unilife’s corporate headquarters and principal place of business is located
at 250 Cross Farm Lane, York, Pennsylvania 17406. Unilife also maintains an office at
150 N. Radnor Chester Road, Strafford, Pennsylvania 19087.

25.  In October 2009, Unilife accepted a $5.45 million offer of assistance from
the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

26.  Defendant Alan Shortall (“Shortall”) is the founder and Chief Executive

Officer of Unilife.



Case 2:13-cv-05101-MMB Document 1 Filed 08/30/13 Page 10 of 141

27.  Ramin Mojdeh (“Mojdeh”) has been the Chief Operating Officer of Unilife
since early 2011. Mojdeh was Smith’s direct supervisor.

28.  The individual defendants were officers and/or employees of Unilife.

29,  The individual defendants had supervisory authority over Smith, and/or had
the authority to investigate, discover, or terminate misconduct.

Iv. STATEMENT OF FACTS

30. ‘Unilife extended an employment offer to Smith in August 2011 after an
intérview process that began in July 2011.

31,  Smith was induced to accept employment at Unilife by false
representations of Chief Executive Officer Alan Shortall and others — and by press
releases issued in July 2011 — that the Unifill prodﬁct had been validated as required by
FDA regulations and that commercial shipments had been made to Sanofi, and that with
these aqcomplishments the company was poised for growth.

32.  Smith’s employment at Unilife began on September 19, 2011.

33.  The terms of Unilife’s employment of Smith included an annual salary of
$230,000; a $10,000 sign on bonus; an annual 30% incentive bonus; stock options; and a
restricted stock grant.

A, July 2011 Press Releases

34, The false or misleading representations that induced Smith to accept
employment had been previously made in press releases to sharéhoiders on July 13 and
July 19, 2011.

35, On July 13, 2011, Unilife issued a press release to shareholders. Unilife

stated that “it has commenced the initial supply of validated product of the Unifill®
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syringe to Sanofi” and “Unilife is now in a position to also commence initial sales of the
Unifill syringe to other pharmaceutical companies.” (Exhibit A)

36, On July 19, 2011, Unilife issued a press release stating that Unilife “today
announced it has commenced the initial sale of the Unifill® ready-to-fill syringe to a U.S.-
based global pharmaceutical company.” (Exhibit B)

37.  Notwithstanding its statements to investors that it was supplying
“validated” product in July 201 i, the validation activities and the associated
documentation required by the Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) were not
completed and signed off until March 30, 2012.

38.  The FDA validation process is a three-part process including (a) proving
the manufacturing line can produce the product to specifications; (b) preparing design
documentation; and (c) validating the raw materials provided by suppliers.

39.  Despite the claims made in the July 2011 press releases, Sniith learned after
he commenced employment that the company was not supplying “validated” product in
July 2011 as claimed in the press releases. When Smith commenced employment, none of
the required documentation was available and raw materials had not been validated by the
supplier.

40.  After he began employment with Unilife, Smith reached the reasonable
belief that the July 13 and July 19, 2011 press releases were false and/or misleading.

41, It Umlife was providing product to customers, as Unilife stated in the July
press releases, it was providing the product before it was validated (thus violating FDA

regulations). Alternatively, if Unilife was providing only samples, it was not making
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commercial sales as indicated in its July 2011 press releases. In either case the press
releases were false and/or misleading.

42.  The false reports made by Unilife in the July 2011 press releases have not
been corrected.

43.  The July 2011 press releases have been reported as accurate by Unilife
through the U.S. Mail and by wire communications such as the Internet, thus constituting
mail and wire fraud,

B. Unilife’s FY 2011 SEC 10-K

44.  Unilife made similar false or misleading claims concerning the shipment of
validated and/or commercial product in its Fiscal Year 2011 SEC 10-K filing, which was
published in September 2011. (Exhibit C)

45.  The statements in the 10-K were false or misleading because no sales
revenue had been collected from “commercial sales” of the Unifill product.

46.  After beginning employment, Smith also learned that, contrary to claims
made in the 2011 SEC 10-K filing, the Unifill production line was only partially installed.

47. The Unifill production line was to consist of four large production
machines and numerous feeder machines. Only two of the production machines were
installed when Smith began work on September 19, 2011; the other two machines were
still in Denver, Colorado, and had not yet undergone the required “factory acceptance test”
(which is usually required before equipment is shipped) or the “site acceptance test,”

(which is required once the equipment is instalied).
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48. The false reports made by Unilife in the 2011 SEC 10-K filing have not
been corrected and have been reported as accurate by Unilife through the U.S. Mail and by
wire communications such as the Internet, thus constituting mail and wire fraud.

C. Unilife’s Failure to Comply with FDA Requirements and Smith’s
Complaints About that Failure

49,  Unilife was required to meet validation standards established by the FbA.

50.  If Unilife failed to meet FDA regulatory requirements, that failure would
harm Unilife’s business, and that failure would be significant information for Unilife
shareholders.

51, The importance of FDA regulatory requirements was acknowledged by
Unilife in its 2011 10-K. Exhibit C at 29 - 31.

52.  The three components of FDA validation required for the Unifill product
were not completed until about the end of March 2012, despite the fact that Unilife had
represented to shareholders since July 2011 that it was shipping validated product.

53. During the time that Smith and others at Unilife were working on meeting
the FDA validation requirements, Mojdeh (Smith’s supervisor) on more than one occasion
expressed frustration to Smith that Smith was following the rules and procedures
established by the FDA too closely, and that the careful following of the FDA rules and
procedures was causing production delays.

54.  During the course of his employment, Smith became highly concerned with
Unilife’s failure to comply with FDA requirements.

55, Smith veiced these concerns to Mojdeh, his supervisor.

56. Smith also voiced these concerns to Melissa Dehass (Director, Regulatory)

and Mark Tampietro (VP Quality Control and Regulatory).



Case 2:13-cv-05101-MMB Document 1 Filed 08/30/13 Page 14 of 141

57.  lampietro told Shortall (CEO) about the concerns voiced by Smith.

58. Smith refused to sign documentation relating to the Unifill validation,
including the Device Master Record (DMR), a record that is required by the FDA.

59, Smith’s refusal to sign was based on a reasonable belief that documents
and test results had been falsified to complete the validation.

60, Smith reasonably believed that signing the documentation as requested
would have violated the law.

61.  In fact, signing the documentation would have been a violation of the law,

62.  Smith refused to violate the law.

63. Mojdeh was angry with Smith for his refusal to sign the IF'DA
documentation.

64.  Mojdeh signed the FDA documentation in Smith’s place.

65. In April 2012, two Corrective Actions/Preventive Actions (“CAPA’s”)
were opened at Smith’s request because of non-conformances Smith identified.

66.  CAPA is a critical process for addressing non-conformances and failure to
open a CAPA when there has been a non-conformance would be a violation of FDA
requirements.

67.  Specifically, in one instance, unreleased product was shipped t§ an external
laboratory for testing without following proper procedure or keeping required records.

68.  In another instance, product from the same lot had been sterilized and then

used in validation testing without following procedure or keeping records.
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69.  The fact that Smith had two CAPA’s opened was communicated to Ann
Otzenberger (Quality Assurance Manager), Otzenberger communicated this to Iampietro,
who communicated it to Shortall.

70.  Smith opened an additional CAPA when Mojdeh and Jyoti Gupta entered
the production area and violated numerous clean room procedure.

71.  Mojdeh expressed his displeasure to Smith about the CAPA arising from
the violation of ¢lean room procedures.

72.  In another example of violation or potential violation of FDA regulatory
requirements, the Material Specification for the Unifill device was changed in order to
achieve a passing result after the first process qualification (PQ) run failed in February
2012.

73. Smith voiced objections to Mojdeh and Gupta about this change, telling
them that it could be a violation of FDA régulatory requirements.

74.  Mojdeh attempted to transfer a key quality control process to Gupta, with
the stated objective that quality issues would no longer be reported through the CAPA
process.

75.  The transfer of the process to Gupta and the failure to report quality issues
would be reasonably likely to result in a violation of FDA rules and regulations.

76. Smith reasonably believed that the transfer of the process to Gupta to avoid
quality control reports was likely to result in a violation of FDA rules and regulations.

77.  Smith reported his concern about this likely violation of FDA rules and
regulations to Dehass. Dechass brought the issue to lampietro. Iampietro informed

Shortall.
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78.  Mojdeh then complained to Smith that Smith had “stirred up trouble” by
raising this issue.

79.  In about late May 2012, Smith emailed Mojdeh and Gupta to alert them to
a violation of FDA guidance for testing. Smith advised them that the suggested procedL}re
would be likely to raise concerns with customers and regulatory body auditors, and that
there was a high risk that the suggested procedure would not have reproducible results.

80.  The following day, Mojdeh told Smith to come to his office. Mojdeh
instructed Smith that he should not put any concerns into emails because they could be
used against the company in future legal action.

D. Unilife Actions to Mislead Investors about Customer Demand and
Manufacturing Capacity; Smith’s Complaints About those Actions

81.  Unilife also tock actions to mislead investors about its customer demand
and manufacturing capacity.

82. To this end, Mojdeh directed Smith to have his team purchase 1,000,000
Unifill components per month in spite of the fact that there was no customer demand or
manufacturing capacity to justify this level of purchasing.

83.  Mojdeh told Smith that the objective of the purchases was to make
suppliers believe that Unilife was manufacturing at this volume, with the hope that the
information would leak to financial markets.

84.  Smith repeatedly objected to the inflated purchasing objectives, knowing
that this raction would leave.investors with the impression that Unilife was producing
product when it was not. Smith also objected to the inflated purchasing because it wasted

the company’s available cash.
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85.  Another action that Unilife took to mislead investors was to run fake
production when investors or customers were visiting the faeility.

86.  On more than one occasion, scrap was run through the machines to make it
appear that Unilife was making product when it was not. Product was placed on skids by
the warehouse doors to give the false appearance that product was being packaged and
sent to customers when it was not.

E. Other Material Information Withheld from Investors

87. On or abo‘ut February 1, 2012, Smith attended a meeting with Shortall
(CEO), Jack Kelly (VP, Business Development), Michael Rattigan (VP, Business
Development), and Dennis Piers (VP, Finance).

88, At that meeting, Smith reported that an analysis by Manufacturing stated
that the likely unit cost for Unifill at an annual volume of 50 million units was about 90
cents. |

89.  Atthat time, the expected pricing of the Unifill product to Sanofi was about
50 to 55 cents per unit.

90.  The participants in the meeting were told that Shortall expected the cost to
be approximately 40 cents per unit. The meeting participants were instructed by CEO
Shortall to suppress the results of the analyﬁis that projected a cost of 90 cents per unit,

91. Subsequently, Smith met with Gupta to review a Unifill costing model that
indicated a cost of approximately 53 cents per unit. That costing model failed to account
for production yields and other factors that would add about 10% to the number. This
analysis, therefore, also indicated that Unifill would not be profitable at the price that

Sanofi was expected to be willing to pay.
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92,  Smith told Mojdeh about his concerns.

93.  Mojdeh directed that Finance exclude certain product overhead expenses to
create the appearance of a more favorable gross margin.

94, Smith was concerned that Mojdeh’s suggestioﬁ could be deemed
shareholder fraud. He questioned R. Richard Wieland (CFO) and Dennis Piers (Vice
President, Finance) about whether Mojdeh’s directions were permissible.

95.  Later, Shortall made comments that were posted on the Yahoo! Finance
message board on July 10™, 2012 indicating that Unitract was profitable with a 20% gross
margin, when Unilife was in fact losing approximately $1 per unit.

F. Smith Reports Concerns About Press Releases and 10K

96.  Unilife’s senior management was aware of or complicit in the violations
and potential violations of FDA regulatory requirements, as alleged in Section C above.

97.  Nevertheless, Unilife did not disclose the violations or potential violations
of FDA regulatory requirements to its sharcholders.

98. In fact, in the 2011 SEC 10-K filing, Unilife falsely communicated to
investors that Unilife had a compliant quality system. (Exh. C at 5, 16). The importance
of FDA compliance is recognized by Unilife in the 2011 SEC 10-K. (Exh. C at 29 —31).

99.  The investor communications in the 2011 SEC 10-K concerning
compliance are directly contradicted by the issues raised by Smith concerning FDA
compliance and quality assurance.

100. Management commentary on Unilife’s financial statements, the statements
made in press releases, and other statements made to investors were not discussed in the

quarterly management meeting attended by Smith.
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101.  Smith reported or discussed his concerns about the statements in the press
releases and 10-K to Mojdeh, who had supervisory authority over Smith.

102.  Smith also reported Of discussed his concerns about the statements in the
press releases and 10-K to Mark .Iampietro (Vice President of Quality Control and
Regulatory) and Melissa Dehass (Director, Regulatory), both of whom had authority to
investigate, discover, or terminate misconduct.

103. In conversations with lampietro in early 2012, Smith fold Iampietro about
his concerns that the press releases were not accurate. Smith told lampietro that Smith
believed those press releases were misrepresentations to the investor community.

104. Iampietro took the position that the press releases were accurate because
the product shipped were “engineering samples.”

105.  Smith explained to Tampietro that if the product shipped were “engineering

b

samples,” then it could not be “commercial sales,” Moreover, lampietro’s argumenf did
not address the misstatement in the press release concerning the sale of “validated
product.”

106. The complaints that Smith voiced about false or misleading statements in
the July 2011 press releases and in the 2011 SEC 10-K were complaints about violations
of the law concerning mail fraud, wire fraud, and/or violations of rules or regulations of
the Securities and Exchange Commission or federal laws concerning fraud against
shareholders.

107. Even if Smith was mistaken in his belief that the complaints referenced in

the paragraph above were about violations of the law, Smith had a reasonable belief that

there had been a legal violation.
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G. Smith Complains on Ethics Hotline

108. During the spring of 2012, Smith was aware that there would be a
reduction in the manufacturing workforce because of a lack of customer demand for
Unilife products.

109.  On June 14 and 15, 2012, numerous Unilife employees were fired as a
result of a reduction in force (“RIF™).

110.  Smith observed that many of those chosen for termination were employees
who had complained about or refused to participate in unlawful activities.

111.  On June 14, Smith was told to take the rest of the week off, and was told
that his position would be changing. Smith was not told that he would be terminated.

112.  OnJune 19, 2012, Smith made an anonymous report of numerous concerns
to the Unilife Board of Directors, using the company’s ethics reporting website. (Exhibit
D). That ethics report included information about numerous activities that Smith
reasonably believed constituted a violation of federal law relating to fraud against
sharcholders, including:

a. Stock fraud, based on false statements in press releases;

b. Stock fraud and/or misuse of company resources, based on unnecessary
purchases made with the intention of manipulating ﬁnaﬁcial markets;

¢. Suppression of negative information, based on Shortall’s direction to
employees to suppress information that Untfill would not be profitable or
would barely be so, and based on Unilife’s failure to disclose design and

manufacturing issues;
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d. Compromise of the Quality System, based on numerous violations with
respect to FDA regulation and product quality in general, all of which
Smith reasonably believed should be reported to shareholders under the
law; and

¢. Retaliation against Whistleblowers, based on the selection of individuals
for the reduction in force who had expressed reservations about the other
violations.

113.  That ethics report also raised concerns about the treatment of Massoud
Samandi (VP, Research and Development), whose employment had been terminated on
June 14. |

114,  When Smith made the ethics complaint on June 19, he believed he was an
employee of Unilife, and he was in fact an employee of Unilife.

115,  When Smith made the ethics complaint on June 19, he was not aware that
his employment would be terminated.

116. He made the ethics complaint because the events of the week of June 14
were so troubling to him that he could not keep silent any longer.

[17. Smith also made the ethics complaint because he came to believe that it
would not be effective to continue to complain to Unilife management, because the issues
raised in the ethics complaint were well known to upper management.

118. The ethics website assured employees that reports naming sénior
management would be kept confidential and would not be provided to the managers
named until after the investigation was complete.

119. However, the ethics report was not kept confidential,

16
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120.  When Smith returned to the office on June 21, Mojdeh had a copy of the
ethics report.

121.  Mojdeh told Smith that Mojdeh believed that Smith was the author of the
ethics complaint. He later told Smith that Shortall also believed that Smith was the author.

122,  Mojdeh repeatedly asked Smith about the complaint saying things along
the lines of, “It must have been you who did this,” and “you were the only one that had
this information.”

123.  Smith did not confirm or deny to Mojdeh that he was the author of the
ethics complaint.

124.  Mojdeh told Smith on June 21 that the Board had already “dismissed” the
June 19 ethics complaint, but that Mojdeh would be providing documentation to the Board
so they could close it out.

125. Smith was never interviewed about the ethics complaint.

126. It is believed and therefore averred that the Unilife Board made no
investigation of the ethics complaint, oﬂler than the accusations of Mojdeh to Smith.

127. It is believed and therefore averred that Unilife’s counsel was not informed
of the ethilcs complaint.

H. Despite Qutstanding Performance, Unilife Retaliates Against Smith

128. Smith’s job performance was excellent. He received performance bonuses
in February and March of 2012.
129.  Smith was never told of any respects in which his job performance was not

satisfactory.
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130.  Smith was asked to participate in the planning of the June 2012 reduction
in force.

131.  On June 13, after a discussion with Iampietro, Smith sent an email to a
number of managers concerning a fact-finding meeting to investigate a problem with the
Unitract plunger.

132.  That email concerned a significant problem that affected ten batches of
assembled syringes, including one that was in distribution.

133, Before the meeting, Mojdeh scolded Smith for putting a quality concem
into an email.

134. During the meeting, the participants conciuded that there was a quality
issue and the need for a potential product recall.

135. In the midst of the meeting. on June 13, Smith was called to Mojdeh’s
office and told that he would be moved to a different job. )

136. In the following days, Smith wrote the ethics report and filed it on June 19
as alleged in Section G above,

137.  On June 21, Smith returned to the office. As alleged in Section G above,
i\:dojdeh accused Smith of being the author of the ethics complaint.

138. On Jun;‘ 21, Smith was informed that he would be moved to a different
office, away from the people with whom he had previously worked.

139, Smith was given the title Vice President of Strategic Planning, but was

given no duties other than the preparation of a “strategic plan” for manufacturing to

identify steps needed to scale up production.
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140.  During the days following June 21, Mojdeh told Smith that Smith was not
permitted to talk to other employees or to walk through the manufacturing areas that
Smith had previously managed. These walkthroughs of the manufacturing areas would
also be required to allow Smith to complete his new job assignments.

141. Mojdeh told other employees that they were not to speak to Smith.

142,  Unilife and Mojdeh took these steps to isolate Smith to retaliate against
him for filing the ethics complaint.

I. Smith Reports to SEC

143.  On or about July 16, 2012, Smith provided information relating to Unilife’s
violation of the securities law to the SEC in a manner established by the SEC.
144.  On or about August 6, 2012, Smith was interviewed by the SEC.

J. Unilife further Retaliates Against Smith and Terminates His
Employment.

145, On July 26, 2012, Mojdeh told Smith that Unilife would not have a role for
Smith in the company after all.

146.  Smith began to interview for other positions.

147. Mojdeh told Smith on August 14, 2012 that Smith’s employment would be
terminated effective August 31, 2012,

148, Smith’s employment was terminated because of his numerous complaints
and reports, including complaints and reports about Unilife’s violations of the law and of
FDA rules and regulations; complaints and reports about sharcholder fraud; and Smith’s
ethics report to the Unilife Board of Directors.

149.  After Unilife learned of Smith’s whistleblowing claims against it, Unilife

_continued to retaliate against Smith,
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150.  Unilife claimed for the first time that Smith’s performance was terminated
for “performance” reasons, thus damaging Smith’s reputation.

151.  Unilife also retaliated against Smith by refusing to pay severance

152, Unilife also retaliated against Smith by not properly processing Smith’s
COBRA paperwork.

153.  Unilife, through its counsel, also made a retaliatory threat to Smith, through
Smith’s counsel, threatening that Unilife or its key employees would sue Smith for
defamation unless Smith walked away from his whistleblowing claims.

COUNT 1
PLAINTIFE’S CLAIM UNDER SARBANES-OXLEY

18 U.S.C. § 1514A
AGAINST ALL DEFENDANTS

154, Plaintiff incorporates by reference the preceding paragraphs of this
Complaint.

155. At all times relevant hereto, Smith was an employee of Unilife.

156, Unilife and the individually named officers and employees of Unilife
demoted, suspended, threatened, harassed, discharged, and otherwise discriminated
against Smith because Smith took action protected by SOX.

157. Smith provided information concerming conduct which Smith reasonably
believed to coﬁstitute a violation of section 1341, 1343, 1344, or 1348, any rule or
regulation of the Securities and Exchange Commission, or any provision of Federal law

relating to fraud against shareholders.
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158. Smith provided the aforementioned information to persons with
supervisory authority over Smith and/or persons working for Unilife who had the
authority to investigate, discover, or terminate misconduct.

159.  Unilife is also vicariously liable for the actions of its employees and agents
as described above.

160. Defendants terminated Smith’s employment and took other discriminatory
and retaliatory actions against Smith, motivated in whole or in part by Smith’s reports,
which were protected by SOX.

161. Because of defendants’ actions, Smith suffered damages including loss of
income including annual bonus; loss of benefits including 401k, pension, contributions to
Social Security and health insurance; loss of restricted stock; compensatory damages;
damage to reputation; damage to his career; consequential damages; litigation costs;
expert witness fees; aﬁd reasbnable attorneys’ fees.

WHEREFORE, plaintiff, Talbott (Todd) Smith, respectfully requests judgment in
his favor and against defendants in an amount exceeding One Hundred and Fifty
Thousand Dollars ($150,000) for compensatory and consequential damages, plus costs of
this action, reinstatement, reimbursement of back pay with interest, front pay, attorneys’
fees, and such other relief as the Court may deem just, proper and appropriate in the

circumstances of this case.
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COUNT 11

PLAINTIFF’S CLAIM UNDER DODD-FRANK
15US.C.§78u—6
AGAINST ALL DEFENDANTS

| 162. Plaintiff incorporates by reference the préceding paragraphs of this
Complaint.

16-3. By informing Unilife Management, the Unilife Board of Directors, and the
SEC of Unlife’s violations of law, Plaintiff engaged in activity protected under the Dodd-
Frank.

164. Defendants were aware of Smith’s protected activity in making statements
and reports to Unilife Management and the Unilife Board of Directors.

165. After Smith’s protected activities, Defendants terminated Smith’s
employment and took other discriminatdry and retaliatory actions against Smith,
motivated in whole or in part by Smith’s protected activities.

166. Because of defendants’ actions, Smith suffered damages including loss of
mcome including annual bonus; loss of benefits including 401k, pension, contributions to
Social Security and health ingurance; loss of restricted stock; compensatory damages;
damage to reputation; damage to his career; consequential damages; litigation costs;
expert witness fees; and reasonable attorneys’ fees.

WHEREFORE, plaintiff, Talbot (Todd) Smith, respectfully requests judgment in
his favor and against defendants in an amount exceeding One Hundred and Fifty
Thousand Dollars ($150,000) for compensatory, and consequential damages, costs of this

action, reinstatement, double back pay with interest, front pay, attorneys’ fees, and such
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other relief as the Court may deem just, proper and appropriate in the circumstances of
this case.
COUNT III
PLAINTIFF’S COMMON LAW CLAIM

WRONGFUL TERMINATION
AGAINST DEFENDANT UNILIFE (CORPORATE DEFENDANTS)

167. Plaintiff incorporates by reference the preceding paragraphs of this
Complaint.

168.  Smith was required by law to make the reports detailed above of actions by
Unilife that violated the law or the regulations and rules of the FDA.

169.  As detailed above, Smith refused to participate in or cooperate with actions
that would violate Smith’s or Unilife’s responsibilities under the law.

170,  As detailed above, Smith refused to engage in illegal activity.

171. Defendant Unilife terminated Smith’s employment aﬁd took other
retaliatory action against Smith because of Smith’s refusal to violate the law and/or
because Smith was complying Witﬁ a legally imposed duty.

172. Itis a violation of Pennsylvania public policy to terminate the employment
of an employee because of that employee’s refusal to violate the law.

173. Pennsylvania also has a public policy interest in the actions of Unilife
because Unilife accepted a $5.45 million offer of assistance from the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania.

174,  Unilife’s discriminatory and retaliatory actions toward Smith constitute

wrongful discharge, in violation of Pennsylvania common law.
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WHEREFORE, plaintiff, Talbot (Todd) Smith, respectfully requests judgment in
his favor and against defendants in an amount exceeding One Hundred and Fifty
Thousand Dollars ($150,000) for compensatory, consequential, and punitive damages,
plus costs of this action, reimbursement of back pay with interest, front pay, and such
other relief as the Court may deem just, proper and appropriate in the circumstances of

this case.

HARDWICK COLLIER, LLC

E

BY: / (res, £ (&—L
Virginig L. Hardwick, Esquire
Attorneys for Plaintiff

Dated: August 30, 2013
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« Previous Relgase | Next Release »

July 13, 2011

Unilife Commences Initial Supply of the Unifill® Syringe to Sanofi

YORK, Fa., July 13, 2011 /PRNewswira/ -~ Unilife Corporation ("Unilite" or the "Company") (NASDAQ: UNIS; ASX: UNS) today announced it has cammancad tha initial
supply of validated product of the Unifill® syringe lo Sanofl, as per the terms of the Industrialization agreement batween both partes.

Since signing the Exalusive Agresment in July 2008, Sanofi has paid Unilife a total of approximately $40 million, comprising a $46 miilion {euro 10 million) fee in
exchange for the exclusive right to negatiate the purchase of the Unifill syringe, and 1 halp fund the Industrialization Program for the device up to & maximurn of $24

million {euro 17 milflan). Sanofi has secured exclusivity for the Unifill syringe within the full therapautic classes of antithrombotic agants and vaceines, plus an additional
four smaller sub-groups, until Juna 30, 2014,

Unilife Is now in & position to also commencs initial sales of the Unifill syringe to other pharmaceutical companies, Upon the receipt of the Unifill syringe, these
pharmacautical customers will typically conduct drug compatibility and stabiiity studies that will test the device In combination with their iriectabla drugs. The resulting
data is then filed as the last step in completing the requlatory process for the drug-device combination product.

Mr. Adan Shortall, CEQ of Unllifs, sald, "The start of iniifal sales of the Unifill syringe is arguably the most significant achievement in our company's history. We vary
much appreclate the support of Sanafi sincs 2003, whan they had the initiative and vision {o approach us to davelop a new generation of prefilled syringes that can help
to improve patient cara, while also enhancing and saving the lives of healthcare warkers,

"The Unifill syringe Is generating strong interest from &n incraasing number of pharmaceutical companies for use it therapeutic classes outside of thosa retained by
Sanafi. These pharmacautical companies recognize the significant patential of the Unifill syringa to help generate poweriul brand differentlation for their injectable drugs
within compstitive therapautic drug classes.” ’

Dr. Ramin Mejdeh, GCO of Unilifs, said, "Tha intagration of safety feailres within the glass barrel of a prefilled syringe was a chailenge that many within the device and
pharmaceutical industries thought to be impessible. Yet, through our operational expertise, core technology platform and innovative spirt, we have successfully
overcoms a number of technical obstacles to commercialize a game-changing device that is now poised fo revolutionize the $2.7 biliion market for prefilled syringes.

"The Unifill syringe sits at the leading edge of a rich and diverse platform of advancad drug delivery devices that we are now developing in collaboration with & number
of pharmaceutical parners. Having recognized our capacity for device Innovaticn with the Unifill syringe, thesa top tier pharmaceutical companies ars salecting Unllife
as thair pariner to devalop other inncvative, differentiated and proprietary devicas that are customized to addrass the specific and unmet needs of their biclogical drugs.
These partnerships witf enable us to build upon the success of the Unffill syringe and expand our harizans across several additionat high-value market sectors for
injectable drug delivery devices."

Ahout Unilife Corporation

Unilifa Corparation {(NASDAQ: UNIS / ASX: UNS) is a U.S. based devalopar, manufacturer and suppiler of advanced drug delivery sysiems with state-of-tha-an faciiities
in Pgnnsylvania. Established In 2002, Unilife warks with pharmaceutical and hictechnolegy companias seeking innovative devices for use with their parenteral drugs and
vaccines. Unllife has develeped a broad, differentiated propriatary portfolio of te own injactable drug defivery products, including the Unifil® and Unitract® product lines
of safety syringes with automatic, operatar controlled needle retraction. Unifiil represents the world's first prefiled syringe technalogy integrating safety within the primary
drug container. The products are ideally pasitioned to help pharmaceutical companiss maximize the Iifacycle of their injectable drugs and enhance patient care. Unifil
syringes, together wilh ofher devices that are part of the Unilife technology platform, can elther be supplied to pharmaceutical customers rsady for use, or customized to
address the specific requirements of targeted novel drugs.

Fer mare information on Unilife, please visit www. unilife.com,

This press release cantains forward-looking statemants. Al statemants that address operating performance, events ar developments that we expect or anticipate will
oceur In the futtre are forward-locking statements. These forward-looking statements are based on management's beliefs and assumptions and an information currenily
available ta our managsment. Our management believes that these forward-loaking statements are reasonabie as and when made. Hawever, you should rot place
undug reliance on any such forward-locking statements because such statements speak only as of the date when made. We do not undertake any obiigation to publicly
update or revies any forward-looking statements, whather as a rasult of new infarmation, future events or otherwise, except as raquired by law, In addition, forward-
faaking statemants are subject ko certain risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results, events and developments ta differ materially from cur historical
experence and our present expectations or projections. These risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, thase described in "ltem 1A, Risk Factors” and
alsewhere in our Annual Repert on Form 10-K and thase describsd from time to time in other reports which we file with the Securities and Exchange Commission,

- General: UNIS-G - At O LTI
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EXHIBIT B



« Pravious Release | Next Release »

July 18, 2011

Unilife Starts Unifill Syringe Sales to Another Pharmaceutical Customer

YORK, Pa., July 18, 2011 /PRNewswlre/ - Unilife Corporation ("Unilife” or the "Company”) {NASDAQ: UNIS; ASX: UNS) taday announced it has commenced the inftial
sala of tha Unifill® ready-to-fill syringe to a U.S.-based global pharmacautical company.

The cammencement of Unifill sales to this new customar, whose identity ramains confidential at this time, follows the initial shipmant of the davice to Sanofi last week,
Unillfe continues to expand its customer pipeline as an increasing number of pharmaceutical companies sesk accass to Unifill for the delivery of their prefilied injsctable
drugs.

Unilife expects this new U.S.-based pharmaceutical customer to genduct drug compatibifity and stability tests.with their Injectable drugs in combination with Unifill as per
standard industry practices for drug-device combination products. The resulting data fs then filed to regulatory agencies as a final step before epproval.

Mr. Alan Shorlall, CEO of Unilife, said, "Unilifz is pleased to have commenced initial sales of the Unifill syringe to anothar global pharmaceutical company. We expect to
cuntinue supplying the Unifill syrings to this customer over the coming manths to support their drug compatibility and stability tests with a number of target meieaules.

“The Unifill syringe is the world's first and only knewn prafilled syringe with safety features fully intsgrated within the glass barrel. The Unifill syringe is esssntially a
primary drug cantainer, a safety devica and & sharps disposal unit all roffed inta one, It is strongly positionad to help improve patient care and better protect healthcare
workers at risk of contracting Infectious diseases, such as HIV via neediestick injuries and other potential transmission modes.

"We ara pleased with the sfrong level of interast in the Unifill syringe from a significant number of pharmaceutical and biotechnology companiss that recognize its
potential to optimize the lifacycles of their injectable drugs and gensrate powerful brand differentiation within competitive therapsutic classes. We look forward to
entaring into agreements with a number of additional pharmaceutical pariners over the coming months."

About Unilife Corporation

Unilife Corporation (NASDAQIUNIS / ASX: UNS) is a U.S. based developer, manufaciurer and supplier of advanced drug delivery systems with state-of-the-art facilities
in Pennsylvania, Established in 2002, Unilife works with pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies seeking innovative devices for use with their parenteral drugs and
vaccines. Unilife has developed a broad, differentiated proprietary porifoilo of its own Injectable drug delivery products, including tha Unifil@® and Unitract® product lines
of safety syringes with automatic, operator controlied needle retraction. Unifill represents the world's first prefilled syringe technology Integrating safety within the primary
drug containsr. The products are ideally positioned te help pharmaceuiical companies maximize the lifecycla of their injectable drugs and enhance patient cara. Unffil
syringes, together with other devicas that ars part of the Unilife technology platform, can sither be supplied to pharmaceutical customers ready for use, or customized to
address the specific requirements of targeted novel drugs. For more information on Unilife, please vislt www.unllife.com.

This press release contains forward-looking statemants. All statsmants that address operating parfarmance, events or developments that we expect or anticipate will
occur in the future are forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are based on management's bsifes and assumptions and on information currentty
avallable to our management. Our management believas that these forward-looking statements are reasonable as and when made. However, you sheuld not place
undue rellance on any such forward-locking statements because such statements speak only as of the date when made. We do not undertake any abligation to publicly
updafe ar revise any farward-iooking statements, whether as a resuit of new information, futlre events or otherwise, except as required by law. In addition, forward-
looking statements are subject lo cerain risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results, events and developments to differ materally from our historical
exparience and our present expectations or projections. These risks and uncertainties include, but are not fimltad to, those described in "ltem 1A. Risk Factors” and
elsewhere in our Annuai Report on Form 10-K and those described from time to time in other reports which we file with ths Securities and Exchange Gammission.
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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K

¥ ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES

EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2011

OR
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the tramsition period from to

Cominission File Number 001-34540

UNILIFE CORPORATION

{Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 27-1049354
(State or other jurisdiction of {I.R.S. Employer
incerporation or organization) Tdentification No )
250 Cross Farm Lane, York, Pennsylvania 17406
{Address of principal executive offices) ) (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code (717) 384-3400
Securities registered pursuaunt to Section 12(b) of the Act:
Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange on Which Registered
Common Stock, par value $0.01 per share The Nasdaq Stock Market, LLC

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:
None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Sscurities
Act. Yes O No ™

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the
Act. Yes O No '

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or Section 15(d;
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports), and {2) has been subject (o such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes B No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any,
every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§ 232,405 of this
chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such
files). Yes O No O :

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (§ 229.405 of this
chapter) is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or
information statements incorperated by reference in Part I1T of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. &

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a
smaller reporting company, See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting
company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer O Accelerated filer & Non-accelerated filer O  Smaller reporting company O
(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Indicated by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes
O No &

The aggregate market value of the common equity held by non-affiliates of the registrant a3 of December 31, 2010, the
last business day of the registrant’s most recently completed second fiscal quarter was $310.4 million, computed by reference
to the closing sale price of the Company’s common stock, For purposes of the foregoing caleulation only, the registrant has '
assumed that all officers and directors of the registrant are affiliates. _

As of September 1, 2011, there were 64,058,508 shares of registrant’s common siock ocufstanding.
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Portions of the registrant’s Definitive Proxy Statement to be filed with the Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A in
gonnection with the registrant’s 2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, to be filed subsequent to the date hereof, are
incorporated by reference into Part ITT of this Report. Such Definitive Proxy Statement will be filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission not later than 120 days after the conclusion of the registrant’s fiscal year ended June 30,2011,
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Presentation of Information

Unilife Corporation was incorporated in the State of Delaware on July 2, 2009, On January 27,2010, Unilife
Medical Solutions Limited, an Australian corporation (“UMSL™), completed a redomiciliation from Australia to the
State of Delaware pursuant to which stockholders and option holders of UMSL exchanged their interests in UMSL
for equivalent interests in Unilife Corporation, a Delaware corporation (“Unilife”) and Unilife became the parent
company of UMSL and its subsidiaries. The redomiciliation was conducted by way of schemes of arrangement under
Australian law, The issnance of Unilife common stock and stoci options under the schemes of arrangement was
exempt from registration under Section 3(a)(10) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The redomiciliation was
approved by the Australian Federal Court, and approved by UMSL shareholders and option holders.

In connection with the redomiciliation, holders of UMSL ordinary shares or share options received one share of
Unilife common stock or an option to purchase one share of Unilife common stock, for every six UMSL ordinary
shares or share options, respectively, held by such holders, unless the helder elected to receive in lieu of Unilife
common stock, Chess Depositary Interests of Unilife, or CDIs (each representing one-sixth of one share of Unilife
common stock), m which case such holder received one CDI for every UMSL ordinary share. All share and per share
amournts in this Annual Report on Form 10-K have been restated to reflect the one for six share recapitalization
effected in connection with the redomiciliation.

On February 16, 2010, Unilife’s common stock began trading on the Nasdaq Global Market under the symbol
“UNIS.” ‘

References to the “Company”, *we”, “our” or “us” include Unilife Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries,
including UMSL, unless the context otherwise requires. References to “Unilife” are references solely to Unilife
Corporatiomn.

Trademarks, Trade Names and Service Marks

Unilife ® , Unitract ® and Unifill ® are registered trademarks of Unilife Corporation and its subsidiaries.

Cantionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Information

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements. All statements that address operating
performance, events or developments that we expect or anticipate will ocour in the future are forward-looking
statements. The forward-looking statements are contained principally in the sections entitled “Business,” “Risk
Factors,” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” In some
cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terms such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “could,” “would,”
“expects,” “plans,” “anticipates,” “believes,” “estimates,” “projects,” “predicts,” “potential” and similar expressions
intended to identify forward-looking statements.

These forward-locking statements are based on management’s beliefs and assumptions and on information
currently available to our management. However, you should not place undue reliance on any such forward-looking
statements because such statements speak only as of the date when made. We do not undertake any obligation to
publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or
otherwise, except as required by law, In addition, forward-looking statements are subject to certain risks and
uncertainties that could cause actual results, events and developments to differ materially from our historical
experience and our present expectations or projections. These risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to,
those described in “Item 1A. Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Annoal Report on Form 10-K and those described
from time to time in our future reports which we will file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. You should
read this Annual Report on Form 10-K and the documents that we have filed as exhibits to this Annual Report on
Form 10-K completely.

Currencies

Unless indicated otherwise in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, ail references to § or dollars refer to
U.5. dollars. References to A% mean the lawful currency of the Commonweslth of Australia. References to €or euros
are to the lawful currency of the Buropean Union.
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PARTI

Ttemn 1. Business
Overview

We are a U.S. based developer and commercial supplier of a diversified portfolio of advanced drug delivery
systems. We collaborate with pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies seeking to optimize drug lifecycles and
generate differentiation for their brand in competitive therapeutic markets through the use of innovative devices that
can improve patient cats, protect healthcare workers and prevent disease. We have developed a broad portfolio of
drug delivery systems in direct response to unmet market needs for macromolecule injectable drugs including
biologics.

Our Unifill ® syringe, the world’s first and only known, commercially available, ready-to-fill syringe with
automatic, user-controlled safety features integrated within the glass barrel, sits at the leading edge of a proprietary
platform of primaty drug containers. The Unifill syringe is designed to be supplied to pharmaceutical manufacturers
in a form that is ready for filling with an injectable drug or vaccine of up to ImL in dose volume. As a primary drug
container, the Unifill syringe has USP Class Six compatible materials within the drug fluid path. Following our
supply of the Unifill syringe to the pharmaceutical company, they are primarily responsible for the filling, packaging,
shipment, regulatory approval, clinical use and markeling of the drug-device combination product. Tbhe Uniftll
syringe is suitable for use by healthcare workers and by patients that self-administer prescription medication cutside
of healthcare facilities.

We have a strategic relationship with Sanofi, a large global pbarmaceutical company, pursuant to which it has
paid to us 10.0 million euros under an exclusive licensing agreement plus an additional 17.0 million evros during the
industrialization program for the Unifill syringe. Together, these payments (equating to approximately $40 million in
total based upon currency rates at the time of payments) provide Sanofi with the exclusive right to negotiate for the
purchase of the Unifill syringe within the main therapeutic classes of anti-thrombotic agents, vaccings and four
smaller confidential sub-classes until June 30, 2014.

We commenced initial production and supply of the Unifill syringe to Sanofi and one other U.S. based
pharmaceutical company in July 201 1. We are also in discussions with other pharmaceutical companies regarding the
supply of, and access to, the Unifill syringe, within therapeutic drug classes outside of those retained by Sanofi,

We expect that current and future customers will seek to utilize initial units of the Unifill syringe for required
compatibility and stability studies with target injectable drugs and vaccines.

Our Unifill portfolio of ready-to-fill syringes with integrated safety features is now being expanded to support
the delivery of other prefilled injectable drugs and vaccines. Our Unifill Select syringes are designed for the use of
interchangeable needles of up to 1 !/ 27 in length. They can be prefilled either with liquid stable drugs for therapeutic
classes such as vaccines where intramuscular injections are commonly required, or with a diluent for use with
lyophilized drugs supplied in a vial for reconstitution at the point of delivery. We have also developed and filed
provisional patent applications for the Unifill EZMix range of syringes with multiple chambers that contain the
lyophilized drug and the diluent for reconstitution within the single delivery system.

Additional technology platforms that we have developed in response to the unmet device needs of
pharmaceulical companies include patient self-administration systems including auto-injectors and wearable
subcutanecus pump infusion systems for viscous, large-volume drugs, and other specialized devices for targeted
organ delivery. We also supply our Unitract 1inL range of syringes to medical distributors for use within healthcare
facilities and by patients that self-administer prescription medication.

These technology platforms may also facilitate the customization of each device to address the specific
pharmaceutical, molecular and patient requirements of a target drug supplied in either a liquid stable form or
lyophilized for reconstitution. As our devices can form an integral part of the drug-device combination product that is
submitted to regulatory agencies for approval, our collaboration with pharmaceutical companies can begin during the
early clinical development of a pipeline drug and potentially span its entire commercial lifecycle.
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Our goal is to enter into commercial supply contracts with pharmaceutical companies, as well as to enter into
development agreements under which a pharmaceutical company may fund the development or customization of a
Unilife device for nse with its drugs entering into scheduled clinical trials. Programs to develop products suitable for
use in scheduled clinical trials are now ongoing with one pharmaceutical company.

We design znd manufacture our devices out of a state-of-the-art global headquarters and production facility
located in York, Pennsylvania, We opened the 165,000 square foot facility in December 2010 following a
$32 million one-year construction program, The facility includes a 100,000 square foot producticn center that
contains eleven cleanrooms, a product development center, quality labs, machine shops and a fully segregated
warehouse. Activities undertaken at the site include device design, rapid prototyping, pilot and commercial
production, bio-analytical testing, packaging, quality assurance and supply chain. All activities are guided by
business systems, such as SAP ERP, that complement those of pharmaceutical companies. Our Quality Management
System is fully certified to ISO 13485 and operates in compliance with 21 CRF 210/211 for pbarmaceuticals and
21 CFR 820 for medical devices.

Market Opportunity
The Pharmaceutical Market for Pre-Filled Syringes
A ready-to-fill or prefilled syringe serves as a primary drug container for an injectable drug or vaccine,

Prefilled syringes have a number of advantages over conventional plastic syringes that typically draw
medication from vials or ampoules at the time of administration. First, prefilled syringes help pharmaceutical
companies improve manufacturing efficiencies through the elimination of drug wastage commenly associated with
the overfilling of multi-use vials. Second, healthcare workers often prefer prefilled syringes because they can
facilitaie a relatively fast, accurate and convenient adrministration of a drug. Furthermore, a pre-measured dose of an
injectable drug in a prefilled syringe can help reduce the risk of dosing errors, Finally, the relative ease-of-use and
accuracy of prefilled syringes can also make them suitable for palient self-administration of many types of
prescription medication,

Prefilled syringes are supplied o a pharmaceutical company ‘ready for filling’ with an injectable drug or
vaccine, before it is packaged and shipped for adminisiration by either healthcare workers or by palients that self-
administer prescription medication outside of healthcare facilities. Prefilled syringes are made of glass, with USP
compliant materials within the fluid path to support the compatibility and stability of the farget drug within the device
for an average period of at least two years. The majority of prefilled syringes are used with drugs supplied in & liquid
stable dose format of up to 1mL in volume, and targeted for administration either by subcutaneous or intramuscular
injection. Some lyophilized drugs requiring reconstitution at the peint of delivery are alse supplied in 2 dual-chamber
prefilled syringe where one container is filled with a drug and another chamber with diluent.

We are aware of more than 50 drugs and vaccines that are currently available in a prefilled syringe format from
more than 20 pharmaceutical companies, and believe that a nuinber of pipeline drugs are likely to be supplied in this
format in the future. Greystone Associates, a medical and health care technology consulting firm, has estimated that
approximately 2.54 billion prefilled syringes were used globally in 2010, and that this number will increase
significantly in the coming years. Another market research firm, MarketsandMarkets, estimates that the market for
prefilled syringes was valued at $2.55 billion in 2010, and is projected to increase to $4.806 billion in 2015,
representing a compound average growth rate of 13.5%.

Drugs tergeted for use across more than a dozen therapeulic classes that are currently supplied in a prefilled
syringe format include anti-coagulants to prevent and treat thrombosis, anti-inflammatories to treat rheumatoid
arthritis, anti-infectives to treat hepatitis B and C, hematolopical drugs to stimulate production of red or white blood
cells fo treat anemia or fight infection, and vaccines which seek to prevent a range of diseases. We expect that
prefilled syringes will also be increasingly used in the coming years as a drug delivery device for other therapeutic
drug classes including obstetrics, oncology, osteoporosis and human growth hormone treatment.
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Increased Focus on Prevention of Needlestick Injuries

The Warld Health Organization estimates that 1.3 million people die each year as a result of unsafe injection
practices, which can inclnde syringe re-use and needlestick injuries, Unsafe injection practices result in the
transmission of a number of blood-bome diseases such as HIV/AIDS and hepatitis C. The U.S. Centers for Disease
Control and Prevention estimates that 385,000 nzedlestick and other sharps-related injuries are sustained by
U.S. hospital-based healthcare personnel each vear. The U.S. Occupational Safety and Health Administration, or
OSHA, estimates that when other secondary healthcare settings are also taken into account, there are as many as
800,000 needlestick injuries to U.S. healthcare workers each year. To help minimize the transmission of blood-borne
pethogens caused by unsafe injection practices, many international healthcare and pharmaceutical markets are
transitioning to the mandatory use of safety syringes.

Tn many sophisticated healthcare markets, governments are focused on the mandatory use of safety devices
within healthcare facilities to protect healthcare workers from the risk of acquiring blood-borne pathogens via
needlestick injuries. The United States was the first nation to mandate the use of safety syringes and other safety-
engineered mediczal devices within healthcare facilities, with the adoption of the Federal Needlestick Prevention Act
in 2000, or FNSPA, and the subsequent revision to the Bloodborne Pathogens Standard (BPS).

The Buropean Union has also introduced a directive in March 2010 requiring member countries to introduce
laws within three years requiring the use of needlestick prevention products within healthcare facilities. Other
countries such &s Canada and Australia have also taken steps to encourage the use of safety syringes. As a result of
this existing and proposed legislation, safety syringes are now commonly used within the healthcare facilities in a
number of countries.

The United States represents the largest and most mature market for safety syringes, with a substantial majority
of hypodermic syringes and needles used within acuie-care facilities featuring some type of needlestick prevention
device. Notwithstanding the increased use of safety syringes, we believe that current safety syringe technologies are
in several respects iuadequate to fully protect healthcare workers from infection risk cansed by needlestick injuries or
other potential transmission modes. First, most products currently available require operators to manually stide an
external plastic guard or sheath over the needle after use, or retract the peedle into the barrel at a rapid, uncontrolled
rate. Second, healthcare workers may choose to remove or not activate the safety feature of some types of safety
syringe products. Moreover, activation of the needle retraction mechanism in the open air for some retractable
syringes, rather than inside the body of the patient, may create the potential risk of infection via needlestick injuries
or aerosol (splatter),

QSHA differentiates safety features in two primary ways. First, it differentiates passive safety features which
“remain iu effect before, during and after use” from active devices which “require the worker to activate the safety
mechanism.” Second, OSHA regulations state that products with an “integrated safety design that is an integral part
of the device and cannot be removed” are usually preferred to those with an accessory safety device with safety
features that are “external” and “dependent on employee compliance.” We believe the majority of safety syringe
products used in TS, healthcare facilities incorporate active safety features which are not fully integrated within the
barrel of the syringe.

We are not aware of any prefilled syringe with passive safety features that are integrated within the glass barrel.
To improve compliance with legislation such ag the FNSPA, a number of pharmaceutical companies attach ancillary
safety products onto standard prefilled syringes following dose filling and prior to packaging. We estimate that
approximately half of the approved drugs currently available in a prefilled syringe format are supplied by the
pharmaceutical manufacturer with some type of ancillary safety device. The majority of these ancillary safety
products slide an external plastic sheath or guard over the needle once the injection has been completed.

It is costly for pharmaceutical companies to purchase these aucillary safety products and to operate the
automated assembly systems required to attach them onto a standard prefilled syringe, The relatively large size of
prefilled syringes supplied with an ancillary safety device can also significautly increase the shipping and packaging
costs of pharmaceutical companies, Furthermore, some of these prefilled syringes supplied with an aucillary safety
device require the removal of the device from the body prior to activation of the safety mechanism, creating the risk
of infection via needlestick injury or aerosol (splatter). Thus, we believe that there is a significant
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market opportunity for the Unifill syringe that has passive and integrated safety features and is compatible with
pharmacentical companies’ drug filling systems,

We also believe there are significant market oppertunities for the use of conventional and prefilled safety
syringes outside of mainstream healthcare facilities, In addition te insulin, a range of other injectable drugs designed
for the prevention and/or treatment of chronic or debilitating conditions such as arthritis, multiple sclerosis and
osteoporosis and thrombosis are now zvailable for self-administration. We believe the popularity of safety syringes
among patients who self-administer prescription medication may increase due to their capacity to prevent needlestick
injuries to family members and encourage safe, convenient disposal. When purchased with a prescription, a number
of insurance providers in the U.S, now cover safety insulin syringes under the same tier level for reimbursement as
standard insulin syringes.

Increasing Pharmaceutical Investment in Large-Molecule Drugs

The composition of clinical development pipelines is being increasingly dominated by large-molecule injectable
drugs, such as biclogics, with specific formulation and delivery requirements. Biological drugs are created by
biologic processes, rather than being chemicatly synthesized. They are used in the treatment of many acute and
chronic diseases such as cancer, thetimatoid arthritis, diabetes, multiple sclerosis and growth hormone deficiency.
The market for biclogics has grown from $60.3 billion in 2004 to $109.8 billion in 2010. The injectable drug delivery
market is being increasingly driven by the increasing development and marketing of large-molecule drugs and
vaccines such as biologics by a number of top tier pharmaceutical companies. According to MarketsandMarkets, the
biologics market is expected to grow from $109.8 billion in 2010 to $180.9 billion in 2015, representing a compound
annual growth rate of 10.5%. Based on available information, we believe that there are more than a theusand large-
molecule drugs such as biologics now in the clinical and pre-clinical development pipeline. Biologics are expected to
account for 17.5% of total projected global drug sales in 2015.

Due to the protein based structure of biclogics, most are fragile in nature. As a result, the vast majarity-of-
biological drugs is injected into the body and supplied in either a liquid stable or lyophilized form for reconstitution.
Due to the specific molecular, formulation and patient requirements of large-molecule drugs including biologics,
pharmaceutical companies will often seek to enter into collaborative partnerships with device manufacturers to
develop effective drug- device combination products that can enable and enhance their clinical use and
commercialization.

In addition to the commercial supply of our devices for approved drugs, we believe there are significant
opportunities for us to establish collaborative relationships with pharmaceutical companies whereby we can develop
delivery devices in parallel with the clinical development of a target pipeline biological drug, Based upon legal
reviews of FDA guidance, we believe thet the development of devices that are designed or customizéd to address the
specific requirements of the target molecule can generate unique claims for the drug-device combination product that
may make it non-substitutable for biosimilar competitors. We are further aware of a number of biologics that are
expected to lose patent protection between 2011 and 2015, which may create opportunities for us to collaborate with
manufacturers of biologic or biosimilar drugs to develop innovative or differentiated devices that can potentially
extend product lifecycles within increasingly competitive therapeutic drug classes.

Patieni-Self-Administration of Injectable Drugs

Increased prevalence of chronic and debilitating diseases such as diabetes, theumateid arthritis, multiple
sclerosis and cancer, along with increased life expectancies, has created increasing demand for ways to administer
treatment outside of healthcare facilities. The self-administration of injectable medication by patients offers several
significant benefits including reduced financial and operational constraints on healtheare facilities and improvements
in patient care and overail quality of life. Self-injection devices such as prefilled syringes, auto-injectors,
subcutaneous infusion systems and pens are among the device categories that enhance and enable the safe, simple
and convenient administration of prescription medications. MarketsandMarkets projects the patient self-injection
sector to increase to $1.2 billion by 2013.

Dirug delivery devices that are intuitive to use and have minimal steps of use can increase the overall value of the
drug-device combination product. In particular, we believe such devices can help to enhance levels of patient
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acceptance to improve adherence to therapy compliance. Such device-related factors can play a significant role in the
selection of which drug a physician will prescribe for reatment and its reimbursement. As a result, innavative,
patient-friendly devices can help to generate higher numbers of units sold, raise the average selling price per dose,
increase levels of market share and generate brand differentiation within comipetitive therapeutic classes.

Our Solutions

We have developed a diversified and highly innovative portfolio of advanced drug delivery systems in divect
response to the unmet needs of phammaceutical companies, healthcare workers and patients. We consider our devices
to be differentiated by their market-driven design and capacity to be developed to address the specific molecular,
formulation, clinical, regulatory, patient and marketing requitements of a target drug. By supporting pharmaceutical
companies during the clinical development and commereial lifecyeles of their drugs, our devices are designed to
improve patient care, optimize product lifecycles and generate powerful brand differentiation within competitive
therapeutic classes.

Proprietary Technology Platforins

Our broad platform of primary drug containers and other device technologies has been designed to support the
administration of injectable drugs and vaccines, including biologics, supplied in a liquid stable or lyophilized form
for reconstitution, across a wide range of therapeutic classes. In cur opinion, this technology platform of prefilled
syringes, patieni-self-injection systems and novel target organ delivery systems represents one of the most diversified
and customer-focused device porifolios on the market for use with drugs targeted for administration via commen
routes such as subcutanecus and intramuscular injection. Qur technology platforms cover the following device
categories:

Unifill: Prefilled Syringes (Primary Drug Containers) with Integrated Safety Features

We have developed a full platform of Unifill ready-to-fill (prefilled) syringes that are designed for use with a
broad range of liquid stable and lyophilized drugs and vaceines that are targeted for use in a prefilled format. All
Unifill products within this proprietary platform utilize our unique automatic retraction safety mechanism enabling
operators to control the speed of needle withdrawal directly from the body into the barrel of the syringe. This
combination of automatic, operator-coatrolled needle retraction features fully integrated within the barrel is designed
to mimimize the risk of infection via potential transmission modes including needlestick injuries, device reuse or
aersolization (splatter}. All components within the {luid path feature USP-compliant materials, with the devices
designed to be supplied to customers for integration into their existing fill-finish systems.

The Unifill syringe (see below) sits at the leading edge of this proprietary platform. These devices are
manufactured at our FDA-registered facility in York, PA, and available for supply to pharmaceutical companies.
Other Unifill ready-to-fill syringes we have developed include primary and multi-container systems featuring either
staked (fixed) or interchangeable needles.

Unifill Select syringes feature a primary drug container that can either be utilized as a ready-for injection
prefilled delivery system for liquid stable drugs, or with a diluent for use with lyophilized drugs supplied in a vial
format for reconstitution at the point of delivery. Interchangeable needles of up to 1.5 inches in length can be
attached onto Unifill Select products. All Unifill syringes can be customized to address the specific customer,
melecular component and patient requirements of a target drug,.

Clinical (Hypodermic) Syringes

We have developed a proprietary range of Unitract safety syringes for use with liquid stable drugs supplied in a
vial or ampoule are targeted for commen administration routes including subcutaneous and intramuscular injection.
All Unitract syringes feature a unique combination of automatic and fully integrated safety features that help to
enable intuitive use and convenient disposal by either healthcare workers or patients that self-administer prescription
niedication. An audible, tactile click signals the automatic (passive) activation of the needle retraction mechanism
upon the full injection of the dose. Operators can control the speed at which the needle is withdrawn
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directly from the body into the barrel of the syringe by relieving thumb or finger pressure on the plunger. The
plunger is then locked to prevent needle re-exposure, product tampering or device reuse.

At the leading edge of this platform is the Unitract range of lmL safety syringes. Product variants including the
Unitract Insulin and Tuberculin syringes are approved and available for use within a number of international markets
incloding the U.8., Canada and the Buropean Union. These devices are manufactured at our FDA-registered facility
in York, PA.

We have also developed an extended range of Unitract syringes from 3mL in size designed for the intramuscular
injection of drugs and vaccines that require the aitachment of needles up to 1.5 inches in length

Self-Injection Systems
Auto-Injectors

Qur Unifill Aute-Injector platform is designed for the self-administration of injectable drugs by patients outside
of healthcare facilities. Designed for use with the Unifill ready-to-fill syringes, Unifill Auto-Injectors have been
developed in single-use disposable and re-usable configurations, and can be customized to support a range of drug
viscosities and patient dexterity requirements,

Due to the integrated safety features of the Unifill syringe, Unifill Auto-Injectors are highly compact in size
compared to comparable devices to provide easier portability, conipact handling and convenient disposal. We believe
that because of its utilization with the Unifill syringe, Unifill Auto-Injectors also offer the first true
end-of-dose indicator for the patient self-administration of injectable drugs in an auto-injector format. An audible,
tactile click signals the injection of the full dose and the automatic activation of the safety mechanism in the Unifill
syringe, which retracts the needle directly from the body into the cylinder. This true end-of-dose indicator ensures the
operator is able to intuitively and accurately deliver the full volume of prescribed medication to optimnize therapy
compliance.

Unifill Auto-Injectors also utilize fewer components than many comparable devices over an equivalent standard
prefilled syringe due to its provision with the Unifill syrmge.

Auto-Infusors

We have developed and filed a patent application for what we consider to be a unique technology platform of
single-use wearable subcutanecus infusion pump systems enabling patients to self-administer large-molecule
injectable drugs between 3mL and 10mL in volume. Unifill Auto-Infusers are designed to serve as a patient-centric
delivery system for a number of emerging therapies including biologics that require higher dose volumes, less
frequent dosing reginiens, and the formulation of more complex injectable molecules. Our range of Auto-Infusors is
designed to be worn by the patient for preset infusion times that can span between minutes and howrs in duration
based upon the requirements of the pharmaceutical company. After the application of the device on or near the
injection site and the pushing of a button by the patient, the delivery of the medication commences. Upon the
completion of dose delivery, the patient can remove the system from the body for convenient disposal.

Auto-Infusors consist of a primary drug container, the standard fluid path and a drive mechanism that are all
modular in design to enable customization to address the specific molecular, viscosity and patient requirements of the
target drug. For clinical trial use, our Auto-Infusors can be filled at time of use to eliminate the need for drug
compatibility studies, We expect the device will be used in clinical drug trials by pharmaceutical companies
scheduled to occur during the 2012 calendar year.

Novel Devices for Targeted Organ Delivery

We have started working with pharmaceutical companies to develop specialized drug delivery systems to
administer biologics and other macro-molecule drugs that require high-precision administration to target organs of
the human body. For these projects, this collaboration with the pharmaceutical company can occurs early in the
clinical development phase. These close relationships that we build with pharmaceutical companies can help to




Tabie of Contents

Case 2:13-cv-05101-MMB Document 1 Filed 08/30/13 Page 49 of 141

create unigue drug-device combination products that can contain and administer the dose to the target organ with
high-precision and reliability.

By addressing the specific device innovation needs in parallel with the development of the target pipeline drug,
the specialized orgen delivery systems that we develop can help to support suceessful clinical trial outcomes and the
filing of regulatory applications with strong claims for the combination product, As a result, our proprietary organ
delivery systems may help to generate powerful brand differentiation for the target drug, to create a competitive
advantage of over drugs offered by other manufacturers of branded drugs or biosimilar or gereric competitors.

Business Strategy

Our goal is to become established as a preferred pariner to pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies in the
development and commercial supply of innovative, differentiated delivery systems for the administration of
injectable drugs and vaccines. In the near-term, our primary focus is to supply our lead product, the Unifill syringe to
pharmaceutical companies in order for them to commence stability and compatibility studies with target drugs.

Over the medium to long-term, we will seek to commercialize a diversified portfolio of advanced drug delivery
systems that can help to enable the clinical development and, or enhance the commercial lifecycles of branded,
biosimilar and generic drugs across a multitude of therapentic drug classes. Unlike conventional commodity products
marketed by incambent device manufacturers, it is our goal to develop highly differentiated devices that can be
customized to address the specific molecular and patient requirements of a drug and its target patient.

‘We do not intend to enter any market sectors with devices that have equivalent features as conventional
products. Our focus is on innovative, high-value devices that will have unique value-adding features over equivalent
products. We can also custom-design our devices, where required, to meet specific needs of pharmaceutical
companies, Where our proprietary devices need to be developed or customized to meet the specific requirements of a
target drug, we will typicaily enter into a development program with a pharmaceutical company under which they
will provide funding before, subject to regulatory approval, entering into long-term contracts for commercial supply.
Through this strategy, we hope to develop and commercially supply a diverse range of injectable drug delivery
systems that can help to enhance patient care, improve therapy compliance, protect hezlthcare workers, prevent
disease, reduce healthcare costs and generate powerful brand differentiation for brand-name, generic or biogimilar
drugs marketed within competitive therapeutic classes.

We believe we are well positioned to achieve this goal due to a combination of factors that include:

s Proprietary Safety Syringe Technology: We have provisional or issued patents for an extensive portfolio of
safety syringe technologies that can be applied for use with virtually ail liquid-stable or lyophilized drugs and
vaccines that are supplied-in a vial, ampoule or prefilled format. We are not aware of any other technology
platform that incorporates the following safety features that are fully integrated within the barrel of the
syringe:

+ Automatic activation of the safety mechanism upon full dose delivery to virtually eliminate the risk of
needlestick injuries;

+ The ability for operators to control the speed of needle retraction directly from the body into the barrel to
minimize the risk of acrosol (splatter); and

+ The automatic locking of the plunger inside the barrel to prevent needle re-exposure, device reuse or
product tampering.

» Patents for our safety syringe technology extend from 2018 to 2030 for core features of our Unifill range of
prefilled syringes across multiple jurisdictions including the United States, Europe, Canada, Japan, China
and Australia.

» The Unifill Syringe: The Unifill syringe is the world’s first commercially available and only knowmn,
prefilled syringe with safety features that are fully integrated within the glass barrel. Designed to serve as a
primary drug container for a range of prefilled drugs and vaccines, the Unifill syringe features USP
compliant materials in the fluid path to support drug compatibility and is supplied for integration into fill-
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“finish lines currently used with conventional prefilled syringes. Unlike ancillary safety devices now utilized
by pharmaceutical companies with their prefilled drugs to comply with needlestick prevention laws, the
Unifill syringe can minimize the packaging, transport and storage costs of a pharmaceutical company,
Sharing similar steps of use to equivalent standard prefilled syringes, the Unifill syringe is suitable for use
either by healthcare workers or by patients that self-administer prescription medication.

» Diversified Portfolio of Advanced Drug Delivery Systems: The successful development and
commercialization of the Unifill syringe has given us the operational capabilities, expertise and industry
credibility to expand our research and development activities into a number of other high-value drug delivery
sectors where we have identified unmet market needs for device innovation. In direct response to these unmet
needs, we have developed a bread and differentiated portfolio of primary drug containers with integrated
safety features, patient self-injection systems and novel organ delivery devices.

» Full Development and Commercial Supply Partaer: We have established our operational capabilities to
serve the device innovation requirements of pharmacentical companies from the clinical development phase
of pipetine drugs and then throughout their commercial lifecycles.

Our facilities in York, Pennsylvania have been designed to function as an integrated center for device
innovation, pilot and commercial production and quality assurance. Activities undertaken at the site include device
design, rapid prototyping, pilot and commercial production, bic-analytical testing, packaging, quality assurance and
supply chain. All activities at Unilife are guided by advanced business systems, such as SAP ERP, that complement
those of pharmaceutical companies. Our Quality Management Systetn is fully certifizd to ISO 13485, and in
compliance with 21 CRE 210/211 for pharmaceuticals and 21 CFR 20 for medical devices.

Our Products
Unifill Syringe

The Unifill ready-to-fill syringe is the world’s first and only prefilied syringe with automatic safety features
fully integrated within the glass barrel. Supplied and designed for integration into fill-finish systems currently used
for equivalent conventional prefilled syringes, the Unifill syringe can streamline drug production systems and
significantly reduce transport, packaging and storage costs associated with the attachment of ancillary safety
products, The Unifill syringe has USP compliant materials within the drug fluid path that are sourced from
established pharmaceutical suppliers.

The Unifill syringe is designed for safe, simple and convenient use by either healthcare workers or patients that
self-administer prescription medication. Upon the injection of the full dose, an automatic safety mechanism is
activated, whereby operators can control the speed of needle retraction directly from the body into the barrel of the
syringe. The combination of automatic, operator-controlied retraction features within the Unifill syringe can helps to
virtually eliminate the risk of infection from needlestick injuries or other potential transmission modes such as
aergolization (splatter). The phunger is then automatically locked to prevent the re-use of the device, circumvent
product tampering, and encourage its convenient and compact disposal. The Unifill syrings is now being produced at
our production facilities in York, Pennsylvania,

The Unifill syringe is a primary drug container with automatic sefety features that are fully integrated within the

- glass barrel, We beligve it is the only ready-to-fill, or prefilled, syringe with such integrated safety features.

Currently, many pharmaceutical companies marketing standard (non-safety} prefilled syringes into markets requiring
mandatory compliance with needlestick prevention laws have two options. They can either supply the prefilled
syringe without a needle into the market, whereby it becomes the responsibility of the healthcare facility to comply
with legislation. More commonly, the pharmaceutical company will attach an ancillary safety product over the
prefilled syringe before it is packaged and shipped for use, The Unifill syringe can eliminate the purchase of ancillary
safety products and their associated cost to attachment it onto a standard prefilled syringe, The Unifill syringe is also
similar in size to an equivalent prefilled syringe and significantly smaller than those with an attached ancillary safety
product thereby reducing packaging and transportation costs and storage volumes.

As a primary container, all components within the fluid path utilize materials that are USP compliant and can be
sourced from established pharmaceutical suppliers. The handling and administration of the Unifill syringe is the
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same as injections undertaken with an ordinary prefilled syringe. Upon the delivery of a full dose using the Unifill, a
passive retraction mechanism is ectivated, whereupon operators may control the speed of needle withdrawal directly
from the body into the barrel of the syringe to virtually eliminate the risk of needlestick injury or asrosol (splatter).
The plunger is then automatically disabled to prevent needle re-exposure, and to facilitate compact, convenient
disposal.

The Unifill syringe has been designed in a staked (fixed) needle format for use with therapeutic drugs which are
primarily administered via subcutaneous injection and targeted for use either by healthcare workers or patients that
self-administer preseription medication outsice of healthcare facilities.

The compact size, intuitive use, functionality and automatic safety features of the Unifill syringe compared to
other prefilled syringes, including those supplied with an ancillary safety product, may also help pharmaceutical
companies optimize product lifecycles, increase ievels of market differentiation in competitive therapeutic areas, and
expand the mearketability of some drugs for convenient self-administration by patients outside of the healtheare
sefting.

We intend to file a Type ITII Drug Master File for the product with relevant regulatory autherities such as the
FDA. It is the ultimate responsibility of the pharmaceutical company to obtain final approval of the combination
drug-delivery device.

Unitract ImL Syringes

The Unitract 1mL range of safety syringes is primarily designed for the subcutaneous injection of drugs within
healthcare facilities and by patients who self-administer prescription medication such as insulin. In addition to insulin
and tuberculin, or TB, variants, the Unitract 1mL range also includes the Unitract Safe Syringe which is custom-
designed for use by governments that utilize harm reduction (needle exchange} programs to prevent the reuse,
sharing and unsafe disposal practices of Injecting Drug Users (IDUs}. Unlike the Unifill ready-to-fill syringe, the
Unitract 1mL syringes require healthcare workers or patienis to draw up the dose from a vial or ampoule immediately
prior to the mjection.

We have received regulatory certification for the marketing and sale of various Unitract 1mL syringe products in
the United States, Austratia and Canada and have received CE Martk approval in the European Union.

Pipeline Products

We have also developed additional pipeline products which we intend to commercialize in the future, either
independently or in collaboration with pharmaceutical and biotechnelogy companies, These pipeline products
include:

Unifill Select

The Unifill Select range of ready-to-fill syringes combines the benefits of automatic, fully integrated safety
features with the ability to attach interchangeable needles of up to 1 and 1/2 inches in length. Unifill Select syringes
facilitate the use of injectable drugs and vaccines between 0.2 and 1.5mL in volume that are supplied in either a
Hguid stable form ot lyophilized for reconstitution. Unifill Select delivery systems are designed Lo be supplied for
integration into fill-finish systems used for equivalent conventional Imi. standard, lmL. long or larger prefilled
syringes. As primary drug containers with USP class 6 compliant materials within the drug fluid path, Unifill Select
products are similar in size to equivalent prefilled syringes. They can be supplied ready-for-injection in a kit format
with one or more needles for intuitive and convenient administration either directly into the patient or into an IV port.

The Unifill Select can either be pre-filled with a liquid stable drug or with a diluent for the reconstitution of
lyopluhzed drugs supplled in a vial. In a liquid stabie format, the Unifill Select may be selected for use with drugs
and vaccines where it is recommended that the healthcare worker select the length and gauge of a needle based upon
the age or size of the patient and other specific delivery requirements of the drug. Vaccines are one common
therapeutic class where prefilled syringes are commonly supphed with attachable needles, to facilitate their
intramuscular injection to the patient. In addition to its targeted use with drugs supplied in a liquid stable format, the
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Unifil! Select can also be prefilled with a diluent and packaged with a vial adaptor for use with lyophilized drugs
requiring reconstitution. As a unique delivery system for liquid stable drugs targeted for intramuscular injection, or
other Iyophilized drugs, Unifill Select syringes are ideally positioned to generate brand differentiation for drugs
marketed within target competitive therapeutic classes to optimize product lifecycles.

Unifill EZMix

Unifill EZMix syringes have been developed in direct response to the unmet needs of pharmaceutical companies
seeking an innovative and convenient delivery system for the reconstitution and administration of Iyophilized drugs
and vaccines. Unifill EZmix syringes feature two or more primary drug containers within a single delivery system to
store a combination of liquid stable or lyophilized drugs along with up to ImL of diluent for reconstitution.

In addition to being the world’s first and only known dual or multi-chamber prefilled syringes with automatic
(passive) safety features fully integrated within the delivery system, the Unifill EZMix syringe offers minimal steps
of use for healthcare workers and patients alike. The end-user simply advances the plunger to mix the Iyophilized
powder with the diluent, before swirling the device to complete reconstitution. An audible, tactile click signals the
injection of the full dose and the activation of a passive safety system that allows operators to control the speed of
needle retraction directly from the body into the barrel. The Unifill EZMix syringe has been designed for
development in either a fixed (staked) needle for drugs indicated for subcutaneous injections, or with attachable
needles of up to 1 and 1/2 inches in length.

Unifill Auto-Injectors

The Unifill range of auto-injectors has been designed for the accurate, intuitive and convenient administration of
injectable drugs by patients cutside of healthcare facilities. Developed for use in conjunction with Unifill prefilled
syringes, Unifill Auto-Injectors are highly compact in size, and enable patients to inject a measured dose of
medication with the simple push of a button. Unlike conventional auto-injector technologies that are used with
standard prefilled syringes, we believe the incorporation of the Unifiil syringe with its integrated safety features gives
Unifill Auto-Injectors several significant market advantages including a relatively smail diameter and a true
end-of-dose indicator.

The Unifill Aute-Injector platform has been designed to accommodate devices targeted for use in either single-
use disposable or re-usable configurations for use across a wide spectrum of therapeutic drug classes. The devices
can be custom-designed to support a range of drug viscosities and patient dexterity requirements. With the increasing
standardization of many injectable drugs across a nuinber of therapeutic classes in both a stand-alone prefilled
syringe format and supplied with an auto-injector, the combination of the Unifill syringe and a compact, accurate
auto-injector under one best-in-class technology platform can streamline the pathway to commercial launch and
generzate powerful brand differentiation during the product lifecycle.

We believe that because of its utilization with the Unifill syringe, Unifill Auto-Injectors also offer the first true
end-of-dose indicator for the patient self-administration of injectable drugs in an auto-injector format. An audible,
tactile click signals the injection of the full dose and the automatic activation of the safety mechanism in the Unifill
syringe, which retracts the needle directly from the body into the cylinder, This true end-of-dose indicator ensures the
operator is able to intuitively and accurately deliver the full volume of prescribed medication to optimize therapy
compliance. Unifill Auto-Injectors also utilize fewer components than many comparable devices over an equivalent
standard prefilled syringe due to its provision with the Unifill syringe.

Auto-Infusors

We have developed our proprietary range of single-use, disposable subcutansous infusion systems for the patient
self-injection of drugs between 3mL and 10mL in volume. Qur Auto-Infusors are designed to serve as a wearable
delivery system for a number of emerging therapies that require large dose valumes, less frequent dosing regimens,
and the formulation of more complex injectable molecules, Qur Auto-Infusors can be readily attached and
conveniently worn by the patient for pre-set infusion times that may span either minutes or hours in duration
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depending upon the requirements of the target drug. After the application of the device onto the injection site and the
pushing of 2 button by the patient, the measured delivery of the medication occurs over a designated period of time.

Our Auto-Infusors consist of a primary drug container, the standard fluid path and a drive mechanism that are all
modular in design to enable customization to address the specific molecular, viscosity and patient requirements of the
target drug. Upon administration of the full dose, the patient can conveniently dispose of the device. For clinical tial
purposes, the Autolnfuser can either be filled at the time of use for the convenience of pharmaceutical compénies, or
supplied in a prefilled format.

Unitract Clinical Range

In addition to the commercially available Unitract ImL syringes, we have developed other hypedermic variants
with barrel sizes of 3mL or larger for use with drugs and vaccines supplied in a vial or ampoule and targeted for
intramuscular injection. The technology platform behind the Unitract Clinical Range can be used with either a fixed
{staked) needle configuration or with attachable needles up to 1 and !/ 2 inches in length. A range of attachable
needle configurations has been developed, including one Unitract variant suitable for use with standard luer slip or
luer lock cannulas (needles).

As with all Unitract ImL or Unifill prefilled syringes, the Unitract Clinical Range to be available in 3mL barrel
sizes or larger will include automatic and fully integrated safety features, An audible-tactile click will signal the
automatic activation of the safety mechanism and the delivery of the full dose, Operators can control the speed at
which the needle is withdrawn directly from the body into the barrel of the syringe by relieving thumb or finger
pressure on the plunger. Upon the full retraction of the needle into the barrel, the plunger is loclked in place to enable
convenient disposal and to prevent syringe reuse, product {ampering or needle re-exposure.

Novel Device for Targeted Organ Delivery

Unilife has also developed its first novel, specialized device for the administration of a drug to a target organ.
Umilife is collaborating with a pharmaceutical company to develop this device for use with a target drug scheduled to
enter clinical trials during the 2012 fiscal year. Unilife may also develop other novel devices for targeted organ
delivery in conjunction with pharmaceutical companies.

Commercial Relationships
Sanofi

We started to collaborate with Sanofi in 2003 for the development of the Unifill syringe as a next-generation
drug delivery safety device. Sanofi is a large, global pharmaceutical company, whose products span multiple
therapeutic areas, including cardiovascular diseases, thrombosis, ancology, metabolic diseases, internal medicine and
vaccines. We believe that Sanofi is currently the world’s largest purchaser of prefilled syringes.

We have signed an exclusive licensing agreement with Sanofi. Under the exclusive licensing agreement, we
have granted Sanofi an exclusive Lcense to certain of cur intellectual property in order and solely to develep, in
collaboration with us, the Unifill syringe for use in and sale to the prefilled syringe market within those therapeutic
areas agreed upon between us, and a non-exclusive license outside those therapeutic areas that are exclusive to Sanofi
or after the expiration of the exclusive license with Sanofi.

We and Sanofi have agreed on a list of therapeutic drug classes that are exclusive to Sanofi. These areas include
the full therapeutic classes of antithrombotic agents and vaccines and an additional four smaller subgroups that fall
within other therzpeutic classes that we believe represent new market epportunities in the pharmaceutical use of
prefilled syringes. Sanofi will retain the exclusive right to negotiate to purchase the product within these designated
therapeutic drug classes until June 30, 2014, subject to the extension described below.

Pursnant to the exclusive licensing agreement, Sanofi paid to us a 10.0 million euro upfront one-time fee in
2008, The exclusive license granted thereunder has an initial term expiring en June 30, 2014. If, during the term of
the exclusive license, Sanofi has purchased the Unifill syzringe for use with a particular drug preduct, Sznofi will
receive a ten-vear extension of the term of the exclusive license within the therapeutic sub-class in which that drug is
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marketed. The extension will be reduced to five years if Sanofi does not sell a minimum of 20 million units of the
product in any of the first five years of such ten-year extension period.

Under the exclusive licensing agreement, we are not precluded from using certain of our intellectual property to
develop, license and sell any products in any market other than the ready-to-fill syringe market, or from entering into
licensing or other business arrangements with other pharmaceutical companies for the ready-to-fill syringe market
outside those therapeutic areas that are exclusive to Sanofi, or after the expiration of the exclusive license with
Sanofi. If we grant a Jicense to a third party in respect of the ready-to-fill syringe market, then we are required to pay
Sanofi 70% of any access, license or other upfront fee received from such third party for access to purchase the
products until our payments to Sanofi have totaled 10.0 million euros, following which we are required to pay 30%
of such fees we receive through the end of the initial exclusivity period. We are also required to pay Sanofi an annual
royalty payment of 5% of the revenue generated from any sale of the Unifill syringe to third parties, up to a
maximum amount of 17,0 million euros in such royalty payments.

On June 30, 2009, we signed an industrialization agreemient with Sanofi. The industrizlization agreement sets
forth the terms for the collaboration between the parties to design, develop, scale up and industrialize the Unifill
syringe, including the timetable and milestones for the industrialization program. Under the industrialization
agreement, Sanofi agreed to make payments of 17.0 million euros to us based on milestones we achieved in our
industrialization program. The industrialization program began in July 2008 and was completed in June 2011, with
the initial supply of the Unifill syringe to Sanofi in July 2011.

The supply agreemenit, if completed, will provide that Sanofi and its affiliates will purchase the final product
exclusively from us, and the indusirialization agreement provides that we are not required to commit more than 30%
of our expected instzlled production capacity to Sanofi and its affiliates for the 12 months following the receipt of a

urchase order. Orders from Sanofi, that will exceed the 30% capacity limit will require up to a maximum of
24 months Jead time before we are required to commence delivery of that order.

Pursuant to the industrialization agreement, if we agree to, or propose to agree to, a change of control with a
third party, we must give written notice to Sanofi, who will be entitled, within five business days, to make an offer on
at least equivalent terms. In the absence of an improved change of control proposal, we must accept the matching
offer of Sanofi subject to sharcholder approval. If we receive an improved change of control offer from the third
party, then we must give further notice to Sanofi for it to make a further matching offer. In addition, if during the
term of the industrialization agreement, a change of control that does not involve Sanofi, or its affiliates, obtaining
control of the company (i} is not recommended by our board of directors, (ii} will cause harm to Sanofi, as defined in
the agreement or (iii} under which Mr. Alan Shortall, our CEO and director, is not to continue in such capacities for
at least two years after the change of control, then Sanofi will have the right to terminate the industrialization
agreement within ten business days after receiving a notice from us, or after it otherwise becomes aware of the
change of control. Pursuant to the industrialization agreement, a change of control means, in general terms, a change
in the ownership of 50% or more of our shares or the power to determine the majority composition of our board of
directors or any other event that our board determines to be a change of control event.

Other Pharmaceutical Relationships

We are seeking to establish relationships with a number of pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies
regarding the supply and use of the Unifili syringe with their injectable drugs outside of those therapeutic classes
retained by Sanofi. These relationships may include the signing of commercial agreements relating to the sale of the
Unifill syringe, or the provision of exclusive access to the device within designated therapeutic sub-classes in
exchange for upfront fees or royalty payments.

We are also engaging in active discussions with many pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies regarding
the development and use of other proprietary devices within our portfolio of advanced drug delivery systems. These
devices include other primary drug containers within our Unifilt family of ready-to-fill syringes, as well as other
patient-self injection systems, drug reconstitution systems and target organ delivery devices. We expect to enter into
development programs with some of these pharmaceutical companies to design, develop and supply devices for
initial use in scheduled clinical trials for target pipeline drugs. Subject to the commercizal approval of these drug-
device combination products by regulatory agencies, we intend to enter into long-term supply agreements for the
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production and sale of these devices to the pharmaceutical company. These partnerships may also include the
payment of exclusivity or access fees to enable the pharmaceutical company to generate brand differentiation within
a therapeutic drug class against other brand-name, generic or biosimilar competitors,

As of September 1,2011, Unilife had commenced the supply of the Unifill syringe to one additional U.S. based
pharmaceutical company. In addition, we have developed a novel device for targeted organ delivery that has already
been selected by a large global pharmaceutical company for use in upeoming clinical trials in conjunction with a
pipeline biolegic.

Manufacturing

Our center of operations is a state-of-the-art manufacturing facility located in York, Pennsylvania. This
state-of-the-art facility serves as an integrated center for device innovation, bringing together the people, production
systems, design expertise and quality processes necessary to design and develop best-in-class drug delivery systems.
Designed by architects who have substantial experience in designing facilities used to develop, produce and supply
medical devices, the FDA-registered site plays a key role in ensuring that we comply with stringent internal and
industry standards for quality and reliability.

Our 165,000-square-foot site includes eleven Class 7 and Class 8 clean rooms totzling 40,000 square feet in size.
Envirenmental factors, including temperature, moisture and particulates, are tightly controlled. Additicnal features
include a “Water for Injection’ system, bio-analytical and quality laboratories, a product development center, a
machine shop and a 20,000-square-foot warehouse. The facility gives us the capacity tc meet the immediate
requirements of cur pharmaceutical companies, and to progressively expand in line with the development and
commercial launch of a series of drug-device combination products.

Activities undertaken at the site include device design, rapid prototyping, pilot and commercial preduction, bio-
analytical testing, packaging, quality assurance and supply chain, All activities at Unilife are guided by advanced
business systems, such as SAP ERP, that complement those of pharmaceutical companies. Our Quality Management
Systam is fully certified to ISO 13485 and operates in compliance with 21 CRF 210/211 for pharmaceuticzls and 21
CFR 820 for medical devices.

We source the production of components and other raw materials utilized in the production of our proprietary
devices under written contracts with a variety of suppliers, all of which specialize in the medical device and
pharmaceutical sectors, These components are shipped to our York, Pennsylvania facility for quality review,
assembly, qualification and packaging.

Due to an initial requirement for only limited production velumes of components which comprise the Unifill
syringe, we currently receive a majority of components, such as rubber seals and glass barrels, from a single-source
supplier. To support the industrialization program for this product and further strengthen our supply chain in the
long-term, we intend to establish, wherever feasible, a dual-source strategy for the production of key components,
raw materials and related services, The companies we expect to appoint for the preduction and supply of items and
related services pertaining to the Unifill syringe all have an estabiished presence in the international drug delivery
market, with the majority having facilities in North America and/or Europe. It is our intention to wtilize United States
made components whenever possible.

All of our proprietary devices are assembled by us at our York, PA facility utilizing pilot or commercial
assembly systems. The automated assembly system used to manufacture our Unitract 1ml. syringes has an optimum
capacity of up to 30 millon units per year, and was fully designed, developed, built and qualificd by our in-house
team. The development of the automated assembly lines used to manufacture the Unifill syringe was outsourced to
Mikron Assembly Technology, an estzblished industry specialist. The automated assembly system supplied to us by
Mikron and now located at our York, PA facility can support the conimercial production of up ta 60 million units per
year of the Unifill syringe. Additional assembly lines, which will be ordered in line with customer demands, are
targeted to have zn annual manufacturing capacity of approximately 150 million units per year.

16




Table of Contents

Case 2:13-cv-05101-MMB Document 1 Filed 08/30/13 Page 56 of 141

Sales and Marketing

Qur primary target customers ate pharmaceutical and bictechnology companies which utilize cur advanced drug
delivery systems to contain injectable drugs and vaccines supplied in a liquid stable or lyophilized form for
reconstitution at the point of delivery. These devices are targeted for use within healthcare facilities or by patients
that self-administer presctiption medication. We are at various stages of discussion with a number of pharmaceutical
companies related to entering commercial contracts regarding the development, commercial supply and exclusive use
of a variety of our devices. .

For the Unifill syringe, we expect the supply of initial production batches to pharmaceutical companies, will be
utilized for compatibility and stability stndies with target drugs and vaccines. These compatibility and stability
studies seek to determine that materials within the device fluid path are compatible with the designated drug to attain
a shelf-life of two years or more. This data is utilized in the filing of regulatory applications by the pharmaceutical
companies seeking approval of the drug-device combination product. We expect to enter into supply agreements with
pharmaceutical companies relating to the use of the Unifill syringe with specific drugs and vaccines during the
course of compatibility and stability studies to facilitate the building of product inventory in anticipation of
commercizal launch of the drug-device combination product.

For other pipeline drug delivery devices in our portfolio, we expect to enter into development agreements with a
pharmaceutical company under which they will provide funding to suppert its industrialization or customization for
use with a target drug or vaccine,

The majority of the pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies with whom we are in active discussions are
multinational companies with headquarters located in the United States, Burope or Asia, In the majority of cases,
these pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies are large multinational erganizations which are ranked as being
among the top twenty in the world. The majority of these pharmaceutical companies specialize in the development of
novel (brand-name) drugs and vaccines, However we may also enter into relationships with pharmaceutical
manufacturers of generic or biosimilar drugs, which also recognize the commercial opportunities of utilizing our
proprietary devices (o generate market differentiation against etther the brand-name, other generic or biosimilar
competition.

We expect the pharmaceutical compeny to be primarily responsible for the sale, marketing and clinical use of
the combination drug-delivery device to target government agencies, healthcare facilities or patients who self-
administer prescription medication within indicated therapgutic drug classes. We expect to support pharmaceutical
companies in the development of documentation or marketing material pertaining to the recommended clinical use of
the device with the contained drug or vaccine.

We may also enter into agreements for the supply of the Unitract ImL syringes directly to pharmacentical
companies for use with injectable drug products which are supplied in a vial and marketed in a kit format. We also
distribute our Unitract 1mL syringes within the United States via distributors which specialize in target markets such
as long-term and acute care healthcare facilities. We are also examining opportunities to enter into relationships for
our Unitract LmlL syringes with group purchasing organizations, or GPQs, which secure competitive pricing for items
such as syringes on behalf of members such as acute-care hospitals. Over the past decade, many GPOs have
introduced programs that encourage the expedient evaluation and selection of innovative products developed by
smaller companies. However, we do not expect to fully penetrate the acute-care hospital market until we complete
the line of Unitract Clinical Range of larger sizes and access a larger network of customer support representatives
and sales agents.

Quiside of the United States, we have distributors to sell our Unitract 1ml syringes in India, China, Japan and
Taiwan where they are applying for regulatory approval. We also expect te appoint other distributors within other
international liealtlicare markets such as Western Furope and the Asia-Pacific region. Furthermore, we intend to
review opportunities to coilaborate with governments seeking to examine the use of our Unitract 1ml. syringes as a
means of helping to prevent the re-use, sharing and unsafe disposal of non-sterile syringes by IDUs.

‘We have a small internal team focused on the commercial development, strategic marketing, clinical support and
sgle of our proprietary devices to pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies, Many members of this team have
strong industry expertise and deep relationships within the pharmaceutical marlcet, which are utilized to
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generate and progress commercial discussions. In addition, we also receive direct enquiries or Request for Proposals
from pharmaceutical companies regarding the potential use of our devices with their target drugs, In some instances,
we expect to be approached by pharmaceutical companies with unmet needs for a drug delivery system, whereby we
will develop and customize the device to address the specific molecular and patient requirement of the target drug.
We also attend 2 number of industry events, trade shows and conferences, and advertise within selected industry
media publications whereby we exhibit, network and promote our products and services to prospective custormers.

Intellectual Propgrty

Patents, trademarks and other proprietary rights are very important to our business. We alsorely on a
combination of trade secrets and manufacturing know-how to protect our intellectual property. We hold numerous
patents and patent applications covering our products and technologies. Our focus is to safeguard the intellectual
property surtounding our devices, manufacturing processes and other related technologies to protect not only our
position, but that of our strategic partners and customers.

As of July 2011, we had 45 issued patents relating to our safety syringe and primary drug container platforms
across 19 countries including the United States and China. We have filed 66 patent applications in 23 jurisdictions,
including Europe, where the applications are reviewed by the 30 countries that participate under the Madrid Protocol.
We have filed a significant number of patent applications that are now pending in other countries covered under the
Patent Cooperation Treaty.

Our patents relating to our safety syringe technologies expire at various dates between 20 18 and 2030. Patents
relating to the Unifill syringe are expected to expire by 2030. We also enter into non-disclosure agreements with
certain vendors and customers. It is also our policy to have employees sign confidentiality, non-compete and
intellectual property assignment agreements. '

We classify our patents and patent applications as they relate to particular product categories including 1mL
insulin and safe syringes with an attached needle; clinical syringes which include larger sizes and interchangeable
luer needles; and our Unifill syringe. Many of the features claimed in the insulin and safe syringes patents, such as
the mechanism allowing automatic and controlied needle retraction within zn integrated medical device, also apply to
our other safety syringe products, including the Unifill syringe. Some key patents covering countries such as
Australia, the United States and Europe, as well as some of our international patent applications, are described below:

Docament Patent Number Application Number Publication Number Date

%ustralia PATENT 731159

2518360 CA2518360

04721775.7 EP1608421

TP2006520219 -
Japan PATENT 4652326 652326
alwan PATENT 253944
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Document Pai Application Number

Publication Numbe

Europe

us

PATENT ZL
GG8H0TG

Date

Patent Number Application Number Publication Number

WO 2006/108243
TPA - PCT/AU2006/000516 (15.10.20006)

1l
06721397

2008-505695 (04-09-2008)

WO 2009/003234 A1
1.200

CT/AU2008/000971
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‘We have registered trademarks including Unilife, Unitract and Unifill in a number of key countries and regions
including the United States,

Government Regulation

The development, manufacture, sale and distribution of medical devices are subject to comprehensive
government ragulation, Our medical devices and manufacturing operations are subject to regulation under the
Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act, or the FDC Act, as implementad and enforced by the FDA and varicus other
federal and state agencies and are also subject to regulation by foreign governmental agencies, These laws and
regulations govern the development, testing, manufacturing, labeling, advertising, marketing and distribution and
market surveillance of medical devices.

FDA’s Premarket Clearance and Approval Requirements

Unless an exemption applies, each medical device we wish to distribute commercially in the United States will
require either prior 510{k} clearance or premarket approval from the FDA. The I'DA classifies medical devices
intended for human use into three classes; Class I, Class T and Class IIT. Class 1 or Class 11 devices require the
manufacturer to submit to the FDA a premarket notification requesting permission to commercially distribute the
device. This process is generally known as 510(k) clearance, Class I devices require premarket approval. Our
clinical ranges of syringes, including our Unitract 1mL syringe, are Class II devices. Our Unifill syringe does not
require 510(k) clearance because it will be sold to drug manufacturers in its component parts for use as a primary
packaging container,

There is 2 different regulatory process that will apply to our Unifill syringe because it will not be distributed as a
device. Tt will be used as a primary container by drug manufacturers to provide drugs in a prefilled format. In the
case of the Unifill syringe, it is the responsibility of the pharmaceutical company who will use the Unifill syringe for
its drug to obtain final product approvals, either by submitting a new drug application or abbreviated new drug
application. In order to support the pharmaceutical company’s application, we intend to create what is known as a
Drug Master File (“DMFEF""}., A DMF is a submission to the FDA that may be used to provide information about
facilities, processes or articles used in the manufacturing, packaging and storing of one or more human drugs. The
DMF will define the manufacturing and safety characteristics of the Unifill syringe while protecting proprietary
information regarding its technical design.

510(k) Clearance Pathway

When applying for 510(k) clearance, we niust submit a premarket notification demonstrating that our proposed
device is substantially equivalent to another legally marketed product (i.e., that it has the same intended use and that
it is as safe and effective as a legally marketed, or predicate device and does not raise different questions of safety or
effectiveness than does a predicate device). According to FDA regulations, the FDA is required to clear or deny a
510(k) premarket notification within 90 days of submission of the application, or 30 days in the case of an
abbreviated 510(k) application that may be filed for product line extensions. As & practical matter, 510{k) clearance
often takes between three and twelve months.

We received 310(k) clearance for our Unitract 1mL insulin syringe in Octobar 2008 that covered the production
of the device by a contractor outside the United States. We received 510(k) clearance for the production of our
Unitract ImL msulin syringe at our Pernsylvania manufacturing facility in March 2010, We received 510(k)
clearance for the production of our Unitract 1mL turberculin syringe at our Peunsylvania manufacturing facility in
September 2010, '

Premarket Approval Pathway -

A premarket approval application inust be submitted to the FDA if the device cannot be cleared through the 510
(k) process. A premarket approval application must be supported by extensive data, including, but not limited to,
technical, preclinical, clinical trials, manufacturing and labeling to demonstrate to the FDA’s satisfaction the safety
and effectiveness of the device. To the best of our knowledge, this process does not apply to our current range of
products.
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Pervasive and Confinuing Regulation
After a device is placed on the market, numerous regulatory requiremnents apply. These include:

= quality system regulations, or QSR, which require manufacturers, including third-party manufacturers, to
follow stringent design, testing, control, documentation and other quality assurance procedures during ail
aspects of the manufacturing process;

« labeling regulations and FD A prohibitions against the promotion of products for uncleared, unapproved or
“off label™ uses;

+ medical device reporting regulations, which require that manufacturers report to the FDA if their device may
have caused or conirtbuted to a death or serious injury or malfunctioned in a way that would likely cause or
contribute to a death or serious injury if the malfunction were to ccecur; and

» post-market surveiliance regulations, which apply when necessary to protect the public health or to provide
additional safety and effectiveness data for the device.

The FDA has broad post-market and regulatory enforcement powers. We are subject to unannounced inspections
by the FDA to determine our compliance with the QSR and other regulations, and these inspections may include the
manufacturing facilities of our manufacturing subcontractors.

Failure to comply with applicable regulatory requirements can result in enforcement action by the FDA, which
may include any or all of the following sanctions:

* fines, injunctions, consent decrees and civil penalties;

= recall or seizure of our products;

* operating restrictions, partial suspensions or total shutdown of production;

« refusing our requests for 510(k) clearance or premariet approval of new products or new intended uses;
. Withdrawing 510(k) clearance or premarket approvals that are already granted; and

s criminal prosecution.

Regulation in the European Union and Australia

The European Union has adopted nomerous directives regulating the design, manufacture, clinical Lrials,
labeling and adverse event reporting for medical devices. Devices that comply with the requirements of the relevant
directive will be entitled to bear CE conformity marking, indicating that the device conforms with the essential
requirements of the applicable directives and, accordingly, can be commercially distributed throughout the member
states of the European Union. The method of agsessing conformity vartes depending on the type and class of the
product, but normally involves a combination of self-assessment by the manufacturer and a third party assessment by
a “Notified Body” which is an independent and neutral institution appointed by a country to conduct the conformity
assessment. This third-party assessment may consist of an audit of the manufacturer’s quality system and specific
testing of the manufacturer’s device. An assessment by a Notifted Body in one member state of the European Union
is required in order for a manufacturer to commercially distribute the product throughout these countries. ISO 9001
and ISO 13845 are voluntary harmonized standards. Compliance establishes the presumption of conformity with the
essential requirements for CE Marking. In July 2009, we received our ISO 13485:2003 quality system certification.
Our certification includes the design, development, production and distribution or sterile syringes and insulin
syringes.

We have successfully completed a Notified Body audit to allow our Unitract syringes to bear the CE mark
resulting in CE certification for our Unitract insulin and tuberculin 1ml. syringes.

In Australia, the Therapeutic Goods Adminisiration, or TGA, is responsible for administering the Australian
Therapeutics Goods Act. The Office of Devices, Blood and Tissues is the department within the TG A responsible for
medical devices, The Australian Register of Therapeutic Goods, or ARTG, controls the legal supply of therapeutic
goods in Australia, The ARTG is the register of information about therapeutic goods for human use that
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may be imported, supplied in, or exported from Australia. Any use of an unapproved medical device in humans, even
in pilot trials, requires an exemption from the requirement for inclusion on the ARTG. US manufacturers seeking to
market product in Australia must acquire CE certification and lodge manufacturer evidence, including the CE
certificate znd a Declaration of Conformity to Australian Requirements, with the TGA. The lodging of this
information with the TGA is completed by an Australian sponsor, with the assistance/support of the mamifacturer.
Upon TGA acceptance of the menufacturer evidence, the Australian sponsor/manufacturer must create a medical
device inclusion in the ARTG and only is then able to release USA-manufactured product in Australia. Qur only
product that is included on the ARTG is our Unitract 1mL syringe that was previously manufactured for us in China.
During June 2010, we received our CE certification for U.S -manufactured stock of this product. We are currently
completing the necessary registration and listing documents for sale of this product in Australia.

With regard to the regulatory process in the Buropean Union and Australia for the Unifill syringe, as in the case
of the U.S., it is the responsibility of the pharmaceutical company who will use the Unifill syringe for its drug to
obtain final product approvals.

Other Regulations

We are also subject to various federal, state and local laws and regulations, both in the United States and other
international territories where we conduct business, relating to such matters as safe working conditions, laboratory
and manufacturing practices and the use, handling and disposal of hazardous or potenually hazardous substances
used in connection with our research and development work. Although we believe we are in compliance with these
laws and regulations in all material respects, we cannot provide assurance that we will not be required to incur
significant costs to comply with environmental laws or regulations in the future.

We are subject to various federal, state and local laws in the United States targeting fraud and abuse in the
healtheare industry, which generally prohibit us from soliciting, offering, receiving or paying any remuneration in
order to induce the crdering or purchasing of items or services that are in any way paid for by Medicare, Medicaid or
other government-sponsored healthcare programs, Healthcare costs have been and continue to be a subject of study,
investigation and regulation by governmental agencies and legislative bodies around the world. The U.S. federal
government continues to scrutinize potentially fraudulent practices affecting Medicare, Medicald and other
government healthcare programs. Payers have become more influential in the marketplace and increasingly are
focused on drug and medical device pricing, appropriate drug and medical device utilization and the quality and costs
of healthcare. Violations of fraud and abuse-related laws are punishable by criminal or civil sanctions, including
substantial fines, imprisonment and exclusion from participation in healthcare programs such as Medicare and
Medicaid and health programs outside the United States.

Competition

The healthcare equipment, pharmaceutical and medical device industry sectors in which we operate are highly
competilive, We compete with many companies, both public and private, that range in size from small, highly
focused businesses to large diversified multinational manufacturers of healthcare and pharmaceutical equipnient, as
more fully described below. Some of the large and established companies we are aware of which are active in the
injectable drug delivery device market include Becton Dickinson (“BD"), SCHOTT forma vitrum AG (“Schott”),
Baxter Biopharma, B. Braun, Gerresheimer Biinde GmbH {“Gerresheimer”), Terumo, West Pharma, Ypsomed and
Owen Mumford, We believe that collectively, these companies represent the significant majority of total revenues for
this market, with BD having the largest share. Most of these companies are larger and better-capitalized than we are
and have an extensive base of pharmaceutical companies. However, we are aware of very few, if any, other
companies, that have developed a broad and diversified portfolio of primary drug containers and other advanced drug
delivery systems that are suitable for drugs and vaccines supplied in either a liquid stable or recenstitution form for
injection as Unilife’s,

Ready-to-Fill (Prefilled Syringes)

We do not believe there are any other coinpanies that offer a reacy-to-fill syringe with safety features which are
fully integrated within the glass barrel. However there is a highly concentrated market for the production of standard
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ready-to-fill syringes for supply to pharmaceutical manufacturers. We are aware of five companies which specialize
in the production and supply of glass ready-to-fill syringes. These companies are BD, Gerresheimer, MGlas AG,
Schott and Nuova Ompi. We estimate the market conceniration rate for these five companics to be approximately
05%, We believe BD’s market share to be in excess of 50%, as it has supply relationships with most pharmaceutical
companies and contract manufacturing organizations. Of these five aforementioned companies, we believe that BD is
the only one which alse markets and supplies encillary safety products for attachment onto standard prefilled
syringes {o assist pharmaceuntical companies in their compliance with needle stick prevention laws. We are aware of
another specialist supplier of ancillary safety products, Safety Syringes Inc, which has contracts with a number of
pharmaceutical manufacturers.

Hypodermic Clinical Syringes Used with Vials

The global market for hypodermic clinical (non-pre-filled) syringes is highly competitive, with at least 50
manufacturers located across North America, Europe and the Asia-Pacific. The market for clinical safety syringes is
relatively less competitive, yet highly concentrated. We believe BD is the largest global supplier of clinical safety
syringes. Other companies which compete in this market sector include Retractable Technologies, Inc, Covidien and
Smiths Medical. All of these companies offer a full range of clinical safety syringes, operate a strong sales,
distribution and customer support network, and have existing supply relationships with major healthcare buying
groups.

Auto-Injectors

The global market for patient self-injection devices such as auto-injectors is relatively consolidated, with BD
and a handful of other companies including Ypsomed, Owen Mumford and SHL Group holding the majority of
market share,

Subcutaneous Pump Infusion Systems

The global market for subcutansous drug infusion systems targeted for the administration of large volume,
highly viscous biclogics (outside of the diabetes class) is emerging. We are not aware of any company that
commercially markets these systems in a volume size of SmL or larger. Companies which are active in the more
general market for patch pump infusion systems targeted for use with insulin include large established companies
such 23 BD and Medtronic, as well as smaller companies such as Insulet.

Research and Development

During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, we invested approximately $9.6 million and
$10.9 million, respectively, on research and development of our technelogies, Research and development costs
include activities related to the research, development, design, testing, and manufacturing of prototypes of our
products. They also include clinical activities and regulatory costs as well as expenses associated with certain
consultants engaged in research and development activities along with a portion of the overhead costs we incur to
operate our manufacturing facility.

Employees

As of Septemnber 1,2011, we had 129 employees and associates, of whom 100 are engaged in cperations
activities including research and development, quality assurance and manufacturing activities, 7 are engaged in sales,
marketing and clinical activities and 22 are engaged in finance, legal and other administrative functions. Most of our
employees and all of our executive officers are located at our York, Pennsylvania facility. A small number of our
employees, mainly focused on research and development, are located in Radnor, Pennsylvania and Australia. None
of our employees are represented by a labor union or covered by a collective bargaining agreement. We consider our
relations with our employees to be good.
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Corporate History

Unilife Corporation was incorporated in Delaware on July 2, 2009 as a wholly-owned subsidiary of UMSL., As
we describe in more detail under “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations — Redomiciliation.”, on January 27, 2010, Unilife Corporation became the parent company of UMSL
upon completion of the redomiciliation and UMSL’s shareholders and option holders exchanged their interests in
UMSL for equivalent interests in Unilife Corporation. Our principal executive offices are located at 250 Cross Farm
Lane, York, Pennsylvania 17406. Our telephone number is +1 717 384 3400.

UMSL was incorporated on June 28, 1985, in South Australia, Australia. The registered office of UMSL is
located at Suite 3, Level 11, 1 Chifley Square, Sydney NSW 2000. Originally known as Musgrave Block Holdings
Limited, UMSL. acquired all of the issued shares of Unitract Pty Limited in November 2002, and changed its name to
Unitract Limited {now Unilife Medical Sclutions Limited}, listed on the Australian Securities Exchange, or ASX
under the ticker “UNT”’ and continued the business operations of Unitract Pty Limited and the development of
Unitract Pty Limited’s retractable syringe project. In January 2007, in order to obtain a manufacturing presence in the
United States, UMSL acquired all the stock of Integrated BioSciences, Inc., a Pennsylvania-based company, which in
February 2009 changed its corporate name to Unilife Medical Solutions, Inc. At the time of its acquisition by UMSL,
Integrated BioSciences, Inc. was in the business of conlract manufacturing of syringes for third parties and
developing automated assembly equipment.

Financial Information about Geographical Areas

See note 3 to our consolidated financizl statements for information regarding our sales by geographic area,

Available Information

‘We maintain an internet website at www.unilife.com . Gur annual report on Form 10-X, quarterly reports on
Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports are available free of charge through the
“Investor Relations” portion of our website, as soon as reasonably practicable after they are filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission. The information posted on our website is not incorporated into this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

Directors and Executive Officers

The following table sets forth the name, age and position of each of our directors and executive officers,

Name Age Position

Slavko James Joseph Bosnjak 62 Chairman and Director

Alan Shortall 57 Director and Chief Executive Officer

John Lund 45  Director

William Galle i 71  Director

Jeff Carter 53 Director

Mary Katherine Wold 58 Director

Marc S. Firestone 51 Director

Ramin Mojdehbakhsh 49 Chief Operating Officer and Executive Vice President
R. Richard Wieland II 66  Chief Financial Officer and Executive Vice President
Marlk V. Iminpietro 58 Vice President of Quality and Regulatory Affairs
Stephen Allan 37 Vice President of Marketing and Communications

I. Christopher Naftzger 44 Vice President, General Counsel, Corporate Secretary and

Chief Compliance Officer

Biographical Summaries

Slavko James Joseph Bosnjak. Mr. Bosnjak has served as a director of UMSL since February 2003 and of
Unilife Corporation since November 2009 and as Chairman of the board of UMSL since April 2006 and of Unilife
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Corporation since November 2009, Mr. Bosnjak has been & co-owner and director of the Le Meridien Lav Hotel in
Split, Croatia since 2002 and is chairman and co-founder of Ultimate Outdocr Lid., an Australian outdocr advertising
company, Mr. Bosnjak is chairman, and has an indirect interest through the family company Bosnjak Investment
Group Pty 1td, of Chiron Commercial Vehicles Pty Litd and its subsidiaries, situated in Malaysia, & company which
manufactures bus bodies for export to Austrzlia. Mr Bosnjak was a director of Bosnjak Holdings Pty Litd and its
subsidiaries including Westhus Pty Ltd. from 1975 to 2001 and the chairman of Westbus Pty Ltd, between 1990 and
2001. He has also held positions on Commonwealth and New South Wales government advisory bodies, including
the Greater Western Sydney Economic Development Board, and the GROW Employment Council. Mr. Bosnjak also
served as the Chairman of the Tourism Council of Australia and Bus 2000 Ltd, which coordinated bus services for
the Sydney 2000 Olympic Games. Mr. Bosnjak was awarded an Order of Australia Medal in 1994 for his services to
transport and the community, and also holds an honorary doctorate from the University of Western Sydney for his
services related to employment growth and economic development.

Alan Shortall. Mr. Shortall has served as Chief Executive Officer and director of UMSL since September 2002
and of Unilife Corporation since July 2009. Mr. Shortall founded Uniife in July 2002 and has guided the growth of
Unilife since then. In 2008, the trade magazine Medical Device and Diagnostic Industry named him as one of 100
Notable People in the medical device industry worldwide. Mr. Shortall is the brother of Eugene Shortall, our Senior
Vice President of Business Development. ‘

John Lund. Mr. Lund has served as a director of UMSL and Unilife Corperation since November 2009,
Mr, Lund has also served as managing partner of M&A Holdings, LLC, a private consulting company since July
2003, and as Vice President Finance and Controller of E-tewards, Inc., an internet market research company since
Fehruary 2009. Mr. Lund also served as Vice President and Controller of Nexstar Broadcasting Group, Inc., a
NASDAQ listed television broadcasting company, from March 2008 to Nevember 2008, Vice President of Finance
and Corperate Controller of LQ Management, LL.C (LaQuinta) from November 2006 to March 2008, and Corporate
Controller of ExcellerateHRO from January 2005 to October 2006. Prior to that, Mr. Lund held Centroller and Chief
Financial Officer positions for various companies, and was a Manager at KPMG.

William Galle. Mr. Galle has served as a director of UMSL since June 2008 and of Unilife Corporation since
November 2009. Mr. Galle was also an independent director of American Marketing Complex in New York City
from October 2007 to December 2009, Since 2009, Mr, Galle has been affiliated with Bradley Woods, a 40 year-old
New York City-based independent research and investment banking firm specializing in federal regulatory and
legislative developments impacting substantial investor portfolios. Mr. Galle is President of Diversified Portfolio
Strategies LLC in Washington D.C. since 1993, which provides alternative investment advisory services for
institutions and substantial investors. Mr. Galle is a graduate of Coluinbia University, Ruigers University, and the
New York Institute of Finance.

Jeff Carter. Mr, Carter has served as a director of UMSL since April 2006 and of Unilife Corporation since
November 2009. From February 2005 until January 2009, Mr. Carter served as Chief Financial Officer of UMSL. He
has also served as Company Secretary of UMSL from March 2007 to July 2010. Mr. Carter is a chartered accountant
and holds a master’s degree in applied finance from Macquarie University of Sydney. Mr. Carter was a Chief
Financial Officer of varicus publicly listed healthcare companies prior to joining UMSL. Also, Mr. Carter was
Strategic Planning Manager for Coca-Cola Amatil and Manager Corporate Development International for Santos. He
has international experience with these comnpanies and was formerly a Senior Manager of Touche Ross before
moving into investment banking with Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce,

Mary Katherine Wold, Ms. Wold has served as a director of Unilife Corporation since May 2010, Ms. Wold is
President and Chief Executive Officer of the Church Pension Group, which provides retirement, health, and life
insurance benefits to its clergy and lay employees of the U.S. Episcopal Church. Ms. Wold served as Senior Vice
President of Finance from 2007 to 2009, Senior Vice President of Tax and Treasury from 2005 to 2007 and Vice
President of Tax from 2002 to 2005, of Wyeth, a NYSE-listed pharmaceutical company, which was acquired by
Pfizer in October 2009, Prior thereto, Ms, Wold spent 17 years with the international law firm of Shearman &
Sterling based in New York, specializing in international tax planning for multinational corporations and in the tax
aspects of mergers and acquisitions, capital markets and private equity transactions. Ms. Wold received her law
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degree from the University of Michigan and her Bachelor of Arts degree from Hamline University in St. Paul,
Minnesota.

Marc S. Firestone, Mr. Firestone has served as a director of Unilife Corporation since Tuly 2010, Mr, Firestone
serves as Executive Vice President and General Counsel for Kraft Foods Inc., a Fortune 100 company. Prior to his
position at Kraft Foods, Mr. Firestone held senior executive positions for Philip Morris Companies and its
subsidiaries, including as Senior Vice President and General Counsel, Philip Merris International, and Senior Vice
President of Regulatory Affairs, Phillip Morris Companies. Before joining Philip Morris, he was an attorney with
Arnold & Porter in Washington, D.C, He holds a juris doctorate from Tulane University School of Law in New
Orleans, and a bachelor’s degree from Washington & Lee Unjversity in Virginia,

Ramin Mojdehbakhsh. Mr. Mojdehbakhsh has served as Chief Operating Officer and Executive Vice President
since February 201 1. Mr. Mojdehbakhsh served as Vice President and General Manager of B> Pharmaceutical
Systems, North America between 2008 and 2010 and Worldwide Vice President of Research and Development, BD
Medical between 2002 and 2008. Dr. Mojdehbakhsh received a Ph.D. in Computer Science from the University of
Minnesota, Minneapolis, MN and his MBA from Kellogg Graduate School of Management, Northwestern
University, Evanston, Tllinois.

R. Richard Wieland II. Mr. Wieland has served as Chief Financial Officer and Executive Vice President since
June 2010, Mr, Wieland served as Chief Financial Officer of Cytochroma Inc., a privately-held specialty
pharmaceutical company, from May 2008 to May 2009 and served as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer of Advanced Life Sciences Holdings, Inc., a Nasdag-listed clinical-stage biopharmaceutical company, from
Tune 2004 to April 2008. Mr. Wieland obtained his B.A. in Accounting and Economics from Monmouth College and
his M.B.A. from Washington University.

Mark V. lampietro. Mr, Iampieiro has served as Vice President of Quality and Regulatory Affairs of UMSL
since Qctober 2008 and of Unilife Corporation since November 2009, From May 2002 to July 2008, Mr. lampietro
was Vice President of Quality, Regulatory and Clinical Operations at Spherics, Inc., & pharmaceutical manufacturer,
where he managed various phases of quality, regulatory, and clinical programs, Mr, Iampietro holds American
Society for Quality certifications as both a quality and reliability engineer and holds a Bachelor of Science degree in
life sciences with a minor in engineering from Worcester Polytechnic Institute.

Stephen Allan. Mr. Allan has served as Vice President of Marketing and Communications of UMSL since
QOctober 2008 and of Unilife Corporation since November 2009, He served as our Director of Communications from
November 2007 to October 2008 and our Manager of Communications from July 2002 to November 2007, Prior to
joining Unilife, Mr. Allan owned and operated his own Australian public relations firm, which assisted in the
management of media relations and government liaison for industry groups in the transport, tourism and econcmic
development sectors. He managed media liaison activities relating to bus transportation during the Sydney 2000
Olympic Games. He also spent five years as a journalist for various Sydney-based newspaper groups. Mr. Allan
holds a Bachelor of Communications from Charles Sturt University.

J. Christopher Naftzger, Mr, Naftzger has served as Vice President, General Counsel, Corporate Secretary and
Chief Compliance Officer of Unilife Corporation since July 2010. Mr. Naftzger served as Assistant General Counsel
and Assistant Secretary of Chesapeake Corporation, a NYSE-traded packaging company for the pharmaceutical and
healthcare industries, from July 2007 to May 2005 and served as Senior Counsel of Koch Indusiries, Ine., the second
largest privately held company in the U.S ., from June 2006 to June 2007. Prior to joining Koch, Mr. Naftzger was a
partner at Blank Rome LLP, an international Am Law 100 firm. Mr. Naftzger obtained his B.A. in History and
Political Science from Hampden-Sydney College and his J D. from the Willamette University College of Law.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Our business faces many risks. We believe the risks described below are the material risks facing the Company.
However, the risks described below may not be the only risks we face. Additional unkrnown risks or risks that we
currently consider immaterial may also impair our business operations. If any of the events or circumstances
described below actually occurs, our business, financial condition or resuits of operations could suffer, and the
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trading price of our shares of common stock could decline significantly. Investors showld consider the specific risk
factors discussed below, and the other information contained or incorporated by reference herein and the cther
documents that we file from time to time with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Risks Relating to Our Business

We need additional funding to meet our capital needs, Such funding may not be available on favorable terms, if
at all, and may be dilutive to our existing stockholders.

‘We need to obtain additional funding for our product development programs and commercialization efforts. We
cannot provide assurance that we will be able to raise additional funding, if needed, on terms favorable to us, or at
all. If we raise acditional funds from debt financing, we may be obligated to abide by restrictive covenants contained
in the debt financing agreements, which may make it more difficult for us to operate our business. If we raise
additional funds through the issuance of equity securities, our shares of common stock may suffer dilution. If we are
unable to secure additional funding, our abitity to continue our product development and commercialization
programs would be delayed, reduced or eliminated.

We have received an audit report that includes an explanatory paragraph stating that our recurring losses from
operations raise substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern on our 2011 consolidated
financial statements. '

The continuation of our company as a going concern is dependent upon our attaining and maintaining profitable
operations and/or raising additional capital. Our independent registered public accounting firm ineluded, in their
audit report on our consclidated financial statements for the vear ended June 30, 2011, an explanatory paragraph
regarding the substantiai doubt abont cur ability to continue as a going cencern. Our consolidated financial
statements contain additional note disclosures describing our liquidity. As a result of this uncertainty, we may have a
more difficult time obtaining necessary financing.

Ouir success depends in large part on our ability io achieve substantial commercial sales of the Unifill syringe to
customers. If we experience problems or delays in securing favorable agreements to supply the Unifill syringe to
customers, our business, including our abilify to generate significant revenues, will be materially and adversely
affected.

The Unifill syringe is our primary product and, to date, we have derived substantially all of our revenues from
our exclusive licensing and industrialization agreements with Sanofi related to its development. However, we have
completed the industrialization program and our ability to generate significant revenues will now depend on our
ability to nagotiate successfully one or more supply agreements for the Unifill syringe with Sanofi and/or other
pharmaceutical companies and to begin supplying substantial quantities of the product under such agreements. We
cannot predict with certainty if and when we will be able to enter into any supply agreements for the Unifill syringe
or what the terms of any such agreements will be. If we are unable to secure favorabie supply agreements for the
Unifill syringe in a timely manner, our ability to generate significant revenues will be materially and adversely
affected.

We have recently devoted significant attention and resources towards the development of other advanced drug
delivery systems. We cannot assure you that we will be able to complete the development of and successfully
commercialize these systems.

A significant element of our recent strategy focuses on develeping advanced drug delivery systems that deliver
greater benefits to pharmaceutical companies, healthcare workers and patients. These new advanced drug delivery
sysiems are a response to changes in technologies, industry standards and the needs of pharmaceutical companies,
Other device companies, and pharmaceutical companies, are attempting to develop alternative therapies or drug
administration systems such as needle-free or intradermal injection technology for the treatment or prevention of
various diseases. Qur success will depend on developing and commercializing new advanced drug delivery systems
in order to meet the changing conditions of the marketplace. The development of these advanced drug delivery
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systems requires significant research and development, clinical evaluations, regulatory approvals and expenditures of
capital. The results of our product development efforts may be affected by a number of factors, including our ability
to innovate, develop and manufacture new products, complete clinical trials, obtain regulatory approvals and secure
customer orders for these products. In addition, patents obtained by others can preclude or delay our
commercialization of a product. Thete can be no assurance that any products now in development, or that we may
seek to develop in the future, will achieve technological feasibility, obtain regulatory approval or gain market
acceptance, The development of new or improved products, processes or technologies by other companies may
render our products ot proposed products obsolete or less competitive.

We do not expect to be profitable unless and until we negotiate commercial supply agreements for the Unifill
syringe and/or we enter into commercial development agreements and commercial supply agreements with our
pharmaceutical partners for other advanced drug delivery systems.

In addition to the expenses related to the completion of the industrialization program for the Unifill syringe, we
have incurred and will continue to incur significant expenses related te the development of other advanced drug
delivery systems. We will also incur general and administrative expenses related to increasing our manufacturing
operations, expanding our sales and marketing capabilities, seeking regulatory approvals, and complying with the
requirements relsted to being a public company in both the United States and Australia. We will not be profitable
unless we are successful in selling the Unifill syringe and/or developing and cominercializing our other advanced
drug delivery systems.

The Unifill syringe has been designed to be compatible with the drug manufacturing systems currently utilized
by Sanofi, which may hinder our ability to sell the product fo other pharmaceutical customers whose
manufacturing processes may not be compatible with our current product designs.

The Unifill syringe has been designed to be compatible with the drug filling and packaging systems of Sanofi.
To our knowledge, the majority of fill-finish lines are designed and operated in a similar way, However, while the
standard glass barrels to be used for the Unifill syringe are also currently utilized by most pharmaceutical companies,
the specific processes used by other pharmaceutical companies to fill, manufacture or package prefilled syringes with
zn injectable drug product may vary from those of Sanofi. Furthermore, pharmaceutical companies may in some
cages require the use of materials which are biocompatible with a particular drug compound and to which we do not
have access. Such events may require design, material or process changes to our product, or restrict our abilify to
enter into supply relationships with other pharmaceutical companies and accordingly, may have a material adverse
effect on our results of operations and finencial condition.

We may encounter difficulties managing our growth, which could materially harm our business.

We have rapidly expanded our operations, including our research and development, product development,
regulztory, manufacturing, sales, marketing and administrative functions. This expansion has placed, and is expected
to continue to place, a significant strain on our management, operational and financial resources, To manage our
growth and to develop and commercialize our products, we will be required to improve existing, and imnplement new,
operational and financial systems, procedures and controls and expand, train and manage our growing employee
base, In addition, we will need to manage relationships with various manvfacturers, suppliers, customers and other
organizations, Our failure to accomplish zny of these tasks could materially harm our business.

We depend on vur executive officers and key personnel and the loss of them could adversely affect our business.

Qur success depends upon the efforts and abilities of our executive officers and other key personnel, particularly
Mr. Alan Shertall, our Chief Executive Qfficer, and Dr. Ramin Mojdeh, our Chief Operating Officer, to provide
strategic direction, manage our operations and maintain a tohesive and stable environment. Although we have
employment agreements with Mr. Shortall, Dr. Mojdeh and other key personnel, as well as incentive compensation
plans that provide various economic incentives for them to remain with us, these agreements and incentives may not
be sufficient to tetain them. Qur ability to operate successfully and manage our potential future growth also depends
significantly upon our ability to attract, retain and motivate highly skilled and qualified
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research, technical, clinical, regulatory, sales, marketing, managerial and financizl persennel. We face intense
competition for such personnel, and we may not be able {o attract, retain and motivate these individuals. The loss of
our executive officers or other key personnel for any reason or our inability to hire, retain and motivate additional
qualified petsonnel in the future could prevent us from sustaining or growing our business. In addition, we have a
limited history of operations nnder our current officers and directors. Our officers have not worked together for an
extensive length of time. If for any reason ocur management members cannot work efficiently as a team, our business
will be adversely affected.,

We will continue to incur significant costs as a vesult of being a public company in both the United States and
Australia.

We are subject to the periodic reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or
the Exchange Act. Being a public reporting company in the United States entails significant expense, including costs
required for us to comply with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. In addition, because our shares of commen stock are
also listed on the Australian Securities Exchange (“ASX") in the form of CDIs, we are also required to file financial
information and make certain other filings with the ASX, Our status as a reporting company in both the United States
and Australia makes some activities more time-consuming and costly and causes us to incur legal, accounting and
other expenses that are higher than thiose that are typically incurred by companies that are subject to only one
reporting authority.

Our manufacturing facilities and the manufacturing facilities of our suppliers must comply with applicable
regulatory requirements. If we or they fail to achieve or maintain regulatory approval for these manufacturing
facilifies, our business and our results of operations would be harmed.

Commercialization of our products requires access to, or the development of, manufacturing facilities that meet
applicable regulatory standards to manufacture a sufficient supply of our products. In addition, the FDA must
approve facilities that manufacture our products for US commercial purposes, as well as the manufacturing processes
and specifications for the product. Suppliers of components of, and products used to manufacture, our products must
also comply with FDA and foreign regulatory requirements, which often require significant time, money and record-
keeping and quality assurance efforts and subject us and our suppliers to potentinl regulatory inspections and
stoppages, We and our suppliers may not satisfy these requirements. If we or our suppliers do not achieve or
maintain required regulatory approval for our manufacturing operations, our commercialization efforts could be
delayed, which would harm our business and our results of operations.

If we experience inferruptions in our manufacturing operations, our business will suffer.

We currently manufacture our products at our York, Pennsylvania facility, with no alternate facilities available,
If we were to experience a manufacturing disruption as a result of damage or destruction of the building, equipment
failure, acts of Ged or other force majeure events, our ability to satisfy our obligations to our customers would be
adversely affected, which would harm our business and our results of operations.

The costs of raw materials have a significant impact on the level of expenses that we incur. If the prices of raw
materials and related factors such as energy prices increase, and we cannof pass those price increases on to our
customers, our results of eperations and financial condition would suffer.

We use a number of raw materials including polymer plastics. The prices of many of these raw materials, such
as those sourced from petroleum-based raw materials, are cyclical and volatile, While we would generally attempt to
pass along increased costs to our customers in the form of sales price increases, we might not be able to do so, for
competitive or contract-related reasons or otherwise. If we could not set our prices to reflect the costs of our raw
materials, our results of operations and our financial condition would suffer.

29




Table nd_,Cm[mtg:ase 2:13-cv-05101-MMB Document 1 .Filed 08/30/13 Page 69 of 141

Disruptions in the supply of key raw materials and difficulties in the supplier qualification process could
adversely impact our operafions.

We employ a supply chain management strategy which seeks to source components and materials from a
number of established third party companies, Where possible, we seek to establish dual contracts for the supply of
particular components or services. However, there is a risk that our supply lines may be interrupted in the event of a
supplier production problem, material recall or financial difficulties, If one of our suppliers is unable to supply
_ materials required for production of our products or our strategies for managing these risks are unsuccessful, we may
' be unable to complete the production of sufficient quantities of product to fulfill customer orders, or complete the
qualification of new replacement materials for some programs in time to meet future production requirements.
| Prolonged disruptions in the supply of any of our key raw materials, difficulty in completing qualification of new
sources of supply, or in implementing the use of replacement materials or nes sources of supply, could have a
material adverse effect on our results of operations, our financial condition or cash flows.

Some companies we may utilize for the supply of components are also competitors, and they could elect to cease
supply relationships with us in the future for competitive reasons.

| Some companies we may utilize for the supply of components for the Unifill syringe also develop and market
their own safety products which can be attached onto standard prefilled syringes. These companies may elect to cease
i supply relationships with us in the future for competitive reasons. This may disrupt our supply chain, cause

| difficulties in the gualification of new sources of supply and impair our ability to supply customer orders, Such
events may have a material adverse effect on cur results of operations, our financial condition or cash flows.

|
|
| The medical device industry is very competitive.

Competition in the medical device industry is intense. We face this competition from a wide range of
companies. These include large medical device companies, most of which have greater financial and human
resources, distribution channels and sales and marketing capabilities than we do. Our ability to compete effectively
depends upoen our ability to distinguish our company and our products from our competitors and their products.
Factors affecting our competitive position include, for example, product destgn and performance, product safety,
sales, marketing and distribution capabilities, success and timing of new product development and introductions and
intellectual property protection.

We are subject to extensive regulation.

| We are subject to extensive regulation by the FDA pursuant to the FDC Act, by comparable agencies in other
countries, and by other regulatory agencies and governing bodies. Our products must receive clearance or approval
from the FDA or counterpart non-1.5, regulatory agencies before they can be marketed or sold.

The process for obtaining marketing approval or clearance may take a significant period of time and require the
expenditure of substantial resources. The process may also require changes to our products or result in limitaticns on
the indicated uses of the products. As a result, our expectations with respect to marketing approval or clearance may
prove to be inaccurate and we may not be able to obtain marketing approval or clearance in a timely manner or at all,
In addition, regulatory requirements outside the U.S. change frequently, requiring prompt action to maintain
compliance, particularly when product modifications are required. Following the introduction of a product, these
agencies also periodically reviesw our manufacturing processes and product performance. Qur fajlure to comply with
the applicable good manufacturing practices, adverse event reporting, clinical trial and other requirements of these
agencies could delay or prevent the production, marketing or sale of our products and resuit in fines, defays or
suspensions of regulatory clearances, closure of manufacturing sites, seizures or recalls of products and demage o
our reputation.

The FDA 510(k) clearance or premarket approval processes may impact our ability to market and sell our
products. '

Before a new medical device, or a significant change involving a new use of or claim for an existing medical
device, can be distributed commercially in the United States, it 1nust receive either 510(k) clearance or preinarket
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approval from the FDA, unless an exemption exists. Hither process can be expensive and lengthy. We have received
510(k) clearance that covered the production of our Unitract 1mL syringe by a contractor outside the United States as
well as at our Pennsylvania manufacturing facility. Qur Unifill syringe does not require 510(k) clearance because it
will be sold to drug manufacturers for nse as drug packaging. The FDA may, however, revise existing regulations or
adopt additional regulations, each of which could prevent or delay 510{k) clearance or premarket approval of our
new or modified devices, or could impact our ability to market our currently clearsd devices. The FDA, for example,
has recently announced its intention to review the 310(k) process and consider enhancements that could impact future
510¢k) submissions. It has alsc encouraged manufacturers to consult with the FDA as to the appropriate 510(k)
clearance process for any new product. Such changes could result in additional scrutiny by the FDA of 510(k)
applications that we will submit for our new or modified devices and could result in delays and increased costs in
obtaining FDA clearances, which could materially impact our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We also may be required to obtain either 510(k) clearance or premarket approval from the FDA for some of our
new advanced drug delivery systems. Obtaining such FDA clearances could result in delays in bringing these new
advanced drug delivery systems to market and could waterjally impact our business, financial condition and results
of operations.

We may face significant uncertainty in the industry due to government healthcare reform.

The healthcare industry in the United States is subject to fundamental changes due to the ongoing healthcare
reform and the political, economic and regulatory influences. In March 2010, comprehensive healthcare reform
legislation was signed into law in the United States through the passage of the Patient Protection and Affordable
Health Care Act and the Health Care and Education Recenciliation Act, Among other initiatives, the legislation
provides fora 2.3% anmual excise tax on the sales of certain medical devices in the United States, commencing in
Yanuary 2013. This enacted excise tax may adversely affect our operating expenses and results of operaticns. In
addition, various healtheare reform proposals have also emerged at the state level. We cannot predict with certainty
what healthcare initiatives, if any, will be implemented at the state level, or what ultimate effect of federal healthcare
reform or any future legislation or regulation may have on us or on our customers’ purchasing decisions regarding
our products and services.

We are subject to regulation by governmenis around the world, and if these regulations are not complied with,
existing and future operations may be curtailed, and we could be subject to liability.

The design, development, manufacturing, marketing and labeling of our products are subject to regulation by
governmental authorities in the United States, Burope and other countries, including the FDA. The regulatory process
can result in required modification or withdrawal of existing products and a substantial delay in the introduction of
new products. Also, it is possible that regulatory approval may not be obtained for a new product. Our business may
be adversely affected by changes in the regulation of drug products and medical devices.

Our target pharmaceutical customers are also subject to government regulations for the manufacturing, approvil,
marketing and lzbeling of therapeutic drug products. An effect of the governmental regulation of our customers’ drug
products and manufacturing processes is that compliance with regulations males it costly aud time consuming to
trensition to the use of our devices for existing products, or to secure approval for pipeline products targeted for use
with our devices. If regulation of our custemers’ products incorporating our devices increases over time, it is likely
that this would adversely affect our sales and profitability.

Product defects could adversely affect the results of our operations.

The design, manufacture and marketing of medical devices involve certain inherent risks. Manufacturing or
design defects, unanticipated use of our products, or inadequate disclosure of risks relating to the use of the product
can lead to injury or other adverse events. These events could lead to recalls or safety alerts relating to cur products
(either voluutary or required by the FIDA or similar governmental authorities in other countries), and could result, in
ceriain cases, in the removal of a product from the market. Any recall could result in significant costs, as well as
negative publicity and damage to our reputation that could reduce demand for our products. Personal injuries

31




Case 2:13-cv-05101-MMB Document 1 Filed 08/30/13 Page 71 of 141
Table of Contents

relating to the use of our products can also result in product liability claims being brougbt against us. In some
circumstances, such adverse events could also cause delays in new product approvals.

We may be sued for product liability, which could adversely affect our business.

The design, manufacture and marketing of medical devices carries a significant risk of product liability claims.
We may be held liable if any product we develop and commercialize causes injury or is found otherwise unsuitable
during product testing, manufacturing, marketing, sale or consumer use. In addition, the safety studies we must
perform and the regulatory approvals required to commercialize our medical safety products will not protect us from
any such liability, We carry product liability insurance. However, if there were to be product liability claims against
us, our insurance may be insufficient to cover the expense of defending against such claims, or may be insufficient to
pay or seitle such claims. Furthermore, we may be unable to obtain adequate product liability insurance coverage for
comumercial sales of any of our approved products. If such insurance is insufficient to protect us, our results of
operations will suffer. If any product liability claim is made against us, our reputation and future sales will be
damaged, even if we have adequate insurance coverage. We also intend to seek product liability insurance for any
approved products that we may develop or acquire in the future. There is no guarantee that such coverage will be
available when we seek it or at a reasonable cost to us.

We may be unable to protect our intellectual property rights or may infringe on the intellectual property righis
of others.

Our success depends in part on our ability to obtain and maintain protection in the United States and other
countries of the intellectual property relating to or incorporated into our technology and products. Qur issued patents
expire at various dates between 2018 and 2030. Our pending and future patent applications may not issue as patents
or, if issued, may not issue in a form that will provide us with any competitive advantage or adequate protection. In
particuiar, the advanced drug delivery systems which we are developing and for which we have filed patent
applications are relatively new inventions, and we cannot be sure that we will be able to obtain patents on these

inventions. Our issvéd and future patents may be challenged, narrowed, invalidated or circumvented, which conld
‘ limit our ability to stop competitors from marketing similar products or limit the length of terms of patent protection
we may have for our products. Changes in patent laws or their interpretation in the United States and other countries
could also diminish the value of our intellectual property or narrow the scepe of our patent protection. In addition,
the legal systems of certain countries do not favor the aggressive enforcement of patents, and the laws of foreign
| countries may not protect our rights to the same extent as the laws of the United States. As a result, our patent
portfolio may not provide us with sufficient rights to exclude others from commercializing products similar or
identical to ours. In order to preserve and enforce our patent and other intellectual property rights, we may need to
make claims or file lawsuits against third parties, This can entail significant costs to us and divert our management’s
attention from developing and commercializing our products.

There also can be no assurance that third parties will not assert that our products infringe their patent or other
intellectual property rights. Any claims, with or without merit, could be time-consuming, result in costly litigation,
divert the efforts of our technical and management personnel or require us to pay substantial damages. If we are
unsuccessful in defending ourselves against these types of claims, we may be required to do one or more of the
following:

* 8top, delay or abandon our ongoing or planned commercialization of the product that is the subject of the suit;

* attempt to obtain a license to sell or use the relevant technology or substitute technology, which license may
not be available on reasonable terms or at all;

« redesign those products that use the relevant technolegy; or

« pay substantial damages which could adversely impact our financial condition and ability to execute our
; business plan and operations.
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If we are unable io protect the confidentiality of our proprietary inforination and know-how, the value of our
technology and products could be adversely affected.

In addition to patented technology, we rely on our unpatented proprietary technology, trade secrets, processes
and know-how. We generally seek to protect this information by confidentiality agreements with cur employees,
consultants, scientific advisors and third parties. These agreements may be breacbed, and we may not have adequate
remedies for any such breach. In addition, our trade secrets may otherwise become known or be independently
developed by competitors. To the extent that our employees, consultants or contractors use intellectual property
owned by others in their work for us, disputes may arise as to the rights in related or resulting know-how and
inventions.

Impairment of our goodwill, which represents a significant portion of our total assets, would adversely affect
our operating results and we may never realize the full value of our goodwill.

As of June 30, 2011, we had $13.3 million of goodwill on our balance sheet, which represented 15% of our total
assets. We recorded this goodwill primarily from our historical acquisition activities. Goodwill is subject to, at a
minimum, an annual impairment assessment of its carrying value. Any material impairment of our goodwill would
likely have 2 material adverse impact on our results of operations.

Fluctuafions in foreign currency exchange rates could adversely affect our financial condifion and results of
operations.

Currently, the majority of our revenues have been derived from payments under our industrialization agreement
with Sanofi which provides that Sznofi will pay us in euros, while we incur mest of cur operating expenses in
U.S. dollars or Australian dollars, Changes in foreign currency exchange rates can affect the value of our assets and
liabilities, and the amount of our revenues and expenses. We do not currently try to mitigate our exposure to currency
exchange rate risks by using hedging transactions. We cannot predict future changes in foreign currency exchange
rates, and as a result, we may suffer losses as a result of future fluctuations.

Risk Factors Related to Qur Shares of Common Stock

The frading price of our shares of common stock may fluctuate significantly.

The price of our shares of common stock may be volatile, which means that it could decline substantially within
a shert period of time. The trading price of the shares may fluctuate, and investors may experience a decrease in the
value of the shares that they hold, sometimes regardless of our operating performance or prospects. The trading price
of our common stock could fluctuate significantly for many reasons, including the following:

« future announcements concerning our business and that of our competitors including in particular, the
progress of our commercial sales for the Unifill syringe and the development programs for the other advanced
drug delivery devices;

« regulatory developments, enforcement actions bearing on advertising, marketing or sales of our current or
pipeline products;

* quarterly variations in operating results;

* introduction of new products or changes in product pricing pelicies by us or our competitors;
« acquigition or loss of significant customers, distributors or suppliers;

« business acquisitions or divestitures;

» changes in third party reimbursement practices;

» fluctuations of investor interest in the medical device secior; and

+ fluctuations in the economy, world political events or general market conditions.
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If there are substantial sales of our shares of common stock, our share price could decline.

As of September 1, 2011, we had 64,058 508 shares of commen stock outstanding. All of those shares of
common stock other than 5,204,945 shares held by our affiliates are freely tradable under the Securities Act. Shares
held by our affiliates are eligible for resale pursuant to Rule 144. If our stockholders sell a large number of shares of
common stock the public market perceives that our stockholders might sell a large number of shares, the prices at
which our common stock trades could decline significantly,

In addition, as of September 1, 2011, 13,069,398 shares of our common stock are subject to outstanding stock
options and warrants. We have registered the shares issuable upon the exercise of options granted under our 2009
Stock Incentive Plan. In addition, we have effective registration statements covering the resale of shares of our
common stock that are issuable upon the exercise of our remaining options and warrants. If these options and
warrants are exercised and the holders choose to sell their shares, it could have an adverse effect on the market price
for our common stock.

We do not intend to pay cash dividends in the foreseeable future.

For the foreseeable future, we do not intend to declare or pay any dividends on our common stock. We intend to
retain our earnings, if any, to finance the development and expansion of our business and product lines. Any future
decision to declare or pay dividends will be made by our board of directors and will depend upon a number of factors
including our financial condition and results of operations. In addition, under our current bank financing agreements,
we are not permitted to pay cash dividends without the prior written consent of the lender.

We may be subject to arbitrage risks.

Investors may seek to profit by exploiting the difference, if any, in the price of our shares of common stock on
the Nasdag and our CDIs on the ASX. Such arbitrage activities could cause our stock price in the market with the
higher value to decrease to the price set by the market with the lower value.

Our certificate of incorporation, bylaws, the Delaware General Corporation Law and the terms of our
industrialization agreement with Sanofi may delay or deter a change of control transaction.

Certain provisions of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws may have the effect of deterring takeovers,
such as those provisions authorizing our board of directors to issue, from tme to time, any series of preferred stock
and fix the designation, powers, preferences and rights of the shares of such series of preferred stock; prohibiting
stockholders from acting by written consent in lieu of a meeting; requiring advance notice of stockholder intention to
put forth director nominees or bring up other business at a stockholders’ meeting; prohibiting stockholders from
celling 2 special meeting of stockholders; requiring a %2/ 3 % majority stockholder approval in order for stockholders
to amend our bylaws or adopt new bylaws; and providing that, subject to the rights of preferred shares, the number of
directors is to be fixed exclusively by our board of directors. Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law,
from which we did not elect to opt out, provides that if a heolder acquires 15% or more of our stock without prior
approval of our board cf directors, that holder will be subject to certain restrictions on its ability to acquire us within
three years. In addition, our industrialization agreement with Sanofi provides to Sanofi the right to match a change of
control proposal and to terminaie the industrialization agreement under certain circumstances of a change of control
event. See “Business -~ Commercial Relationships — Sanofi.” These provisions may delay or deter a change of
control of us, and could limit the price that investors might be willing to pay in the future for shares of our common
stock.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None,
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Ttem 2, Properties

Qur 165,000 square foot global headquarters and manufacturing facility is located on 38 acres of land in York,
Pennsylvania. The facility includes 110,000 square feet of production space and 54,000 square feet of office space.
The property is subject to a mortgage held by a local bank,

We also have a short term lease for office space in Radnor, Pennsylvania to support cur research and
development activities.

We also lease 1,100 square feet of office space in Sydney, Australia which is used for certain finance and
administrative operations.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

In the ordinary course of our business, we may be subject to various claims, pending and potential legal actions
for damages, investigations relating to governmental laws and regulations and other matters arising out of the normal
conduct of our business. We are not aware of any material pending legal proceedings to which we or any of our
subsidiaries is a party or of which any of our properties is the subject,

Item 4. Removed and Reserved

PARTII
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities
Market Information

Commencing February 16, 2010, our shares of common stock began trading on the Nasdaq Global Market under
the symbol “UNIS”. Qur shares of common stock have also traded in the form of CHESS Depositary Interests
(“CDIs™), each CDI representing one-sixth of a share of our common stock, on the Australian Securities Exchange
(“ASX™) under the symbol “UNS” since January 18, 2010. Prior to that date, the ordinary shares of our predecessor
Unilife Medical Solutions Limited (“UMSL") were traded on the ASX under the symbol “UNI”.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicaied, the high and low clesing prices for our common stock
on the Nasdaq Global Market {(commencing February 16, 2010), the high and low closing prices for our CDIs on the
ASX (from January 18, 2010 through February 15, 2010} and the high and low closing prices for the ordinary shares
of UMSL {prior to January 18, 2010). The prices of our CDIs (and previously ordinary shares of UMSL) have been
adjusted to give effect to the six for one exchange ratio and have been converied to U.S, dollars using the exchange
rate on the last day of each respective quarter.

Perjod High _Low
(Us$)  (USH)

Second Quarter 630 468
Th

Fourth Quarter ' 804 528

Holders

As of September 1, 2011, we had 64,058,508 shares of common stock cutstanding, and there were 278 holders
of record of our comnmon stock, including Chess Depositary Nominees which held shares of our common steck on
behalf of 8,429 CDI holders. The closing sales price for our common stock on September 1, 2011 was $4.34 as
reported by the Nasdaq Global Market.
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Dividends

We currently intend to retain any earnings to finance research and development and the operation and expansion
of our business and do not anticipate paying any cash dividends for the foreseeable future, The declaration and
payment of any dividends in the future by us will be subject to the sole discretion of our board of directors and will
depend upon many factors, including our financial condition, earnings, capital requirements of our operating
subsidiaries, covenants associated with certain of our debt obligations, legal requiretnents, regulatory constraints and
other factors deemed relevant by our board of directors. Moreover, if we determine to pay any dividend in the future,
there can be no assurance that we will continue to pay such dividends. In addition, under our bank financing
agreements, we are not permitted to pay cash dividends without the prior written consent of the lender.

Performance Graph

The performance graph shown below compares the change in cumulative total shareholder return on shares of
common stock with the Nasdaq Stock Market Index (US) and the NASDAQ Health Care Index (US) from:
February 16, 2010, our first day of trading on the Nasdaq Global Market, through our fiscal 2011 year ended June 30,
2011. The graph sets the beginning value of shares of common stock and the indices at $100, and assumes that all
quarterly dividends were reinvested at the time of payment. This graph does not forecast future performance of
shares of common stock.
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Ttem 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table presents our selected consolidated financial data as of and for each of the years in the five
year period ended June 30, 2011. The statements of operations data for the years ended June 30,2011, 2010 and 2009
and the balance sheet data as of June 30,2011 and 2010 have been derived from our andited consoclidated financial
staternents included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K., All such data should be read in conjunction with
the information under “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,”
and our consolidated financial statements and the related notes thereto included elsewhere in this report. The
statements of operations data for the year ended June 30,2008 and 2007 and the balance sheet data as of June 30,
2009, 2008 and 2007 have been derived from our audited consolidated financial statements not included in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K, Historical results are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected in the

future.
Year Ended June 30,
2011 2010 - 2009 2008 2007
(In thiousands, except share data)
Statemie

éeven&és(a)

11422 $19976 $35300 $2070

36




Tabie of Contente@S€ 2:13-cv-05101-MMB  Document 1 Filed 08/30/13 Page 76 of 141

As of June 30,
2011 2019 2009 2008 2007

Long-term debt, including current portion 22,687 2,741 1,133 7,209 4261

(a) Includes $3.9 million, $8.9 million and $16.1 million in connection with our exclnsive licensing agreement and
our industrialization agreement with Sanofi in the years ended June 30,2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resulfs of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in
conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and related notes appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report
on Form 10-K. This discussion and analysis inclides certain forward-looking statements that involve risks,
uncertainties and assumptions. You should review the "Risk Factors” section of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K for a discussion of important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from the results
described in or implied by such forward-looking statements. See “Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking
Information” at the beginning of this report. References to our Jiscal year refer to the fiscal year ending June 30.

Redomiciliation

On January 27, 2010, Unilife Medical Sclutions Limited, an Australian corporation (“UMSL™), completed a
redomiciliation from Australia to the State of Delaware pursuant to which stockholders and option holders of UMSL
exchanged their interests in UMSL for equivalent interests in Unilife Corperation, a Delaware corporation
(“Unilife”) and Unilife became the parent company of UMSL and its subsidiaries. The redomiciliation was
conducted by way of schemes of arrangement under Austratian law, The issuance of Unilife common stock and stoclk
options under the scheines of arrangement was exempt from registration under Section 3(2){10) of the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended. The redomiciliation was approved by the Australian Federal Court, and approved by UMSL
shareholders and opticn holders.

In connection with the redomiciliation, holders of UMSL ordinary shares or share options received one share of
Unilife common stock or an option to purchase one share of Unilife common stock, for every six UMSL ordinary
shares or share options, respectively, held by such holders, unless the holder elected to receive m lieu of Unilife
common stock, Chess Depositary Interests of Unilife, or CDIs (sach representing one-sixth of one share of Unilife
common stock}, in which case such helder received one CDI for every UMSL ordinary share. All share and per share
amounts in this Annual Report on Form 10-K have been restated to reflect the one for six share recapitalization
effected in connection with the redomiciliation.

On February 16, 2010, Unilife’s commmon stock began trading on the Nasdag Global Market under the symbol
“UNIS.”

Overview

We are a U.S. based developer and manufacturer of a diversified portfolio of advanced drug delivery systems,
We collaborate with pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies seeking to optimize drug lifecycles and generate
differenttation for their brand in competitive therapeutic markets through the use of innovative devices that can
improve patient care, protect healthcare workers and prevent disease. We have developed a broad portfolio of drug
delivery systems in direct response to unmet narket needs for injectable drugs including macromolecule biologics.

QOur main product is the Unifill ready-to-fill syringe, which is designed to be supplied to pharmaceutical
mannfacturers in a form that is ready for filling with their injectable drugs and vaccines. We have 4 strategic
partnership with Sanofi, a large global pharmaceutical company, pursuant to wlich Sancfi has paid us a 10.0 million
euros exclusivity fee and has paid us 17.0 million euros to fund our industrialtzation program for the Unifill syringe.
We are also in discussions with other pharmaceutical companies that are seeking to obtain access to the Unififl
syringe.
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In addition, we manufacture our Unitract ImL insulin syringes at our FDA-registered manufacturing facility in
Pennsylvania, which are designed for primarily for use in healthcare facilities and by patients who self-administer
prescription medication such as insulin.

Recent Developments
Equipment Lease Agreement

On August 15,2011, we entered into a Master Lease Agreement with Varilease Finance, Inc. (“Varilease™).
Under the Master Lease Agreement, Varilease will provide up to $10.0 million of lease financing for production
equipment for the Unifill ready-to-fill syringe. We have the option of selling and leasing back existing equipment or
using the facility to lease additional equipment.

Under the terms of the Master Lease Agreement, we will lease the equiprient from Varilease for a two-year base
term, and we will pay rent in equal monthly installments of up to $0.4 million over the base term.

The Master Lease Agreement contains covenants and provisions for events of default customarily found in lease
agreements. We may prepay the monthly rent payments without penalty. At the end of the lease term, we have the
option to extend the lease, return the equipment or purchase the equipment, as defined in the agreement.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We prepare our consclidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. This requires management to make certain estimates, judgments and assumpticns that
could affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. The following
accounting policies require significant estimates, judgments and assumptions.

Goodwill

Goodwill is the excess of purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired in business acquisitions.
Goodwill is subject to, at a minimun, an annual impairment assessment of its carrying value. Additional impairment
assessments would be performed if events and circumstances warranted such additional assessments during the year.
Goodwill impairment is deemed to exist if the net book value of our reporting unit exceeds its estimated fair value.
Estimated fair value of our reporting unit is determined utilizing the value implied by our year end quoted stock
price. We did not record any goodwill impairments during fiscal 2011, 2010 or 2009.

The Company has one reporting unit. The reporting unit is comprised of our Unitract and Unifill syringe
business, the base technology which we obtained as part of our November 2002 acquisition of Unitract Syringe Pty
Limited and the manufacturing capability which we obtained in our January 2007 acquisition of Integrated
BioSciences, Inc.

In estimating the reporting unit’s fair value for purposes of the Company’s fiscal 2011 impairment assessment,
management compared the carrying value of our reporting unit to our market capitalization as of June 30, 2011,
which is our annual impairment testing date. Our market capitalization of $331.0 million, based on the quoted stock
price on the Nasdaq was in excess of our stockholders’ equity of $53.6 million. Management also considered that
market capitalization through early September 2011 continued to be in excess of the carrying valve.

Share-Based Compensaiion

We grant stock options, restricted stock and commeon stock as compensation to our employees, directors and
consultants. Certain employee and director awards vest over stated vesting periods and others also require
achievement of specific performance or market conditions. We expense the grant-date fair value of awards to
employees and directors over their respective vesting periods, To the extent that employee and director awards vest
only upon the achievement of a specific performance condition, expense is recognized over the period from the date
management determines that the performance condition is probable cf achievement through the date they are
expected to be met. Awards granted to consultants are sometimes granted for past services, in which case their fair
value is expensed on their grant date, while other awards require future service, or the achievement of performance or
market conditions. Timing of expense recognitien for consultant awards is similar to that of employee and director
awards; however,
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aggregate expense is re-measured each quarter end based on the then fair value of the award through the vesting date
of the award. We estimate the fair value of stock options using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, with the
exception of market-based grants, which are valued based on Barrier and Monte Carlo option-pricing models. Option
pricing methods require the input of highly subjective assumptions, including the expected stock price volatility.

Revenue Recognition
We recognize revenue from leensing fees, industrialization efforts and products sales.

In June 2008, we entered into an exclusive Heensing arrangement to allow Sanofi to use certain of our
intellectual property in order and solely to develop in collaboration with us, our Unifill syringe for use in and sale to
the pre-filled syringe market. The $10.0 million up-front, non-refundable fee paid for this license is being amortized
over the five year expected life of the related agreement. In late fiscal 2009, we entered into an industrialization
agreement with Sanofi, under which specific payment amounts and completion dates were established for
achievement of certain pre-defined milestones in our development of the Unifill syringe. Revenue is recognized upon
achievement of the “at risk” milestone events, which represents the culmination of the earnings process related to
such events. Milestones include specific phases of the project such as product design, prototype availability, user
tests, manufacturing proof of principle and the various steps to complets the industrialization of the product. Revenue
recognized is commensurate with the milestones achieved and we have no future performance obligations related to
previous milestone payments as cach milestone payment is non-refundable when received.

We recognize revenue from sales of products at the time of shipment and when title passes to the customer.

Results of Operations

The following table summarizes our results of operatiens for the fiscal years ended June 30,2011, 2010 and
2009:

Year Ended June 3@,

2010 2009

Product sales and other 2773 2,538 3919

Cost of product sales 2,597 2471 3426
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Fiscal Year 2011 Compared to Fiscal Year 2010

Revenues. Revenues decreased by $4.8 million or 42%. Revenues from our industrialization agreement with
Sanofi decreased from $6.3 million to $1.4 million due to the achievement of a majority of the related milestones
during fiscal 2010, As of June 30,2011, there was one remaining milestene payment to be recognized which was
dependent upon the production of commercially viable units of our Unifill syringe. This remaining milestone was
achieved during July 2011 and we received the related 1.0 million euros during September 2011. Revenues from our
exclusive licensing agreement with Sanofi decreased from $2.6 million to $2.5 million. We have recognized and will
continue to recognize revenue from the exclusive licensing agreement on a straight-iine basis over the remaining
term of the agreement. Since these revenues are based in euros, the 30.1 million decrease resulted from flucturations
in foreign currency transiation rates. Revenues from product sales of our contract manufacturing business increased
from $2.5 million to $2.8 million, primarily as a result of increased sales to one of our most significant contract
manufacturing customers during the first and second quarters of fiscal 2011, We discontinued contract manufacturing
activities in December 2010 in order to focus our efforts on the Unifill syringe and our additional drug delivery
devices.

Cost of product sales. Cost of product sales increased by $0.1 million or 5%, which was attributable to a higher
level of product sales under our contract manufacturing sales activity. Our cost of product sales during fiscal 2011
includes amounts related to the write-off of obsolete inventory.

Research and development expenses. Research and development expenses decreased by $1.3 million. During
fiscal 2010, we incurred a charge of $4.3 million in connection with the issuance of 833,333 fully-vested shares of
common stock to certain employees in consideration of their transfer to us of certain intellectual property rights. This
decrease was partially offset by an increase in expenditures incurred to finalize the product specifications of our
Unifill syringe and develop our additional drug delivery devices,

Selling, general and adminisirative expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses increased by
$5.3 million or 20%. During fiscal 2011, we recorded $9.0 million of share-based compensation expense, an increase
of $3.3 million compared to fiscal 2G10. Qur share-based compensation expense during fiscal 2011 relates primarily
to restricted stock and stock options issued to new employees, directors and consultants under our 2009 Stock
Incentive Plan. Additionally, during fiscal 2010 and the first half of fiscal 2011, we increased the workforce at our
York, Pennsylvania facility, and as a result, we incurred payroll expenses and recruiting fees during the fiscal 2011
of $11.0 million, an increase of $3.2 million compared to fiscal 2010. These amounts were partially offset by a
decrease of $2.7 million in legal and consulting fees due to significant costs incurred during fiscal 2010 in connection
with our redomiciliation to the United States,

Depreciation and amortization expense. Depreciation and amortization expense increased by $1.7 million or
73% which was attributable to $4.0 million of machinery placed into service during October 2009 relating to our
1mL syringe and the completion of construction of our new headquarters and manufacturing facility. Included in this
amount is 2 $0.5 miliion loss on the dispesal of certain pieces of equipment during fiscal 2011, We expect our
depreciation and amortization expense to increase in the future as a result of our purchases of machinery for the
Unifill syringe.

Interest expense. Interest expense increased by $0.4 million, primarily as a result of interest related to our
$18.0 million in debt financing obtained in October 2010 for the construction of our new headquarters and
manufacturing facility.

Interest income. Interest income decreased by $0.7 million, primarily as a result of lower cash balances and
lower interest rates during fiscal 2011.

Other (income) expense. Other inconie during fiscal 2011 includes the receipt of a $0.5 million opportunity
grant from the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

Net loss and loss per share. Net loss for fiscal 2011 and 2010 was $40.7 million and $29.7 million,
respectively. Basic and diluted loss per share was $0.70 and $0.64, respectively, on weighted average shares
outstanding of 57,801,024 and 46,837,066, respectively. The increase in the weighted average shares ontstanding
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was primarily due to the issuance of commion stock in connection with our October 2009 and December 2010 equity
financings.

Fiscal Year 2010 Compared to Fiscal Year 2009

Reveniies. Revenues decrensed by $8.6 million or 43%. Revenues from our industrialization agreement with
Sanofi decreased from $13.6 millicn to $6.3 million due to the nature and timing of milestones achieved during fiscal
2010, Revenues from our exclusive licensing agreement with Sanofi increased from $2.3 million to $2.6 million. We
have recognized and will continue to recognize the revenue from the exclusive licensing agreement on a straight-line
basis over the remaining term of the agreement. Since these revenues are based in euros, the $0.1 millien variation in
revenues results from fluctuations in foreign currency translation rates. Revenues from product sales of our contract
manufacturing business decreased from $3.9 million to $2.3 million principally because most of our efforts were
devoted to the development of the Unifill syringe in fiscal 2010,

Cost of product sales. Cost of sales decreased by $1.0 million or 28%. The <ecrease was attributable to a
reduction in product sales under our contract manufacturing sales activity.

Research and development expenses. Research and development expenses increased by $8.7 million, primarily
as a result of $4.3 million incurred in connection with the issuance of 833,333 fully-vested shares of common stock
to certain employees in consideration of their transfer to us of certain intellectual property rights. The increase was
also a result of additional expenditures to finalize the product specifications of our Unifill syringe.

Selling, general and administrative expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses increased by
$12.5 million or 91%. During fiscal 2010, we increzsed the workforce at our Pennsylvania facility, and as a result,
we incurred payroll expenses and recruiting fees during fiscal 2010 of $7.8 million, an increase of $4.1 million
compared to fiscal 2009. Additionally, during fiscal 2010, we incurred legal end consulting fees of $6.4 million, an
increase of $3.4 million compared tc fiscal 2009. The increase was due primarily to expenses we incurred retated to
our redomiciliation and Nasdagq listing. Additionally, during fiscal 2010, we recorded $5.7 million in share-based
compensation expense, an increase of $2.7 million compared to fiscal 2009, Our share-bzsed compensation expense
during fiscal 2010 relates primarily to restricted stock and stock options issued to employees and consultants during
the year. Our share-based compensation expense during fiscal 2009 included $1.5 million recorded in December
2008 for the issuance of 1.7 million shares of common stock o our Chief Executive Officer,

Depreciation and amortization expense. Depreciation and amortization expense increased by $1.4 million or
153% which was primarily attributable to $1.0 million of property plant and equipment additions placed in service
during fiscal 2010, Additionally, during October 2009, we placed $4.0 million of machinery to manufacture our 1mL
syringe in service.

Interest expense. Interest expense decreased by $0.1 million, primarily as a result of our lower levels of
outstanding debt,

Interest income. Interest Income increased by $0.7 million, primarily as a result of higher cash balances during
fiscal 2010,

Other {income) expense. Other (inconie) expense decreased by $0.1 million primarily due to lower foreign
exchange losses as a result of the appreciation of the U.S. dollar against the Australian dollar.

Net loss and loss per share, Net joss for fiscal 2010 and 2009 was $29.7 million and $0.5 million, respectively.
Basic and diluted loss per share was $0.64 and $0.02, respectively, on weighted average shares outstanding of
46,837,066 and 34,426,353, respectively. The increase in the weighted average shares outstanding was primarily due
to the issuance of common stock in connection with our Qctober 2009 equity financing.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

To date, we have funded our operations primarily from a combination of equity issuances, borrowings under our
bank loans and payments from Sanofi under our exclusive licensing and industrialization agreements. As of Tune 30,
2011, cash and cash equivalents were $17.9 million, restricted cash was $2.4 million and our long-term debt was
$22.7 million. As of June 30, 2010, cash and cash equivalents were $20.8 million and cur long-term debt
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was $2.7 million. During September 2011, we received 1.0 million euros from Sanofi related to the achievement of
the final milestone under the industrialization agreement.

During October 2010, we secured $18.0 million of external financing from Metro Bank (“Metro™) for the
construction of our new manufacturing facility. We used $6.9 million of the proceeds to repay amounts borrowed in
August 2010 under our credit agreement with Univest.

During December 2010, we received $2.23 miilion from the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania in low-interest
{inancing for land and the construction of our new corporate headquarters and manufacturing facility.

During December 2010 we raised $33 4 million, net of issuance costs, through a private placement and share
purchase plan for our Australian and New Zealand stockhclders.

During August 2011 we entered into an equipment lease which will provide for up to $10.0 million of additional
external financing.

We believe that our cash and cash equivalents on hand are sufficient to sustain planned operations through the
third quarter of fiscal 2012,

Our recurring losses from operations raise substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern. We
anticipate incurring additional losses until such time that we can generate significant revenue from product sales,

The following table summarizes our cash flows during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009:

Year Ended June 30,
2011 2010 2009

{In thousands)

Fiscal Year 2011 Compared to Fiscal Year 2010
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities

Net cash used in operating activities during fiscal 2011 was $28.5 million compared to $12.4 million during
fiscal 2010, Tle decrease in cash flow was primarily due to $10.3 million of higher net loss after adding back
depreciation and amortization, loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and share-based compensation
expense.

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities during fiscal 2011 was $30.0 million, primarily as a resuit of construction
costs incwred in connection with our new headquarters and manufacturing facility, as well as costs incurred in
connection with the purchase of machinery and related equipment.

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities during fiscal 2011 was $53.8 million compared to $49.5 million during
fiscal 2010, During fiscal 2011, we received $33 .4 million irom the issuance of common stock in connection with
our December 2010 private placement and share purchase plan, as well as $3.2 million upon the exercise of stock
options, Additionally, during fiscal 2011, we received $20.2 million in aggregate proceeds from our external
financing from Metro and the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. During fiscal 2010, we received $47.1 million in
connection with our October 2009 private placement and share purchase plan, as well as $2.3 million upon the
exercise of stock options.
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Fiscal Year 2010 Compared to Fiscal Year 2009
Net Cash (Used in} Provided by Operating Activities

Net cash used in operating activities during fiscel 2010 was $12.4 million compared to net cash provided by
operating activities of $6.8 million during fiscal 2009. The decrease in cash flow was primarily due to $20.8 million
of higher net loss after adding back depreciation and amortization and share-based compensation expense.

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities was $18.1 million dusing fiscal 2010, primarily as a result of $17.6 millicn
of costs incurred in connection with the purchase of machinery related to the lines for our Unifill syringe as well as
the purchase of the land and construction costs in connection with our new headquarters and manufacturing facility,

Net Cash Provided by {Used in) Financing Activiries

Net cash provided by financing activities during fiscal 2010 was $49.5 million compared to net cash used in
financing activities of $3.3 million during fiscal 2009. During fiscal 2010, we received $47.1 million from the
issuance of common stock related to our private placement and share purchase plan, and $2.3 million wpon the
exercise of stock options. During fiscal 2009, we elected to terminate 2 licensing agreement that we determined was
no longer consistent with our business strategies, and, as a final settlement, we repaid $2.3 million of the $3.0 million
that we had originally received in 2008 under the licensing agreement, while retaining $0.7 million to cover related
legal fees.

Contractual Obligations
The following table provides information regarding our contractual cbligations as of June 30, 2011:
Payments Due by Period

Less Than More Than
Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Yeuars 5 Years

(In thousands)

:lepital leases
Operating |
Total contractual obligations $33,156 § 2242  $ 4306 § 4,013 0§ 22,595

Our term loans bear interest at rates ranging from prime (3.25% as of June 30, 2011) plus 1.50% to 6.0%. The
future contractuzl obligations for interest is based upon rates in this range.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements as such term is defined in the SEC rules.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In March 2010, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB’) issued Accounting Standards Update
(“ASU”) 2010-17, “Milestone Method of Revenue Recognition, a consensus of the FASB Emerging Tssues Task
Force (Issue No. 08-9).” (“ASU 2010-17"). ASU 2010-17 provides guidance about the criteria that must be met to
use the milestone method of revenue recognition. This ASU is effective for milestones achieved in fiscal years and
interim periods within those years, beginning after June 15, 2010. We adopted ASU 2010-17 on July 1, 2010 and its
adoption did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASTU 2011-05, “Comprehensive Income™ (“ASU 2011-05™). ASU
2011-05 removes certain presentation options and requires entities to report components of net income and
comprehensive income in either one continucus statement of comprehensive income or two separate but consecutive
statements. There is no change to the items that are reported in other comprehensive income. ASU 2011-03 is
effactive for
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annual and interim perieds beginning after December 15,2011, Other than additional presentation of other
comprshensive loss outside of the statements of stockholders’ equity and comprehensive loss, the adeption of ASU
2011-05 will not have an impact on our consolidated financial statements.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are exposed to market risk from changes in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates. Changes in
these factors could cause fluctuations in cur results of operations and cash flows.

Interest Rate Risk

Our exposure to interest rate risk is limited to our cash and cash equivalents that are invested in money market
funds with highly liquid short term Investments and our variable interest rate term loans. We currently do not utilize
derivative instruments to mitigate changes in interest rates.

Foreign Cuorrency Exchange Rate Fluctuations

Certain of our revenues are derived from payments under our industrialization agreement received in euros
while we incur most of our expenses in U.S. dollars and Australian dollars. In addition, a portion of our cash and
cash equivalents and investments are held at Australian banking institutions and are denominated in Australian
dollars. Weg are exposed to foreign currency exchange rate risks on these amounts, We currently do not utilize options
or forward contracts to mitigate changes in foreign currency exchange rates. For U.S. reporting purposes, we
transiate all asseis and Habilities of our non-U.S. entities into U.S. dollars using the exchange rate 25 of the end of the
related period and we translate all revenues and expenses of our non-U.S. entities using the average exchange rate
during the applicable period.
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Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Owr management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting, as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 13d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Qur
internal control over financial reporting was designed to provide reasenable assurance to management and our Board
of Directors regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the fair presentation of our consolidated financial
statements.

With the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer,
we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reperting based on the
framework in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO). Based on our evaluation, our management concluded that our internal control over
financial reporting was effective as of June 30, 2011 to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the fair presentation of our conselidated financial statements.

KPMG LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, andited our internal control over financial
reporting as of June 30,2011, Their audit report can be found on page 47.

fs/ Alan Shortall

Alan Shortall

Chief Executive Officer

/s/ R. Richard Wieland II

R. Richard Wieland II

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
/s/ Dennis P. Pyers

Dennis P. Pyers
Vice President, Controller and Chief Accounting Officer

September 13,2011
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting ¥Firm

The Board of Directors angd Stoclkholders
Unilife Corporation:

We have audited Unilife Corporation and subsidiaries (the Company) internal control over financial reporting as
of June 30, 2011, based on criteria established in Infernal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO)}. The Company's management is responsible for
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control Cver
Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects, Our audit included
obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. Our audit also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent lim#tations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

. In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal contro! over financial
reporting as of June 30, 2011, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsering Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We also have audited, in accordance with thie standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Unilife Corporation as of June 3¢, 2011 and 2010, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and comprehensive loss, and cash flows for the years
then ended, and our report dated September 13, 2011 expressed an ungualified opinion on those consolidated
financial statements, Qur report dated September 13, 2011 contains an explanatory paragraph that states there is
substantial doubt about the Company’s zbility to conlinue as a going concern, The consolidated financial statements
do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of that uncertainty.

/s/ KPMG LLP
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania

September 13, 2011
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Bosard of Directors and Stockholders
Unilife Corporation:

We have andited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Unilife Corporation and subsidiaries (the
Company) as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders® equity
and comprehensive loss, and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management, Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial staternents are free of materinl misstaternent, An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
i accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
| statermnent presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Unilife Corporation and subsidiaries as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will
continue as a going concern. As discussed in note 2 to the consclidated financial statements, the Company has
incurred recurring losses from operations and estimates that its existing cash and cash equivalents will last only
through the third quarter of fiscal 2012, which raises substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going
concern, Management’s plans in regard to thege matters are also described in note 2. The consolidated financial
statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of Tune 3C, 2011,
based on criteria established in Internal Conirol-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated September 13, 2011 expressed an
unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

/sf KPMG LLP
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania

September 13,2011
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accouuting Firm

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Unilife Corporation
Lewisberry, Pennsylvania

We have andited the accompanying consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and
comprehensive loss and cash flows of Unilife Corporation and subsidiacies for the year ended JTune 30, 2009. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on our audit.

‘We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reascnable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were
we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivensss of the Company’s intemal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion, An audit also includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion,

In our opinion, the censolidated financial stateinents referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
results of operations and cash flows of Unilife Corporation and subsidiaries for the year ended June 30, 2009 in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd
Perth, Westem Australia

September 13,2011
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UNILIFE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets

June 3¢,
2011 2010

(In thousands, except
share data)

Restricted cash 2,400 -

Total current assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Total current liabilities 10,081

L

Deferred revenue

) Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 50,000,000 shares authorized as of June 30, 2011ﬁ none

Accumulated other comprehensive incoﬂie 3,775 1075

Total stockm};‘gllders:mequwy

33,572 44,370

See accompanying notes to the consclidated financial statements.
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UNILIFE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Operations

Year Ended June 30,
2011 2010 2009

(In thousands, except share daia)

Cost of product sales 2,597 2471 3426

Other (income) expense, net (588) 135 275 .

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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UNILIFE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Loss

Accummlated
Additionai- Other
Common Stock Foid-In ~ Accumulated Comprehensive Treasury
Shares  Amount  Capital Defleit Income Stock Total

{In thousands, except share data)

— — (1,854) — _ (1354

Forelgn currency translation — —

Issuance of common stock upon conversion of convertible
notes 5 616 — — — 621
i
Issuance of stock options in connection with the acquisition of
__ Integrated BioSciences, Inc. — - 457

Comprehansive loss (31,533)

26
1,606,419

Ionates o 6] i
Issuance of common stock to former shareholders of Unitract
Syringe Pty Limited 3,333,333 33 5,037 — — 5,070

BTy

G il
Issuance of

common stock in connection with privais

)s

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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UNILIFE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended June 30,
2011 2010 2009
(In thousa weept share d

Depreciation and amortization 3,482 2,314 915

d e
Accounts receivable

b his

Purchases of property, plant and equipment pursuant to capital lease agreements
I ~sharaho Initract v
Purchases of property, plant and equipment through the issuance of warrants $ 1621 % — $ -

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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UNILIFE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Description of Business

Unilife Corporation (collectively with its consolidated subsidiaries, the “Company™) and subsidiaries is a
U.S. based developer and manufacturer of advanced drug delivery systems. The primary target customers for the
Company’s products include pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies sseking o optimize drug lifecycles and
generate differentiation for their brand in competitive therapeutic markets through the use of innovative devices that
can improve patient care, protect healthcare workers and prevent disease. Customers also include suppliers of
medical equipment to healthcare facilities and distrihutors to patients who self-administer prescription medication.

2. Liquidity

The Company has incurrad recurring losses from operations and anticipates incurring additional losses until such
time that it can generate sufficient sales of its proprietary range of advanced drug delivery systems. Management
estimates that cash and cash equivalents of $17.9 million as of June 30, 2011 are sufficient to sustain planned
operations only throngh the third quarter of fiscal 2012,

Therefore, additional funding will be needed in fiscal 2012 by the Company to support its operations and capital
expenditure requirements. Management has identified several possible funding strategies which may be available. In
addition to sales of its Unpitract and Unifill syringe products to existing partners, the Company is also in discussions
with additional pharmaceutical companies pertaining to the Unifill syringe and other pipeline products. Shouid the
Company enter into commercial relationships relating to the industrialization, commercial supply or preferred use of
a device within a particular therapeutic market, the Company may pursue additional funding or revenue streams. The
Company may seek to raise additional funds through the sale of additional equity or debt securities. There can be no
assurance that any such funding will be available when needed or on acceptable terms. These various factors raise
substantial doubt about the Company’s ability fo continue as a going concern.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which
contemplates the realization of assets and satisfaction of liabilities in the ordinary course of business. The
consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of
recorded asset amounts or the amounts and classification of liabilities that might result from the outcome of this
uncertainty.

During August 2011, the Company entered into an equipment lease which will provide for up to $10.0 million of
additional external financing.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial stateruents include the accounts of Unilife Corporation and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP.”)y All intercompany accounts and transactions have
been eliminated in consolidation,

On September 1, 2009, Unilife Medical Solutions Limited, an Australian Corporation (“UMSL”}, entered into a
Merger Implementation Agreement with Unilife Corporation, a newly-formed Delaware subsidiary of UMSL,
pursuant to which stockholders and option holders of UMSL would exchange their existing interests in UMSL for
equivalent interests in Unilife Corporation and Unilife Corporation would become the parent or nltimate parent of
UMSL. and its subsidiaries. The redomiciliation transaction was approved by the Australian Federal Court and the
stockholders and option holders of UMSL and was completed on January 27,2010, In the redomiciliation each
holder of UMSL ordinary shares cr share options received one share of conunon stock or one stock option of Unilife
Corporation for every six UMSL ordinary shares or share options, respectively, held by such holder, unless a holder
of UMSL ordinary shares elected to receive, in lieu of common stock, Chess Depository Interests, or CDIs of Unilife
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UNILIFE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued})

{each representing one-sixth of a share of Unilife common stock) in which case such holder received cne CDI of
Unilife for each ordinary share of UMSL. All share and per share data have been retroactively restated to reflect the
cne for six share recapitalization,

References fo the “Company” include Unilife Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries, including UMSL.,
unless the context otherwise requires. References to “Unilife” are references solely to Unilife Corporation.

References to A$ mean the lawful currency of the Commonwesglth of Australia. References to €or euros are to
the lawful currency of the European Union.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and
accompanying notes. The estimates are principally in the areas of revenue recognition and share-based compensation
expense. Management bases its estimates on historical experience and various assumptions that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results could differ from those estimates,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of cash on hand, deposits at banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less. Cash equivalents are stated at cost which approximates
fair value,

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at amounts due from customers, which also represents the net realizable amount,
The Company evaluates the collectability of its accounts receivable on a pericdic basis and has historically not
recorded an allowance for doubtful accounts. In instances in which management becomes aware of circumstances
that may impair a particular customer’s ability to meet its obligation, the related receivable would be written off.
Accounts receivable as of June 30, 2010 cousists principally of amounts due from a single pharmaceutical company
related to the achievement of certain milestones under the related industrialization agreement described in Note 13,

Inventories

Inventories consist primarily of plastic syringe components and include direct materials, direct labor and
manufacturing overhead. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market, with cost determined using the first in,
first out method. The Company routinely reviews its inventory for obsolete, slow moving or otherwise impaired
inventory and records estimated imnpairments in the periods in which they occur. Inventories consist of the following:

June 30,
2011 2010
{In thousands)

o
Work in process 210 148

B
Total inventories ‘ $626  $797
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UNILIFE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipnient, including significant improvements, are recorded at cost, net of accumulated
depreciation and amortization. Repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation and amortization expense is recorded on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the
asset as listed below:

Asset Category Useful Lives

Building 40 years

Machinery and equipment 2 to 15 years

Computer software 3to 7 years

Purniture and fixtures 7 years

Leasehold improvements - Shorter of leasehold improvement life or remaining

term of lease ‘

Interest expense incurred during the construction of the new headquarters and manufacturing facility have been
capitalized as one of the elements of cost and are amortized over the useful life of the building. Interest capitalized
during the year ended June 30,2011 was $0.3 million with no such capitalized interest during the years ended
June 30, 2010 or 2009,

The Company reviews the carrying value of the long-lived assets periodically to determine if facts and
circumstances exist that would suggest that assets might be impaired or that the useful lives should be modified.
Among the factors the Company considers in making the evaluation are changes in market position and profitability.
If facts and circumstances exist which may indicate impairmert, the Company will prepare a projection of the
undiscounted cash flows of the asset group and determine if the long-lived assets are recoverable based on these
undiscounted cash flows. If impairment is indicated, an adjustment will be made to reduce the carrying amount of
these assets to their fair value.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill is the excess of purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired in business acquisitions.
Goodwill is subject to, at a minimum, an annual impairment assessment of its cartying value. Additional impairment
assessments would be performed if events and circumstances warranted such additional assessments during the year.
Goedwill impairment is desmed to exist if the net book value of the Company’s reporting unit exceeds its estimated
fair value. Hstimated fair value of the Company’s reporting unit is determined utilizing the value implied by the
Company’s year-end quoted stock price. The Company performs its annual impairment test at the end of its fiscal
year., There were no impairments recorded on goodwill during the years ended June 30, 2011, 2010 or 2009,

Definite-lived intangible assets include patents which are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives of 15 years. The Company reviews intangible assets for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying ameunt of an asset may not be recoverable. When factors indicate a possible
impairment, if the sum of the estimated ondiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual
disposition of an asset is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment may be recognized. Measurement
of an impairment loss is based on the excess of the carrying value of the asset over its fair value. There were no
impairments recorded on intangible assets during the years ended JTune 30, 2011, 2010 or 2009.

Deferred Financing Costs

Deferred financing costs are included in other assets on the consolidated balance sheets and consist of costs
incurred in connection with debt finzneings. These costs are amertized over the term of the related debt using the
effective interest rate method.
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UNILIFE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continuaed)

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying
amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit
carryforwards, Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which those tempotary differences are expected to be recovered or settled, The effect on
deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the
enactment date. Deferred tax assets are recorded to the extent the Company believes they will more likely than not be
realized. In making such determinaticns, the Company considers all available positive and negative evidence,
including future reversals of existing temporary differences, projected futore taxable income, tax planning strategies
and recent financial operations. Valuation allowances are established, when necessary, to reduce deferred tax assets
to the amount expected more likely than not to be realized.

The Company recognizes the effect of income tax positions only if those positions are more likely than not of
being sustained. Recognized income tax positions are measured at the largest amount that is greater than 50% likely
of being realized. Changes in recognition or measurement are reflected in the period in which the change in judgment
occurs. The Company’s policy is to include interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions within the
provision (benefit) for income taxes within the Company’s consolidated statements of operations.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of financial instruments such as accounts receivable, accounts payahle and accrued expenses
are reasonable estimates of their fair value because of the short maturity of these items, The Company believes that
the current carrying amount of its long-term debt approximates fair value because the interest rates on these
instruments are similar to those rates that the Company would currently be able to receive for similar instruments of
coniparable maturity.

Share-Based Compensation

The Company grants stock options, restricted stock and common stock as compensation $o its employees,
directors and consultants. Certain employee and director awards vest over stated vesting periods and others also
require achievement of specific performance or market conditions. The Company expenses the grant-date fair value
of awards to employees and directors over their respective vesting periods. To the extent that employee and director
awards vest only upon the achievement of a specific performance condition, expense is recognized over the period
from the date management determines that the performance condition is probable of achievement through the date
they are expected to be met. Awards granted to consultants are sometimes granted for past services, in which case
their fair value is expensed on their grant date, while other awards require future service, or the achievement of
performance or market conditions. Timing of expense recognition for consultant awards is similar to that of
employee and director awards; however, aggregate expense is re-measured each quarter-end based on the then fair
value of the award through the vesting date of the award. The Company estimates the fair value of stock options
using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, with the exception of market-based grants, which are valued based on
Barrier and Monie Catle option pricing models. Option pricing methods require the input of highly subjective
assumptions, including the expected stock price volatility, See Note 4 for additiona! information regarding share-
based compensation. :

Foreign Currency Translation

The Australian dollar (“A$™) is the functional currency for the Company's Australian operations. Assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into U.S. dollars at the rate of exchange existing at the end
of the pericd. Revenues and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates during the applicable period.
Adjustments resulting from these translations are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income within the
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UNILIFE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continned)

Company’s consolidated balance sheets and will be included in income upon sale or liquidation of the foreign
investment. Gains and losses from foreign currency transactions, denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency, are recorded in other expense (income) witliin the Company’s consolidated statements of operations and
aggregated $0.1 million, $0.1 million and $0.3 million during the vears ended June 30,2011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively.

Cbmprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss} includes net income (loss) and other comprehensive income (loss), The
Company’s otlier comprehensive income (loss) consists only of foreign currency translation adjustments.

Revenue Recognition
The Company recognizes revenue from licensing fees, industrialization efforts and product sales.

In June 2008, the Company entered into an exclusive licensing arrangement to allow its pharmaceutical partner
to use certain of the Company’s intellectual property in order and solely to develop in collaboration with the
Company, the Company’s Unifill syringe for use in and sale to the pre-filled syringe market. The 10.0 million euro
up-front, non-refundable fee paid for this license is being amortized over the 5 vear expected life of the related
agreement. In late fiscal 2009, the Company entered into an industrialization agreement with its pharmaceutical
partner, under which specific payment amounts and completion dates were established for achievement of certain
pre-defined milestones in its development of the Unifill syringe. Revenue is recognized upon achievement of the “at
risk” milestone events, which represents the culmination of the earmnings process related to such events. Milestones
include specific phases of the project such as product design, prototype availabiiity, user tests, manufacturing proof
of principle and the various steps to complete the industrialization of the product. Revenue recognized is
commensurate with the milestones achieved and the Company has no future performance obligations related to
previous milestone payments as each milestone payment is non-refundable when received.

The Company recognizes revenue from sales of products at the time of shipment and when title passes to the
customer. Product sales from B. Braun, a customer who accounted for 10% or more of the Company’s revenue, were
$2.5 million, $2.5 million &nd $2.6 million during the years ended June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Advertising Costs
Advertising costs are expensed in the pericd incurred. The Company incurred total advertising costs of
%0.6 million, $0.5 million and $0.1 million during the years ended June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
Research and Development Costs
Research and development costs, which primarily consist of salaries, benefits and contracted services are
expensed as incurred.
Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Basic earnings (loss) per share is computed as net income (loss) divided hy the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could oceur from
common shares issued through common stock equivalents. The dilutive effect of potential common shares, consisting
of non-participating restricted stock and cutstanding options to purchase common stock, is calculated using the
treasury stock method.

Unvested share-based payment awards that contain nonforfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents,
whether paid or unpaid, are considered participating securities and are included in the computation of earnings (loss)
per share according to the two class method if the impact is dilutive, Shares of the Company’s unvested
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UNILIFE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continned)

restricted stock are considered participating securities. However, in the event of a net loss, participating securities are
excluded from the calculation of both basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share.
Government Grants
Government grants are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attached conditions will be complied with.
Business Segments

The Company operates in one reportable segment, which includes the design, development and manufacture of
advanced drug delivery systems. Sales by geographic location are as follows:

Years Ended June 30,
211 2010 2008

(In thousands)

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the consclidated statements of operations were reclassified from selling, general and
administrative expenses to research and development expenses during the years ended June 30,2010 and 2009.
Management has determined that activities performed by certain employees were more closely associated with
research and development activities and has reclassified those items on the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations,

This reclassification did not affect the consolidated balance sheets or consolidated statements of cash flows.
Additionally, the reclassification did not affect operating loss or net loss on the consolidated statements of operations.
The following table summarizes the as reported and as adjusted amounts related to the reclassification discussed
above:

Year Ended June 3(},
2010 2009

(In thousands)

$26.057

Recently Issued Accouniing Pronouncements

In March 2010, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update
(“ASU™) 2010-17, “Milestone Method of Revenue Recognition, a consensus of the FASB Emerping Issues Task
Force (Issue No. 08-9)” (“ASU 2010-17"%). ASU 2010-17 provides guidance about the criteria that must be met to use
the milestone method of revenue recognition. This ASU is effective for milestones achieved in fiscal years and
interim periods within those years, beginning after June 15, 2010. The Company adopted ASU 201017 on July 1,
2010 and its adoption did not have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-05, “Comprehensive Income” {(*ASU 2011-05™). ASU
2011-05 removes cértain presentation options and requires entities to report components of net income and
comprehensive income in either one continuous statement of comprehensive income or two separate but consecutive
statements.
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There is no change to the items that are reported in other comprehensive income. ASU 2011-05 is effective for
annual and interim periods beginning after December 15,2011, Other than additional presentation of other
comprehensive loss outside of the statements of stockholders’ equity and comprehensive loss, the adoption of ASU
2011-05 will not have an impact on the Company’s consclidated financial statements.

4. Equity Transactions and Share-Based Compensation

In October and November 2009, the Company issued 10,544 961 shares of common steck and 3,145,767 options
to purchase common stock for aggregate proceeds of A$50.9 million ($47.1 million), net of issuance costs, through &
combination of a U.S. and Australian private placement and a share purchase plan for the Company’s Australian and
New Zealand stockholders, Of these options, 50% are exercisable at A$7.50 per share, and 50% are exercisable at
A$12.00 per share. The Company also issued 497,662 options to purchase common stock to certain brokers as
consideration for their services in connection with the private placement, which are exercisable at A$5.10 per share.
All of the options described above are immediately exercisable and will expire in November 2012.

In November 2009, the Company issued 3,333,333 shares of common stock to the former stockholders of
Unitract Syringe Pty Limited. These shares were issued in full satisfaction of the Company’s obligation for the
purchase of that business which had been accrued for on the date of purchase.

In January 2010, the Company issued 833,333 fully vested sbares of commou stock to certain employees in
consideration of their transfer to the Company of certain intellectual property fights and recognized $4.3 million of
share-based compensation expense classified in research and development expense.

In December 2010, the Company issued 7,048,373 shares of common stock and 2,268,934 options to purchase
common stock for aggregate proceeds of A$34.1 million ($33 .4 million), net of issuance costs, through an Australian
private placement and a share purchase plan for the Company’s Australian and New Zealand stockholders, Of these
options, 50% are exercisable at A$7.50 per share, and 50% are exercisable at A$12.00 per share. The options became
exercisable in June 2011 and will expire in December 2013,

The Company recognized share-based compensation expense related to stock options, grants of restricted stock
and common stock to employees, directors and consultants of $9.0 million, $10.1 million and $3.1 million during the
years ended June 30,2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

As of June 30, 2011, the total compensation cost related to all non-vested awards not yet recognized is
$10.3 million. This amount is expected to be recognized over a remaining weighted average period of 1.62 years.

Stock Options and Warrants

The Company has granted stock options to certain employees and directors under the Employee Share Option
Plan (the “Plan™). The Plan is designed to assist in the motivation and retention of employees and to recognize the
importance of employees {o the long-term performance and success of the Company. The Company has also granted
stock options to certain consultants outside of the Plan. The majority of the options te purchase common stock vest
on the anniversary of the date of grant, which ranges from one to three years. Additionally, certain stock options vest
npon the clesing price of the Company’s common stock reaching certain minimum levels, as defined in the
agreements. Share-based compensation expense related to options granted to employees is recognized on 2 straight-
line basis over the related vesting terni. Share-based compensation expense related to options granted to consultants
is recognized ratably over each vesting tranche of the options.

During the year ended June 30, 2010, the Company granted 383,333 options to purchase common stock to
certain employees and directors under the Plan. The options are exercisable at prices ranging from A$2.10 to A$7.20
per share and vest over a period of three years. The weighted averapge grant date fair value of the options is $2.08 per
share.
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During the year ended June 30, 2010, the Company granted 3,643,429 options to purchase common stock
outside of both the Plan and the Stock Incentive Plan in connection with the Company’s November 2009 private
placement as discussed above.,

In November 2009, the Company adopted the 2009 Stock Tncentive Plan (the “Stock Incentive Plan™). The Stock
Incentive Plan provides for a maximum of 6,000,000 shares of commen stock to be reserved for the issuance of stock
options and other stock-based awards. Commencing on January 1,2011, and on each January 1st thereafter, through
January 1, 2019, the share reserve will automatically adjust so that it will equal 12.5% of the weighted average
nunber of shares of common stock outstanding reduced by the sum of any shares of common stock issued under the
Stock Incentive Plan and any shares of common stock subject to outstandimg awards under the Stock Incentive Plan,

In November 2009, the Company’s compensation committee approved a new incentive package for its Chief
Executjve Officer, which included the issuance of 834,000 options to purchase common stock under the Stock
Incentive Plan. The options were issued on February 3, 2010 following stockholder approval of the incentive
package. The options are exercisable at $6.64 per share and vest upon the trading price of the Company’s common
stock reaching certain minimum levels on Nasdag, which range from $9.45 to $17.82 per share. The grant date fair
value of the options was $3.18 per share and the fair value of the options is being expensed on a straight-line basis
over a derived service period of 1.92 years.

In January 2010, the Company issued 1,000,000 options to purchase common stock to a consultant under the
Stock Incentive Plan in consideration for various services to be performed for the Company. The options to purchase
common stock are exercisable at A$6.33 per share and vest upon the trading price of the Company’s CDIs reaching
certain minjimum levels on the Australian Securities Exchange, which range from A$1.75 to A$3.22 per share. The
options are re-measured each reporting date and as of June 30, 2011 were valued at $2.29 per option, which is being
expensed ratably over the vesting period of each tranche, which ranges from 1.30 years to 2.0 years. The options will
be re-valued on a quarterly basis and marked to market until exercised.

In June 2010, the Company issued 240,000 options to purchase common stock to its Chief Financial Officer
under the Stock Incentive Plan. The options are exercisable at $5.28 per share and vest upon the market capitalization
of the Company reaching certain minimum levels, ranging from $500.0 million to $1,500.0 miliion. The grant date
fair value of the options was $2.38 per share and the fair value of the options is being expensed on a straight-line
basis over a derived service period of 2.70 years.

During the year ended June 30, 2010, the Company granted 70,000 additional options to purchase common
stock to cerfain employees under the Stock Incentive Plan. The options are exercisable at $5.80 per share and vest
over a period of three years. The weighted average grant date fair value of the options was $2.71 per share.

In December 2010, the Company issued 375,000 warrants to Keystone Redevelopment Group, LLC
(“Keystoue”) and 225,000 warrants to L2 Architecture {“L2") outside of both the Plan and the Stock Incentive Plan.
The warrants issued to Keystone were in partial consideration for managing the development of the Company’s new
headquarters and manufacturing facility and the warrants issued to L2 were in partial consideration for the custom
design of the facility. The warrants issued to both Keystone and L2 are exercisable at $3.30 per warrant vested
immediately upon issuance and were valued at $2.70 per warrant. The aggregate fair value of the warrants of
$1.6 million has been capitalized and included as a component of the cost of the building.

In December 2010, the Company issued 2,268,934 options to purchase common stock outside of both the Plan
and the Stock Incentive Plan in connection with the Cornpany’s December 2010 private placement as discussed
above.

In February 2011, the Company issued 300,000 options to purchase common stock to its Chief Operating
Officer under the Stock Incentive Plan. The options are exercisable at $4.85 per share and vest in eight equal
installments based upon the achievement of operational and product milestones as determined by the compensation
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committee of the board of directors. The weighted average grant date fair value of the options was $2.73 per share
and the fair value of the options is being expensed on a straight-line basis over a weighted average estimated service
period of 1.31 years.

During year ended June 30, 2011, the Company granted 1,193,517 additional options to purchase common stock
to certain employees and directors under the Stock Incentive Plan. The weighted average exercise price of the options
was $3.75 per share. The majority of the options vest over a period of three years, with the exception of 360,000
options, which vest upon meeting certain performance targets, as defined in the agreements. The weighted average
grant date fair value of the options was $2.80 per share.

In April and May 2011, the Company granted 300,000 options to purchase common stock to certain employees
under the Stock Incentive Plan, with a weighted average exercise price of $5.02 per share for which the performance-
based vesting terms have not been mutually agreed upon between the parties. Due to the fact that material terms have
not been mutually agreed upon between the grantees and the Company, the criteria for establishing a grant under
Accounting Standards Cedification (“ASC”) Topic 718, “Cempensation — Stock Compensation” has not been met.
As a result, share-based compensation expense recorded during the year ended June 30, 2011 does not include any
amounts related to these awards.

The following is a summary ol activity related to stock options held by employees and board members during
the year ended June 30, 2011;

Weiglhted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Number of Exercise Contractual Life Inlrinsic
Onptions Price (In Years) Yalue

(In thousands)

Granted 1,493,517 5.57

Cancelled (279,976)

Exercmable as of June 30,2011 2,044,169 § 2.64 22§ 5,072

The following is a summary of activity related to stock options and warrants held by non-employees during the
year ended Juns 30,2011:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Number of Average Remaining Aggregate
Options and Exercise Contractual Life Inirinsic
Warrants Price (Tu Years) Yalue

(In thousands)

Granted 2,868,934

Outstanding as of June 30, 2011 8126609 § 850 22 0§ 1759

The aggregate intrinsic value is defined as the difference between the market value of the Compéany’s common
stock as of the end of the period and the exercise price of the in-the-money stock options, The total intrinsic value of
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stock options exercised during the years ended June 30,2011, 2010 and 2009 was $6.0 million, $5.8 million and
$93,000, respectively. Of the 3,655,042 non vested options, 1,000,000 are held by a consultant.

The Company currently uses authorized and unissued shares to satisfy stock option exercises,

The weighted average fair value of stock options granted during the years ended June 30,2011, 2010 and 2009
was $2.65, $3.13 and $0.62 per share, respectively. The weighted average feair value of $2.65 per share during the
year ended June 30,2011 does not include the weighted average fair value of the stock options granted in connection
with the Company’s 2010 private placement of $1.26 per share. The weighted average fair value of $3.13 per share
during the year ended June 30, 2010 does not include the weighted average fair value of the stock options granted in
connection with the Company’s 2009 private placement of $2.49 per share.

The following is a summary of cutstanding and exercisable stock options held by employees and board members
as of June 30,2011:

Qutstanding Options Exercisable Options
Weighted Weighted
Outstanding  Weighted Average Exercisnble  Weighted Average
ag of Average Remaining as of Average Remaining
June 30, Exercise Contractual June 30, Exercise Contractual
i Life (In Y

2011 Pric

Life (In Years)

Range of Exercise Prices 2011 P

$2.11 475,000
3 Q0.8

4699211 § 448 41 2044169 § 264 22

The following is a summary of outstanding and exercisable stock options held by non-employees as of June 30,
2011:

Qutstanding Options Exercisable Options
Weighted ‘Weighted
Outstanding  Weighted Averapge Exercisable  Weighted Average
as of Avernge Remaining as of Average Remaining
June 30, Exercise Conlractual June 3¢, Exercise Contractual
Range of Exercise Prices . 2011 Price Life (In Years) 2011 Price Life {In Years)
5 3
$

8,126,609 § 8.9 22 7026609 § 885 2.0

The Company used the following weighted average assurriptions in calculating the fair value of options and
warranis granted during the year ended June 30, 2011, the period from January 27, 2010 to June 30, 2010 (the period
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subsequent to the Company’s redomiciliation), the period from July 1, 2009 to January 26, 2010 (the period prior to
the Company’s redomiciliation) and the year ended June 30, 2009 (prior to the Company’s redomiciliation):

Period From

Period From July 1,
Year Ended January 27,2010 to 2009 10 Year Ended
June 30, June 30, January 26, June 30,
2011 2010 2010 2009

ed dividend yield

Expect

The assumptions noted above for the year ended June 30, 2011 do not include amounts related to the 2,268,534
options issued in the Company’s December 2010 private placement as discussed above. The assumptions noted
above for the period from July 1, 2009 to January 26, 2010 do not include amounts related to the 3,643,429 options
issued in the Company’s October 2009 private placement, as discussed above.

Subsequent to the Company’s redomiciliation, the fair value of each stock option was estimated at the grant date
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, with the exception of grants subject to market conditions, which were
valued using a Monte Carlo option pricing model. The Company has not historically paid dividends to its
stockholders and, as a result, assumed a dividend yield of 0%. The risk free interest rate is based upon the rates of
U.S. Treasury bonds with a term equal to the expected term of the option. Due to the Company’s limited Nasdag
trading history, the expected volatility used to value options granted after January 27, 2010 is based upon a blended
rate of the historical share price of the Company’s stock on the Australian Securities Exchange and the volatility of
peer companies traded on U.S. exchanges operating in the same industry as the Company. The expected term of the
options to purchase common stock issued to employees aud directors is based upon the simplified method, which is
the mid-point between the vesting date of the option and its contractual term unless a reasonable aitemate term is
estimated by management. The expected term of the options to purchase common stock issued to consultants is based
on the contractual termn of the awards.

Prior to the Company’s redomiciliation, the fair value of each stock option was estimated at the grant date using
the Black-Scholes option pricing model, with the exception of grants subject to market conditions which were valued
based on a Barrier option pricing model. The Company has not historically paid dividends to its stockholders and, as
aresull, assumed a dividend yield of 0%. The risk free interest rate is based upon the rates of Australian bonds with a
term equal to the expected term of the option. The expected volatility is based upon the historical share price of the
Company’s common stock on the Australian Securities Exchange. The expected term of the stock options to
purchase commeon stock is bagsed upon the outstanding contractual term of the stock option on the date of grant.

Resiricted Stock

The Company has granted shares of restricted stock to certain employees and consultants under the Stock
Incentive Plan. During the period prior to vesting, the holder of the non-vested restricted stock will have the right to
vote and the right to receive all dividends and other distributions declared. All non-vested shares of restricted stock
are reflected as outstanding; however, they have heen excluded from the calculation of basic earnings per share.

For employees, the fair value of restricted stock is measured on the date of grant using the closing price of the
Company’s common stock on that date, Share-based compensation expense for restricted stock issued to employees
is recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period, which is generally the longest vesting period.
For restricted stock granted to consultants, the fair value of the awards will be re-valued on a quarterly basis and

o4




Table of Conters@S€ 2:13-cv-05101-MMB Document 1 Filed 08/30/13 Page 104 of 141

UNILIFE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)

marked to market until vested. Share-based compensation expense for restricted stock issued to consultants is
recognized ratably over each vesting tranche.

In November 2009, the Company’s compensation committee approved the issuance of 1,166,000 shares of
restricted stock to the Company’s Chief Executive Officer under the Stock Incentive Plan. The shares were issued in
February 2010 following stockholder approval. The shares of restricted stock vest upon the satisfaction of certain
performance targets, as defined in the agreement. The grant date fair value of the restricted shares was $6.64 per
share.

In June 2010, the Company issued 80,000 shares of restricted stock to the Company’s Chief Financial Officer
under the Stock Incentive Plan. The shares of restricted stock vest on certain anniversaries from the date of grant,
ranging from one to three years, The grant date fair value of the restricted shares was $5.28 per share.

In March 2010, the Company issued 572,000 shares of restricted stock to certain employees and a consultant.
The majority of the shares of restricted stock vest on certain anniversaries from the date of grant, ranging from one to
three years. The remaining shares vest upou the satisfaction of certain performance targets, as defined in the
agreements. The weighted average grant date fair value of the restricted shares was $6.07 per share.

In February 2011, the Company issued 120,000 shares of restricted stock to its Chief Operating Officer under
the Stock Incentive Plan. A total of 80,000 shares of the restricted stock vest on certain anniversaries from the date of
grant, ranging from one to three years and a total of 40,000 shares of restricted stock vest upon the achievement of
certain performance conditions, as defined in the agreement. The grant date fair value of the restricted shages was
$4.85 per share.

The following is a summary of activity related to restricted stock awards during the year ended June 30, 2011.

Numbher of Weighted Average
Restricted Stock Grant Date Fair
Awards Value

Grants of Common Stock to Employees

During the year ended June 30, 2009 the Company granted 45,885 shares of common stock to certain
employees. The Company recorded a charge to operations of $44,000 related to the issuance of these awards.

During the year ended June 30, 2009, the Company granted 1,666,667 shares of common stock to its Chief
Executive Officer. The shares are subject to certain transfer restrictions in which 832,333 cannct be sold until the
first anniversary of the date of grant and 833,334 cannot be sold until the second anniversary of the date of grant,
During the year ended June 30, 2009, the Company recorded a charge to operations of $1.5 million related to the
issuance of these awards.

During the year ended June 30,2011, the Company granted 23,184 shares of common stock to certain
employees. The Company recorded a charge to operations of $0.1 million related to the issuance of these awards.
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5, Property, Plant and Equipment and Construction-in-Progress
Property, plant and equipment consist of the foliowing:

June 30,
2011 2010
(In thousands)

i—}“umiture and fixtures 323 737

%’roperty, plant and equipment, net $54,020 329972

Construction in progress as of June 30, 2011 consisted primarily of amounts incurred in connection with
machinery and equipment. Construction in progress as of June 30, 2010 consisted primarily of amounts incurred in
connection with the construction of the Company’s new manufacturing facility and machinery and equipment,

=

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill during the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2011 are as follows:

(In thousands)

Intangible assets consist of patents acquired in a business acquisition of $0.1 million. Related accumulated
amnortization as of June 30, 2011 and 2010 was $63,000 and $40,000 respectively, and future amortization expense is
scheduled to be $7,000 annually.

7. Accrued Expenses
Accrued expenses consist of the following:
June 30,

2011 2010
(In thousands)

Accrued other . 728 503

e
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8. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company leases certain facilities, office equipment and automobiles under non-cancellable operating ieases.
The future minimum lease payments related to the Company's non-cancellable operating lease commitments as of
June 30,2011 were as follows;

¥or the Year Ending June 30,

(In thousands)

$ 112

Rental expenses under operating leases during the years ended June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was $0.7 million,
$0.6 million and $0.7 million, respectively.

From time to time, the Company is involved in various legal proceedings, claims, suits and complaints arising
out of the normal course of business. Based on the facts currently available to the Company, management believes
that these claims, suits and complaints are adequately provided for, covered by insurance, without merit or not
probable that an unfaverable cutcome will result.

9. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following:

June 3,
2071 2010

Total long-term debt o $20413  $1093

Mortgage Loans

In October 2010, the Company entered into a loan agreement with Metro Bank (*Metro”), pursuant to which
Metro agreed to provide the Company with two notes in the amounts of $14.25 million and $3.75 million. The
proceeds received have been used to finance the purchase of the land and construction of the Company’s new
corperate headquarters and manufacturing facility in York, Pennsylvania, including the repayment of 2 $6.9 million
hridge construction loan with Univest.

The $14 .25 million term note matures 20 yzars from completion of construction of the Company’s new
corporate headquarters and manufacturing facility and the $3.75 million term note matures on October 20, 2020,
During construction, the Company paid only interest on both term notes at the Prime Rate plus 1.50% per annum,
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with a floor of 4.50% per annum. For a period of five years subsequent to construction, the Company will pay
principal and interest on both term notes, with interest at a fixed rate based on the 3 vear Treasury-bill plus 300 basis
points per anniun, with a floor of 6.0% per annum. Cominencing five years subsequent to construction through the
maturity dates for each term note, the Company will pay principal and interest on both term notes, with interest at a
tate to be negotiated by the parties, or if no rate is negotiated, based upon the Prime Rate plus 1.0% per annumni, with
a floor not to exceed 250 basis points over the Prime Rate, The Company will alse pay one final payment of principal
and interest upon the maturity of each term note.

The loan agreement contains certain customary covenants, including the maintenance of a Debt Service Reserve
Account in the amount of $2.4 million, classified as restricted cash on the consolidated balance sheet, which will
remain in place until the Company and Metro agree on the financial covenants, The Company was in compliance
with its debt covenants as of June 30, 2011, However, the Company is not certain that it will be able to maintain the
Debt Service Reserve Account balance for a period of 12 months from June 30, 2011, The Company may prepay the
loan, but will incur a prepayment penalty of 2.0% during the first three years. The U.S. Department of Agriculture
has guaranteed $10.0 million of the loan.

As of Tune 30,2011, $14.19 million was outstanding under the $14.25 million note and the full amount was
outstanding under the $3.75 million note.

Bank Term Loans

Bank term loans consist of two term loans payable. The loans bear interest at a rate of prime (3.25% as of
Tune 30, 2011) plus 1.50%. (4.75% as of June 30, 2011} per annum and mature on dates ranging from December
2020 through August 2021. The borrowings under the bank term loans are collateralized by the Company’s accounts
receivable, inventories and certain machinery and equipment. In February 2011, the bank term Ican agreements were
amended so that the covenants are consistent with those under the Company’s mortgage loans as discussed above,
thus removing the covenants that were in violation as of June 30, 2010. Due to the previcus violation of the bank
term loan covenants as of June 30, 2010 and the uncertainty of being able to maintain the Debt Service Reserve
Account balance for a period of 12 months from June 30, 2011, the $1.2 million long-term portion outstanding as of
June 30, 2011 under these bank term loans is classified in the cutrent portion of long-term debt.

Commonwealith of Pennsylvania Financing Authority Loan

In October 2009, the Company accepted & $5 .45 million offer of assistance from the Commenwealth of
Pennsylvania which included up to $2.25 million in financing for land and the construction of its new manufacturing
facility. In December 2010, Unilife Cross Farm LLC, a subsidiary of the Company (“Cross Farm'), received the .
$2.25 million loan which bears interest at a rate of 53.0% per annum, matures in January 2021 and is secured by a
third mortgage on its new facility. In connection with the loan agreement, Cross Farm entered inte an intercreditor
agreement by which the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania agreed that it would not exercise its rights in the event of a
default by Cross Farm without the consent of Metro, who holds the first and second mortgages on its new facility.

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Assisted Machinery Loans

The Company has qualified for two Commenwealth of Pennsylvania assisted loans for the purchase of specific
machinery and equipment. These loans bear interest at rates ranging from 2.75% to 3.25% per annum and mature on
dates ranging from July 2011 through July 2013, The borrowings under these loans are collateralized by the related
equipment.
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As of June 30, 2011, aggregate maturities of long-term obligations are as follows:

For the Year Ending June 3¢,

(In thousands)

10. Loss Per Share

The Company’s net loss per share is as follows:

Year Ended June 30,

Weighted average number of shares used to compute basic loss

_per share 57,891,024 46,837,066 34,426,353
Weighted average number of shares used to compute diluted loss
per share 57,891,024 46,837,066 34 426,353

Due to the Company’s net losses, unvested shares of restricted stock (participating securities) totaling 1,959,828
and 489,178 were excluded from the calculation of basic and diluted loss per share during the years ended June 30,
2011 and 2010, respectively. There were no shares of restricted stock outstanding during the year ended June 30,
2009.

In addition, stock options (non-participating securities) totaling 8,998,164, 8,234,060, and 5,362,310 during the
years ended June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively, were excluded from the calculation of diluted loss per share
as their effect would have been anti-dilutive. Certain of these stock options were excluded solely due to the
Company’s net loss position, Had the Company reported net income during the years ended Tune 30, 2011,2010 and
2009, these shares would have had an effect of 1,861,935, 2,316,360, and 237,610 diluted shares, respectively, for
purposes of calculating diluted Ioss per share.
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11. TIncome Taxes
For the years ended June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009, income (loss) before income taxes consists of the following:

Years Ended June 30,
2011 2010 2009

(In thonsands)

Tax Rate Reconciliation

Income tax expense (benefit} is as follows:

Yeoar Ended June 390,
2011 2010 2009
Current _Deferred Total Current Deferred Total Current Deferred Total

{In thousands)

Tncome tax expense (benefit) was $0 for the years ended June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009 and differed from the
amounts computed by applying the U.S. federal income tax rate to pretax income as a result of the following:

Year Ended June 30,
2011 2010 2009

4%  3T%  44%
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Significant Components of Deferred Taxes

The tax effects of temporary differences and net operating losses that give rise to significant portions of deferred
tax assets (liabilities) at June 30,2011 and 2010 are presented below:

June 30,
2011 2010
(In thousands)

Depreciation differences (677) (190

N et deferred taxes $ — 3 —

The valuation allowance for deferred tax assets as of June 30,2011 and 2010 was $39.3 million and
$20.1 million, respectively. The net change in the total valuation allowance was an increase of $19.2 million. In
assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some
portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is
dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences
become deductible or prior to the expiration of the net operating loss carryforwards, Management considers the
scheduled reversal of deferved tax liabilities (including the impact of available carryback end carryforward periods),
projected future taxable income, and tax-planning strategies in making the assessment as to the realizability of
deferred tax assets. Based upon the level of historical taxable income and uncertainty regarding projections for future
taxable income over the periods in which the deferred tax assets are deductible or can be utilized, management does
not believe it is more likely than not that the Company will realize the benefits of these net operating losses and
deductible temporary differences, as of June 30, 2011 and 2010. Therefore a full valuation allowance has been
provided. The amount of the net deferred tax assets considered realizable, however, could change if estimates of
future taxable income during the carryforward period are increased.

As of June 30, 2011, the Company had net operating loss carryforwards for U.S federal, state and Australian
income tax purposes of approximately $55.7 million, $55.7 million and $23.5 million, respectively, which are
available to offset future taxable income. The U.S. federal and state net operating loss carryforwards begin to expire
in 2023. The Australian net operating losses do not expire.

The Australian net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $23.5 million as of June 30, 2011 are subject
to either the continuity of ownership or same business test (as defined under Australian tax law) that could limit or
substantially eliminate the Company’s ability to use these carryforwards. If there have been or will be changes in the
Company’s ownership or Australian business operations before these net operating loss carryforwards are utilized,
they may be unavailable to reduce taxable income in the future. Further, under provision of the Internal Revenue
Code, the utilization of a U.S corporation’s federal and state net operating loss carryforwards may be significantly
limited following a change in ownership of greater than 50% within a three-year period. The Company’s federal and
state net operating loss carryforwards may, therefore, be subject to an annual limitation. In addition, state net
operating loss carryforwards may be further limited in Pennsylvania, which has a limitation equal to the greater of
20% of taxable income after modifications and apportionment, or $3.0 million on state net operating losses utilized in
any one year.

The Company has adopted the provisions of Interpretation 48, included in ASC Subtopic 740-10. Management
has evaluated the tax positions taken and has concluded that no liability for unrecognized tax benefits was required to
be recorded for the years ended June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009,
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The Company files Australian, U S. federal and state income tax returns. The Company is not subject to
examnination In any jurisdiction at this time. As a result of the net operating losses in prior years, the statute of
limitations will remain open for a period following any utilization of net operating loss carryforwards and as such
these periods remain subject to examination.

12. Employee Benefit Plan

The Company has a retirement savings 401(k) plan covering all U.S. employees. Participating employees may
contribute up to 100% of their pre-tax earnings, subject to the statutory limits. During the years ended June 30, 2011,
2010 and 2009, the Company did not match any employee contributions.

13. Business Alliances
Sanofi

The Company signed an exclusive licensing agreemient and an industrialization agreement with Sanofi, a
multinational pharmaceutical company, between June 2008 and July 2009. Under the terms of these agreements,
Sanofi has agreed to pay the Company an aggregate of approximately $36.4 million in exclusivity fees and
industrialization milestone payments for the exclusive right to negetiate the purchase of the Unifill ready-to-fill
(prefilled) syringe (Unifill syringe or product),

Pursuzant to the exclusive licensing agreement, Sanofi has paid the Company a 10.0 million euro ($13.0 million)
up front non-refundable one-time fee. During the year ended June 30, 2009, the Company recognized $2.5 million of
this up-front payment as revenue and deferred $10.6 million, which is being recognized on a straight-line basis over
the remaining term of the agreement.

Pursuant to the industrialization agreement, Sanofi has agreed to pay the Company up to 17.0 million euros
{$23 4 million) in milestone-based payments to fund the completion of the Company’s industrialization program for
the Unifill syringe. As of June 30, 2011 there is one remaining milestone payment of 1.0 millicn euro fo be
recognized under the industrialization agreement.

This exclusive right for Sanofi to negotiate for the purchase of the Unifill syringe is limited to the therapeutic
drug classes of anti-thrombotic agents, vaccines and four confidentizl sub-classes until June 30,2014 (exclusivity
list). The Company is able to negotiate with other pharmaceutical companies seeking to utilize the Unifill syringe
with drugs targeted for use in therapeutic drug classes outside of those retained by Sanofi under its exclusivity list.
Upon mutuzl agreement by both parties, Sanofi may add additional therapeutic sub-classes to the exclusivity list for
the Unifill syringe provided the Company has not previously signed exclusive terms for the product to a third party.
The Company is not obligated to sell more than 30% of its annual production capacity for the Unifill syringe to
Sanofi without written netification up to two years in advance.

Stason Pharmaceuticals

In March 2010, the Company signed an exclusive five year agreement with Stason Pharmaceuticals, a
1J.S. based pharmaceutical company, to market its Unitract 1mL syringe in Japan, China and Taiwan. Under the
agreement, Stason Pharmaceuticals is required to purchase a minimum of 1.0 million units of the Unitract 1mL
syringe per vear during the term of the contract, subject to regulatory approval of the Unitract ImL in those markets,
which is currently pending.
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14. Financial Instruments

The Company does not hold or issue financial instruments for trading purposes. The estimated fair values of the
Company’s financial instruments are as follows:

Juue 30,2011 Jnne 30,2010
Carrying Estimated  Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value  Amount Tair Value
(In thousands)
Assets
Cash equivalents — certificates of deposit $1,000 $1,000 $18629  $18,629

The carrying amount of the Company’s cash equivalents, which includes certificates of deposit, accounts
receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses approximate their fair value due to the short term maturities of
these items. The estimated fair value of the Company’s debt approximates its carrying value based upon the rates that
the Company would currently be able to receive for similar instruments of comparable maturity.

The Company categorizes its assets and liabilities measured at fair value into a fair value hierarchy that
prioritizes the inputs used in pricing the asset or liability. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level ] — Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Observable inputs other than quoted prices included n Level 1, such as quoted prices for similar
assets and liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities in markets that
are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data,

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to
the fair value of the assets or liabilities. This includes certain pricing models, discounted cash flow
methodologies and similar techniques that use sigrificant unobservable inputs,

The levels in the fair value hierarchy within which a fair value measurement in its entirety falls is based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

The following table presents the Company’s assets that are measured at fajr value on a recurring basis for the
periods presented:

Fair Valne Based On
Quoted Markel
Prices in Aclive Significant Significant
Markets for Otler Unobservable Tatal
Identical Assets Observable Inputs Inpnts Fair Value
(Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3) Measurements
(In thousands)
Cash equivalents - certificates of deposit '
(June 30,2011) $— $ 1,000 $— $ 1,000
Cash equivalents — certificates of deposit
(June 30,2010) $— $18.629 $— $18,629
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15. Qmarterly Results (unaudited)

Quarter Ended Quarter Ended Quarter Ended Quarter Ended
September 30,2010  December 31, 2010 March 31, 2011 June 30, 2011

(In thousands, except per share data)

(12,533)
Quarter Ended Quarter Ended Quarter Ended Quarter Ended
September 30,2009  December 31, 2009 March 31, 2010 June 30,2010

(In thousands, except per shore data)

Yéur Ende
Revenues
P

Per share amounts for the quarters may not add te the annual amount due to differences in the weighted average
common shares outstanding during the petiods.

16. Subseqnent Events

On August 15,2011, the Company entered into a Master Lease Agreement with Varilease Finance, Inc.
{(“Varilease”}. Under the Master Lease Agreement, Varilease will provide up to $10.0 mnillion of lease financing for
production equipment for the Unifill ready-to-fill syringe. The Company has the option of selling and leasing back
existing equipment or using the facility to lease additional equipment.

Under the terms of the Master Lease Agreement, the Company will lease the equiptnent from Varileass for a
two-year base term, and the Company will pay rent in equal monthly instailments of up to $0.4 million over the base
term. ‘

The Master Lease Agreement contains covenants and provigions for events of default customarily found in lease
agreemnents. The Company may prepay the monthly rent payments without penalty. At the end of the lease term, the
Company has the option to extend the lease, return the equipment or purchase the equipment, as defined in the
agreeimnent.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None,

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Qur management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer;
performed en evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (“Exchange Act”} as of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. Our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer have concluded that our disclosure controls
and procedures were effective insofar as they are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us
in the reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the
time pericds specified in the Commission’s rules and forms, and they include, without limitation, controls and
procedvres designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports we file or submit under
the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our principal executive and
principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, as appropriate to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and the Report of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm is included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Control

There has not been any change in our internal control over financial reporting (as such term is defined in
Rules 13a-15(D) and 15d — 15(f) under the Exchange Act) during the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2011 that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal conirol over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.

PART III

Ttem 10, Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by this Item 10 regarding directors and corporate governance is incorporated by
reference to our definitive proxy statement for our 2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “2011 Proxy
Statement’™) under the headings “Blection of Directors™ and “Information on our Board of Directors and Corporate
Governance”. Information regarding executive officers is set forth in Item 1 of Part T of this Report under the caption
“Executive Officers.”

Ttem 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Ttem 11 is incorporated by reference to the 2011 Proxy Statement under the
headings of “Executive Compensation” and “Director Compensation”.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

Except as set forth below, the information required by Item 12 is incorporated by reference to the 2011 Proxy
Statement under the heading “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management,” “Bquity
Compensation Plan Information,” and “Equity Compensation Plan Information.”
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ASX-Required Disclosure
Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) and Repurchases of Securities

We are not subject to Chapters 6, 6A, 6B and 6C of the Corporations Act dealing with the acquisition of our
shares {in particular, relating to substantial shareholdings and takeovers}.

Under the Delaware General Corporation Law, we are generally permitted to purchase or redeem our
outstanding shares out of funds legally available for that purpose without ebtaining stockholder approval, provided
that (i) our capital is not impaired; (ii} such purchase or redemption would not cause our capital to become impaired;
(iii) the purchase price does not exceed the price at which the shares are redeemable at our option and
(iv) immediately following any such redemption, we shall have outstanding one or more shares of one or more
classes or series of stock, which shares shall have full voting powers, Qur certificate of incorporation does not creats
any further limitation on our purchase or redemption of our shares.

Australian Disclosure Requirements

As part of our ASX listing, we are required to comply with various disclosure requirements as set out under the
ASX Listing Rules. The following information is intended to comply with the ASX Listing Rules and is net intended
to fulfill information required by this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Comparative Performance Graph

The performance graph shown below coinpares the change in cumulative total stockhelder return of Unilife
Corporation’s Chess Depository Interest (CDI), the ASX All Ordinaries Index and the S&P/ASX 200 Health Care
Index for the five vear period ended June 30,2011, The graph sets the beginning value of shares of CDIs and the
indices at $100, and assumes that all quarterly dividends were reinvested at the time of payment. This graph does not
forecast future performance of shares of the Company’s common stock cr CDIs.
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Common Siock
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Number of CDis
Number of Shares of Number of Number of
Haolders Common Stock Holders CDls

140,415 2,580

278 64,077,858 8429

7,561,548

265,787,045

The number of stockholders holding less than 8 marketable parcel of shares was 863 as of September 1,2011.

There is no current on-market buy-back of the Company’s securities.

Twenty Largest CDI Holders as of September 9,2011

Number of % of CDIs
Rank Name CDIs Held Outstanding
1. Merkaba Limited 7,263,588 274
2. Natienal Nominees Limited 5,289,512 200
3. TP Morgan Nominees Australia Limited 4,560,594 172
4. Admark Investments Pty Ltd <JS Pinto Super Fund A/C> 3,937,047 149
5. Joseph Kaal 3,833,990 145
6. Penila Investments Pty Ltd <Hornung S/F A/C> 3,657,799 1.38
7. Mr Bradley Gavin Downes 3,014,169 1.14
8. Mr Dennis Banks + Mrs Janine Banks <Banks Super Fund A/C> 2,580,591 097
9, Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited 2457,850 0.93
10. Thorley Management Pty Ltd <Thorley Investment A/C> 2,322,498 0.88
11. Omah Nominees Pty Ltd <The PTH A/C> 2,017,645 0.76
12. Mr Dennis John Banks <The Banks Family A/C> 1,919,671 072
13, ABN Amro Clearing Sydney Nominees Pty Ltd <Custodian A/C> 1,841,026 0.69
14, JP Morgan Nominees Australia Limited <Cash Income A/C> 1,673,814 0.63
15, T & N Kaal Pty Ltd <Kaal Superfund A/C> 1,585,365 0.60
16. Hertogs Investments Pty Limited 1,400,000 0.53
17.  Mr Peter Marcus Barr + Mrs Kay Ellen Barr <Regnal Super Fund A/C> 1,322 427 0,50
18. Mirrabooka Investments Limited 1,200,000 045
19. KAS Investments & Development Pty Ltd <KAS Investments S/F A/C> 1,054,890 040
20, Mrs. Cherie Ann Lauder + Mr, John William Lander <J&C Lauder Family
S/F AIC> 1,013,234 0.8
Total 53,945,910 20.36
General Information

The name of the Company Secretary is Mr. J. Christopher Naftzger.

The complete mailing address, including zip code, of our principal executive offices is 25¢ Cross Farm Lane,

York, Pennsylvania 17406.
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The address of the principal registered office in Australia is Suite 3, Level 1, 1 Chifley Square, Sydney NSW
2000 and our telephone number there i8 +61 2 8346 6500. The ASX Liaison Officer is Mr. Jeff Carter.

Registers of securities are held at Computershare Investor Services Pty Limited, Level 2, 45 St Georges Terrace
Perth WA 6000 Australiz, Investor Enquiries +61 & 9323 2000 (within Australia) +61 3 9415 4677 (outside
Australia).

Voting Rights

Unilife’s by-laws provide that each stockholder has one vote for every share of common stock entitled to vote
held of record by such stockholder and a proportionate vote for each fractional share of stock entitled to vote so held,
unless otherwise provided by Delaware General Corporation Law or in the certificate of incorporation.

If holders of CDIs wish to attend Unilife’s géneral meetings, they will be able to do so. Under the ASX Listing
Rules, Unilife, as an issuer of CDIs, must allow CDI holders to attend any meeting of the holders of the underlying
securities unless relevant U.S. law at the time of the meeting prevents CDI holders from attending those meetings.

In order to vote at such meetings, CDI holders have the following options:

(a) instructing CDN, as the legal owner, to vate the Unilife Shares underlying their CDIs in a particular
manner, The instruction form must be completed and returned to Unilife’s share registry prior to the meeting;

(b} informing Unilife that they wish to nominate themselves or another pérson to be appointed as CDN’s
proxy for the purposes of attending and voting at the general meeting;

{c) converting their CDIs into a holding of Unilife and voting these at the meeting (however, if thereafter
the former CDI holder wishes to sell their investment on ASX, it would be necessary to convert Unilife Shares
baclk to CDIs).

As holders of CDIs wili not appear on Unilife’s share register as the legal holders of Unilife Shares, they will
not be entitled to vote at a Unilife stockholder meetings unless one of the above steps is undertaken.

Proxy forms and details of these alternatives will be included in each notice of meeting sent to CDI holders by
Unilife.

Holders of options are not entitled to vote.

Australian Corporate Governance Statement

The Board of Directors and employees of Unilife Corporation (“Unilife” or the “Company™} are committed to
developing, promoting and maintaining a strong culturé of good corporate governance and ethical conduct.

The Board of Directors confirms that the Company’s corporate governance framework is generally consistent
with the Australian Securities Exchange’s (“ASX”) Corporate Governance Council’s “Corporate Governance
Principles and Recommendations (2nd Edition)” {*ASX Governance Recommendations’), other than as set out
below, To this end, the Company provides below a review of its governance framework using the same numbering as
adopted for the Principles as set out in the ASX Governance Recommendations.

Copies of the Company’s charters, codes and policies may be downloaded from the corporate governance
section of the Unilife website ( www.unilife.com ).

The Company redomiciled to the United States in January 2010 and listed on Nasdaq in February 2010. As a
result and to meet Nasdaq Hsting requirements, the policies and practices adopted by the Company are predominantly
“U.S.-focused”.
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Principle 1 — Lay solid foundations for management and oversight

Recommendation 1.1 — Establish the functions reserved to the board and those delegated to senior executives and
disclose those functions

The primary responsibility of:

{a} the Board of Directors is to exercise their business judgment to act in what they reasonably believe to be
in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders; and

(b) the Chief Executive Cfficer is to oversee the day-to-day performance of Unilife (pursuant to Board
delegated powers). :

The Board’s responsibilities are recognized and documented on an aggregated basis via the Charter of the Board
of Directors, which is availeble on the corporate governance section of the Company’s website,

‘While day-to-day management has been delegated to the Chief Executive Officer, it is noted that the following
matters are specifically reserved for the attention of the Board:

(a) providing input into and final approval of management’s development of corporate strategy and
performance objeclives;

(b) reviewing, ratifying and monitoring systems of risk management and internal conttol, codes of conduct,
and legal compliance; .

{c) ensuring appropriate rescurces are available to senior executives;

{(d} approving and monitoring the progress of major capital expenditure, capital management and
acquisitions and divestments; and

{e) approving and monitering financial and other reporting.

Recommendation .2 — Disciose the process for evaluating the performance of senior executives

Informalion regarding executive compensation required by Item 11 of Form 10-K, including 2 discussion in
relation to the mechanics concerning the evaluation of performance of the Company’s senicr executives, including
televant benchimarking activities, will be contained in the 2011 Proxy Statement under the caption “Executive
Compensation,” and is incorporated by reference.

Recommendation 1.3 — Disclosure of information under Principle I of the ASX Governance Recommendations

Reporting Requirement

The Company fully complied with Recommendation 1.1 to 1.3 during the fiscal year ended June 30, 201 1.

Principle 2 — Strnctnre the Board to add value
Recommendation 2.1 — A majority of the bogrd should be independent directors
Recommendation 2.2 - The chair should be an independent director

Recommendarion 2.3 — The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should not be exercised by the same
individual

The Board of Directors is currently comprised of seven directors. The seven directors include six non-executive
directors (including the Chairman of the Board) and one executive director (being the Chief Executive Officer) with
the role of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer being exercised by different individuals. Five of the six non-
executive directors are “independent” as defined in the Nasdaq listing rules. :

At the Company’s expense, the Board collectively or directors (acting as individuals) are entitled to seek advice
fromn independent external advisers in relation to any matter which is considered necessary to fulfill their
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relevant duties and responsibilities, Individual directors seeking such advice must obtain the approval of the
Chairman. Any advice so obtained will be made available to the Board.
Recommendation 24 — The board should establish a nomination committee

The Company has established a Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee which consists of all
independent directors (including the Chairman of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee). The
members of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee are Mr. Bosnjak, Mr. Lund, Mr. Galle and
M. Firestone {Chair). A copy of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Charter is available on the
corporate governance section of the Company’s website,

Reporting Requirement

The Company fully complied with Recommendation 2.1 to 2.4 during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.
Recommendation 2.5 — Disclose the process for evaluating the performance of the Board, its committees and
individual directors )

Reporting Requirement

In connection with its upcoming 2011 Proxy Statement, the Corporate Governance & Nominating Comumittee
has nndertaken a formal review of the performance of the Board, its committees and individual directors, which will
be completed prior to the nomination of the slate of the board of directors for the upcoming proxy.

Recommendation 2.6 — Disclosure of information under Principle 2 of the ASX Governance Recommendations

Reporting Requirement

Information regarding our directors, including biographical information and share ownership information
required by Items 10 and 12 of Form 10-K will be included in the 2011 Proxy Statement under the captions “Election
of Directors” and “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management.”

Principle 3 — Promote ethical and responsible decision-making
Recommendation 3.1 — Establish a Code of Conduct and disclose it.

The Company has adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics which is available on the corporate
govemnance section of the Company’s website.

Recommendation 3.2 — Establish a pelicy concerning trading in Company securities by directors, senior
executives and employees and disclose it

The Company has adopted an Insider Trading Policy which is available on the corporate governance section of
the Company’s website.

Recommendation 3.3 — Disclosure of information under Principle 3 of the ASX Governance Recommendations
Reporting Requirement

The Company fully complied with Recommendation 3.1 to 3.3 during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.
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Principle 4 — Safeguard integrity in financial reporting
Recommendation 4.1 — The Board should establish an Audit Committee

Recommendation 42 — The Audit Committee should: {a) consist of non-executive directors only; (b) consist of a
majority of independent directors; (¢} be chaired by an independent chair who is not chair of the Board; and
(d) have at least three members

Recommendation 4.3 — The Audit Committee should have a formal charter

The Corﬁpany has established an Audit Committee which consists only of non-executive directors all of whom
are independent (including the Chairman of the Audit Committes), The members of the Audit Committee are
Mr. Bosnjak, Mr. Lund (Chair) and Ms. Wold.

The Audit Committee Charter is available on the corporate governance section of the Company’s website.

Reporting Requirement

The Company fully complied with Recommendation 4.1 to 4.3 during the fiscal year ended June 30,2011,

Recommendation 44 — Disclosure of information under Principle 4 of the ASX Governance Recommendations -
Reporting Requtirement

Information regarding the skills, experience and expertise of directors, including audit committee members in
accordance with U.S disclosure requirements, will be included in the 2011 Proxy Statement.

In Ttem 9A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we have disclosed information regarding the Company’s
Controls and Procedures, including management’s evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures and management’s evaluation of the effectivensss of our internal control over financial reporting.

Principle 5 — Make timely and balanced disclosnre

Recommendation 5.1 — Establish written policies designed to ensure compliance with ASX Listing Rule disclosure
requirements and to ensure accountability at a senior executive level for that compliance and disclose those
policies

Recommendation 5.2 — Disclosure of information under Principle 5 of the ASX Governance Recommendations

Unilife is committed to providing timely and halanced disclosure to the market and, in consequence, to meeting
its continuous disclosure requirements. The Company established a Disclosure Committee for the purpose of
ensuring significant matiers requiring public disclosure are communicated to management and disclosed in a timely
manner. :

In accordance with its commitment to fully comply with its continuous disclosure requirements, the Company
has adopted 2 Continuous Disclosure Policy, together with other internal mechanisms and reporting requirements.

Reporting Requirement

The Company fully complied with Recommendation 5.1 and 5.2 during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.
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Principle 6 -~ Respect the rights of shareholders

Recommendation 6.1 — Design a communications policy for promoting effective communication with
shareholders and encourage their participation at stockholder’s meetings and disclose those policies

Recommendation 6.2 — Disclosure of information under Principle 6 of the ASX Governance Recommendations

While the Company has not adopted a formal communications policy as recommended under Recommendation
6.1, the Company communicates information to shareholders through a range of media including annual reports,
public (ASX and SHC) announcements and via the Company’s website. Key financial informakion and stock
performance are also available on the Company’s website. Shareholders can raise questions with the Company by
contacting the Company via telephone, facsimile, post or email, with relevant contact details being available on the
Company's website.

All shareholders are invited to attend the Company’s Annual Meeting of Stockholders, either in person or by
proxy. The Board regards the Annual Meeting as an excellent forum in which to discuss issues relevant o the
Company and thereby encourages full participation by shareholders. Shareholders have an epportunity to submit
questions to the Board and the Company’s auditors, The meeting is also webcast to provide access to those
shareholders who are unable to attend the Annual Meeting.

Reporting requirement

Save as set out above, the Company fully complied with Recommendation 6.1 and 6.2 for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2011,

Principle 7 — Recognize and manage risk

Recommendation 7.1 — Establish policies for the oversight and management of material business risks and
disclose it

The risks that the Company faces are continually changing in line with the development of the Company. The
primary risks faced by the Company during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 included liquidity or funding risk and
operational risks associated with the finalization of the Company’s industrialization of its Unifill syringe.

The Company operates in an environment where it is required to actively manage fundamental risks such as the
integrity of the Company’s intellectual property portfolio, disaster management, exchange rate risk and the risk of
losing key management personnel.

In simple terms, risk is inherent in all business activities undertaken by Unilife. Unfortunately, many of these
risks are beyond the control of the Company and, as such, it is important that risk be mitigated on a continuous basis,
particularly if the Company is to preserve sharehelder value.

The Board of Directors hag approved a Risk Management Policy, which is designed to ensure that risks
including, amongst others, technology risks, economic risks, financial risks and other operational risks are identified,
evaluated and mitigated te enable the achievement of the Cotnpany’s goals.

Reporting requirement

The Company fully complied with Recommendation 7.1 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.
Recommendation 7.2 — Require management to design and implement the risk management and internal control
system to manage the Compary’s material business risks and report to It whether those risks are being managed

effectively (and makes disclosures therein); Disclose that management has reported to the Board as to the
effectiveness of the Company’s monagement of its material business risks

Management provides the Board with frequent (i.e. generally monthly) updates on the state of the Company’s
business, including the risks that the Company faces from time-to-time. This update includes up-to-date financial
information, operational activity, clinical status and competitor updates, These updates are founded on internal
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communications that are fostered internally through weekly management meetings and other internal
communications. These processes operate in addition to the Company’s Quality System, complaint handling
processes, employee policies and standard operating procedures.

The Risk Management Policy also requires that, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer
will, at least on an annual basis, provide written assurances to the Board in writing that:

« all assurances given by management in respect of the integrity of financial statements are founded on sound
systems of risk management and internal compliance and control which implements the policies adopted by
the Board; and

« the Company’s risk management and internal compliance and control system is operating efficiently and '
effectively in all material respects.

In addition, the Board of Directors holds regular meetings for the purposes of discussing and reviewing
operational developrrents,

The Company fully complied with Recommendation 7.2 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

Recommendation 7.3 - Disclose whether the Board has received assurance from the Chief Executive Officer and
the Chief Financial Officer that the declaration under Section 2954 of the Corporations Act is founded on a sound
system of risk management and internal control and is operating effectively in all material respects in reiation to
financial reporting risks

Reporting reguirement

As the Company prepares and files its financial statements under U.S. accounting practices and laws,
management is required to provide representations to the Board on & wide range of issues, including in relation to the
effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures as well as the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting. However, as the Company is incorporated in the US and is not bound by certain
financial reporting provisions under the Australian Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) no declaration is required under
Section 205A of the Corporations Act. To this end, shareholders’ attention is drawn to Item 9A. of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K and the certifications provided by the Chief Executive QOfficer and the Chief Financial Officer
at the end of the Form 10-K. As stated above, Item 9A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K discloses information
regarding the Company’s controls and procedures, including management’s evaluation of the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures and management’s evaluation of the effectiveness of our intemal contrel over
financial reporting. '

For the reasons stated above, the Company has complied with Recommendation 7.3 for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2011.
Recommendation 7 4 — Disclosure of information under Principle 7 of the ASX Governance Recommendations
Reporting requirement
Except as disclosed above, the Company believes that the aforementioned reporting meets, or exceeds, the
requirements of Recommendation 7.2 to 7.4 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.
Principle 8§ — Remunerate fairly and responsibly
Recommendation 8.1 — Establish a Remuneration Commitiee

The Company has established a Compensation Commiittee which consists of solely independent directors
{including the Chairman of the Compensation Committee). The members of the Compensation Committee are
Mr, Bosnjak (Chair), Mr, Galle and Mr, Lund. A copy of the Compensation Committee Charter is available on the
corporate governance section of the Company’s website.
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Recommendation 8 2 — Clearly distinguish the structure of non-executive directors’ remuneration from that of
executive directors and senior execufives

As noted above in the discussion regarding Recommendation 1.2, Ttem 11 of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K includes disclosure relating to the structure of non-executive director’s, executive director’s and senior
executives remuneration practices and policies, including its annual performance review process, its external
benchmarking review and its meritorious approach to employee performance.

Reporting requirement

As previously disclosed no review or other form of assessment has been undertaken in relation to the directors,

Recommendarion 8.3 — Disclosure of information under Principle 8 of the ASX Governance Recommendations

With the exception noted above, the Company complied with the Recommendation 8.1 to 8.3 during the year
ended June 30,2011,

This report is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information required by this Item 13 is incorporated by reference to the 2011 Proxy Statement under the
headings “Information on our Board of Directors and Corporate Governance” and “Certain Relationships and Related
Transacticns.”

Ttem 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this Ttem 14 is incorporated into this report by reference to the 2011 Proxy
Statement under the heading “Ratification of Appointment of the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.”

PARTIV

Item 15, Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) Documents files as part of this report:
(1} Financial Statements
The financial statements required by this Item 15 are set forth in Part IT, Item 8 of this report. .

(b) Exhibits. The following Exhibits are filed as a part of this report

Exhibit Included Incorporated by Reference Herein
No. Description of Exhibit Herewith Form Exhihit Filing Date
2.1 Amended and Restated Merger Implementation 10 2.1 Febroary 11,2010

Agreement dated as of September 1, 2009
between Unilife Medical Solutions Limited and
Unilife Corporation
22 Share Purchase Agreement among Unilife 10 2.2 Ianuary 6, 2010
Medical Sclutions Limited, Edward Paulkovits,
Jr., Keith Bocehicchio, and Daniel Adlon dated
as of October 25, 2006 and amended as of
September 26, 2007

-3l Certificate of Incorporation of Unilife 10 3.1 November 12, 2009
Corporation
32 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Unilife 8-K 3.1 Awugust 17,2010
Corporation .
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Exhibit
No,

4.1
10.1

10.2*

10.3%

104

10.5

10.6

10.7

108

109

10.10

10.11

1012

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

Description of Exhibit
Form of Common Stock Certificate

Exclusive Agreement dated as of June 30, 2008
between Unilife Medical Solutions Limited and
Sanofi Winthrop Industrie

First Amendment dated as of June 29, 2009 to
Exclusive Agreement dated as of June 30, 2008
between Unilife Medical Sclutions Limited and
Sanofi Winthrop Industrie

Industrialization Agreement dated as of June 30,
2009 between Unilife Medical Solutions Limited
and Sanofi Winthrop Industrie

Business Lease, dated as of August 17, 2003,
between Integrated BioSciences, Inc. and AMC
Delancey Heartland Partners, L.P.

Agreement dated as of September 13, 2003
between Integrated BioSciences, Inc. and B,
Braun Medical, Inc. and amendments thereto
Promissory Note, dated as of December 30,

.2005 between Integrated BioSciences, Inc. and

Commerce Bank

Promissory Note, dated as of August 25, 2006
between Integrated BioSciences, Inc. and
Commerce Bank

Employment Agreement, dated as of

October 26, 2008 between Unilife Medical
Solutions Limited and Alan Shortall
Employment Agreement, dated as of

February 15,2005 between Unilife Medical
Solutions Limited and Jeff Carter
Employment Agreement, dated as of
November 10, 2009 between Unilife Medical
Solutions, Inc. and Daniel Calvert
Employment Agreement, dated as of
November 10, 2009 between Unilife Medical
Sclutions, Inc. and Bernhard Opitz
Employment Agreement, dated as of
November 10, 2009 between Unilife Medical
Solutions, Inc. and Mark Tampietro
Employment Agreement, dated as of
November 10, 2009 between Unilife Medical
Solutions, Inc. and Stephen Allan
Employment Agreement, dated as of
November 10, 2009 between Unilife Medical
Solutions, Inc. and Eugene Shortall

Consulting Agreement, dated as of January 22,
2009 between Unilife Medical Solutions Limjted
and Joblak Pty Ltd

Deed of Mutual Release, dated January 12, 2009
between Unilife Medical Solutions Limited and
Jeff Carter
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Included Incorporated by Reference Herein
Herewith Form. Exhibit Filing Date
10 4.1 November 12,
2009
10 10.1 November 12,
2009
10 10.2 November 12,
2009
10 103 February 6, 2010
10 104 November 12,
2009
10 10.5 February 1,2010
10 10.6 November 12,
2009
10 10.7 November 12,
2009
10 10.8 November 12,
2009
10 109 November 12,
2009
10 10.10 November 12,
2009
10 10,11 November i2,
2009
10 10,12 November 12,
2009
10 10.13 November 12,
2009
10 10,14 November 12,
2009
10 10.15 November 12,
2009
10 10.16 November 12,

2009
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Table of Contents
Exhihit Included Incorporated by Reference Hepein
No. Description of Exhibit Herewith Form Exhihit Filing Date
10.17  Unilife Corporation Employee Stock Option 10 10.17 November 12,
Plan 2009
10.18  Unilife Corporation 2009 Stock Incentive Plan 10 10.18 November 12,
2009
10,19 Unilife Medical Solutions Limited Exempt 10 10.19 November 12,
Employee Share Plan 2009
1020  Agreement dated November 12, 2009 between 10 10.20 February 10,2010
Unilife Medical Solutions, Inc. and Mikron
Assembly Technology
1021  Purchase and Mutual Indemnification 107 10.21 January 6, 2010
Agreement dated November 16, 2009 between
Unilife Cross Farm LLC and Greenspring
Partners, LP
1022 Offer of assistance dated October 16, 2009 from 10 10.22 January 6, 2010
the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania to Unilife
Medical Solutions and acceptance of the offer :
: 1023  Apreement Between Unilife Cross Farm LLC 10 10.23 January 6, 2010
and L2 Architecture dated as of December 29,
j 2009, as amended
; 1024  Agreement between Unilife Cross Farm LLC 10 10.24 January 6, 2010
and HSC Builders & Construction Managers
dated as of December 14, 2009, as amended
1025 Development Agreement, dated December 14, 10 10.25 February 1, 2010
2009 between Unilife Cross Farm LLC and
Keystone Redevelopmeni Group LLC
1026  Amended and Restated Operating Agreement 10 10.26 January 6, 2010
dated December 14, 2009 of Unilife Cross Farm
LLC
10.27 Form of Share Purchase Agreement between 10 10.27 January 6, 2010
Unilife Medical Solutions Limited and each of
the US investors in the October and November
2009 ptivate placement
: 1028 Form of Subscription Agresment between 10 10.28 Tanuary 6, 2010
i Unilife Medical Solutions Limited and each of
the Australian investors in the October and
| November 2009 private placement
1: 1029 2009 Share Purchase Plan Terms and Conditions 10 10.29 January 6, 2010
T 1030  Offer Letter dated November 12, 2008 from 10 10.30 February 1, 2010
| Unilife Medical Solutions Limited to Daniel
| Calvert
1031  Offer Letter dated November 20, 2008 from the 10 10.31 February 1,2010
Coelyn Group, on behalf of Unilife Medical
i Solutions Limited to Bernhard Opitz
‘ 1032  Consulting Agreement between Unilife Medical 10 10.32 February 1,2010
| Sclutions Limited and Medical Middle East
‘ Limited
1033 Option Deed, daied Januaty 21, 2010 between 10 10.33 February 1,2010

Unilife Medical Solutions Limited and Edward
Fine
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Exhibit
No,

10.34

10.35

1036

1037

10.38

10.39

1040
1041

10.42%

1043

1044

10.45

10 46

1047

1048

10.49

Deseription of Exhibit

Deed of Settlement and Release dated

October 26, 2008 among Unilife Medical
Solutions Limited and Craig Thorley, Joseph
Kaal, Alan Shortall and Roger Williamson and
notification related thereto dated October 27,
2009

Deed of Confirmation of Intellectual Property
Rights and Confidentiality among Unilife
Medical Solutions Limited, Unitract Syringe Pty
Limited, Craig Thorley and Joseph Kaal

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under the
Unilife Corporation 2009 Stock Incentive Plan
between Unilife Corporation and Alan Shortall
Form of Unilife Corporation Nonstatutory Stock
Option Apreement between Unilife Corporation
and Alan Shortall

Membership Interest Purchase Agreement, dated
December 14, 2009 between Unilife Cross Farm
LLC and Cross Farm, LLC.

Letter Agreement dated January 29, 2010
between sanofi-aventis and Unilife Medical
Solutions.

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement Under the
Unilife Corporation 2009 Stock Incentive Plan
Form of Unilife Corporation Nonstatutory Stock
Option Notice

Letter Agreement dated February 25,2010
between sanofi-aventis and Unilife Medical
Solutions Limited

Employment Agreement, dated as of June 8,
2010 between Unilife Corperation and R
Richard Wieland

Separation Agreement and General Release,
dated as of June 28, 2010 between Unilife
Corporation and Daniel Calvert

Employment Agreement, dated as of July 6,
2010 between Unilife Corporation and J.
Christopher Naftzger

Employment Agreement, dated as of July 27,

2010 between Unilife Corporation and Dennis P.

Pyers

Non-revolving Credit Agreement dated
August 13, 2010 between Unilife Cross Farm
LLC and Univest National Bank and Trust Co.
Non-revolving Promissory Note dated

August 13, 2010 between Unilife Cross Farm
LLC and Univest National Bank and Trust Co.
Surety dated August 13, 2010 between Unilife
Corporation and Univest National Bank and
Trust Co.
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Included Incorporated by Reference Herein
Herewith Forim Exhibit Filing Date
10 10.34 February 10,2010
10 10.35 February 10, 2010
10 10.36 February 1,2010
10 10.37 February 1, 2010
10 10.38 February 1, 2010
10 10.39 February 1,2010
10-Q 10.1 March 24,2010
10-Q 102 March 24,2010
10-QQ 10.1 May 17,2010
8-K 10.1 June 14,2010
8-K 101 Tuly 2,2010
10-K 10.45 September 28,
2010
10-K 10.46 September 28,
2010
10-K 10.47 September 28,
2010
10-K 1048 September 28,
2010
10-K 10.45 September 28,

2010




1%ase 2:13-cv-05101-MMB Document 1 Filed 08/30/13 Page 127 of 141
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Exhibit Included Incorporated by Reference Herein
No. Description of Exhibit Herewith TForin Exhibit Filing Date
10.50  Security and Control Agreement Regarding 10-K 10.50 September 28,
Reserve Account dated August 13, 2010 2010

between Unilife Corporation and Univest
National Bank and Trust Co.

10.51  Loan Agreement between Metro Bank and 8-K 10.1 OQctober 26,2010
Unilife Cross Farm LLC dated as of October 20,
2010

10.52  Term Note in the principal amount of 8-K 102 Qctober 26,2010
$14,250,000 dated as of October 20, 2010

10.53  Term Note in the principal amount of 8-K 10.3  October 26,2010
$3.750,000 dated as of October 20, 2010

10.54  Guaranty and Suretyship Agreement dated 8-K 104 October 26, 2010
Octeber 20, 2010 (Unilife Corporation)

10.55 Guaranty and Suretyship Agreement dated 8-K 10.5 October 26, 2010
October 20, 2010 (Unilife Medical Solutions,
Inc.)

10.56  Form of Subscription Agreement between 8-K 10.1 December 2, 2010

Unilife Corporation and each investor in the
December 2010 Regulation S placement

1057  Form of Option Agreement between Unilife 8-K 10.2 December 2, 2010
Corporation and each investor in the December
2010 Regulation S placement

10.58  Form of Warrant issued to Keystone POS AM 10.58 December 10, 2010
Redevelopment Group, LLC and L2
Architecture on December 2, 2010

10.59  Form of Subscription Agreement (the Company 8-K 10.1 December 2, 2010
entered into separate Subscription Agreements
with the investors in substantially the same form
set forth in Exhibit 10.1) .

10,60  Form of Option Agreement (the Company 8-K 10.2 December 2, 2010
entered into separate Option Agreements with
the investors in substantially the same form set
forth in Exhibit 10.2)

10,61 2010 Unilife Share Purchase Plan Terms and 8-K 10.1 January 6,2011
Conditions ’

10,62 Separation Agreement and General Release 10-Q 10,5 PFebruary 14,2011
between Unilife Corporation and Bernhard Opitz

1063 Employment Agreement dated February 7, 2011 8-K 10.1 February 7, 2011

between Unilife Corporation and Ramin
Mojdehbakhsh, PhID,

121 Staterment regarding computation of Ratio of
Earnings to Fixed Charges

21 List of subsidiaries of Unilife Corporation

231 Consent of KPMG LLP

232 Consent of BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd

311 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a} Certification of Chief
Executive Officer

312 Rule 13a-14¢a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chief
Financial Officer

R e
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No. Description of Exhibit Heresvith Form Exhibit Tiling Date

321 Section 1350 Certification
322 Section 1350 Certification

X
X

* Confidential treatment has heen requested for certain provisions of this Bxhibit pursuant to Rule 24b-2 under the
Securities BExchange Act of 1934, as amended.
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has

duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized,

UNILIFE CORPORATION

By: /s/ Alan Shortall

Name: Alan Shortall

Title: Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange‘Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the

following persens on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name

/s/ Alan Shortall

Alan Shortall

/s{ R.Richard Wieland II

R. Richard Wieland

/s/ Dennis P, Pyers

Dennis P, Pyers

/s/ John Lund

John Lund

/s/ William Galle

William Galle

/s/ Teff Carter

Jeff Carter

/s/ Slavko James Joseph Bosnjak

Slavko James Joseph Bosnjak

/s/ Mary Katherine Wold

Mary Katherine Wold

/8/ Marc §S. Firestone

Marc S. Firestone

Title

Director and Chief Execntive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Chief Financial Officer and Executive
Vice President
(Principal Financial Officer)

Vice President, Controller and Chiaf
Accounting Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer)

Director
Director
Director

Ch airman and Director
Director

Director
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Date

September 13,
2011

September 13,
2011

September 13,
2011

September 13,
2011

Septewber 13,
2011

September 13,
2011

September 13,
2011

September 13,
2011

September 13,
2011
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Exhibit 12.1

Caleulation of Ratio of Earnings to Flxed Charges Fiscol Year Ended June 30,
(In thousands) 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Finﬂ' . S

Interest expense $ 511 § 125 $249 S 459 § 537

e of interest within rental expens

! Barnings for the years ended Jurne 30,2011, 2010, 2009, 2008 and 2007 were inadequate to cover fixed charges
and accerdingly, no ratio to fixed charges is disclosed for those periods.
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Exhibit 21
Entity Jurisdiction of Formation
sl

Unilife Medical Solutions Limited Australia
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Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors
Unilife Corporation:

We consent to the incorporation by reference on Form S-8 (Registration Statement No, 333-164964) and on
Forms 8-3 (Registration Statement Nos. 333-173195 and 333-167631) of Unilife Corporation of cur report dated
September 13, 2011, with respect to the consolidated balance sheets of Unilife Corporation and subsidiaries as of
June 30, 2011 and 2010 and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and
comprehensive loss, and cash flows for the years then ended and the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting as of June 30, 2011, which reports appear in the June 30, 2011 annual repott on Form 10-K of Unilife
Corporation.

Qur report dated September 13,2011 contains an explanatory paragraph that states that the Company has
incurred recurring losses from operations and estimates that its existing cash and cash equivalents will last only
through the third quarter of fiscal 2012, which raises substantizl doubt about its ability to continue as a going
concern. The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of
that uncertainty,

/s/ KPMG LLP

Harrisburg, Pennsylvania
September 13,2011
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Exhibit 23.2

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the registration statement on Form 5-8 (No. 333-164%64) and on
Forms S-3 (Registration Statement Nos. 333-173195 and 333-167631} of Unilife Corporation of our report dated
November 11, 2009 with respect to the statement of operations, statements of stockhelders’ equity and
comprehensive loss and statements of cash flows for the fiscal year ended June 303, 2009, which report appears in
Unilife Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

/s/ BDO Andit (WA) Pty Litd

Perth, Western Australia
September 13,2011
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Exhihit 31,1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Securities Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a) and
15d-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarhanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Alan Shortall, certify that;
1. Thave reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Unilife Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to male the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are respensible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
contrels and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f} for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

{c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
repert our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period eovered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internzl controi over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal guarter in the case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting; and :

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board
of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

fs/ Alan Shortall

Name: Alan Shortall
Title: Chief Executive Officer

Date: September 13, 2011
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Exhibit 31.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Securities Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a) and
15d-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Sectiou 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

1, R. Richard Wieland II, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Unilife Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report,

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer{ and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal contrel over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particnlarly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

(b} Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit coinmittee of the registrant’s board
of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability o recerd, process,
sumnmarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or riot material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ R.Richard Wicland TI

Name: R. Richard Wieland IT
Title: Chief Financial Officer

Date: September 13, 2011
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Exhibit 32.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 US.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Unilife Corporation (the “Company™) on Form 10-K for the year ended
June 30, 2011 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the *“Report™), I, Alan
Shortall, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.5.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knowledge:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requireinents of Section 13{a) or 15(d} of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934; and

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition
and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ Alan Shortall

Name: Alan Shortall
Title: Chief Bxecutive Officer

Date: September 13,2011
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Certification of Chief Financial Officer pnrsuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Unilife Corperation (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ended
June 30, 2011 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), I, R. Richard
Wieland II, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursnant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knowledge:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934; and

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition
and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ R.Richard Wieland IT

Name: R, Richard Wieland II
Title:  Chief Financial Officer

Date: September 13, 2011
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EXHIBIT D
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To the Unilife Board of Directors,

During my association with Unilife | have become aware of a number of actions which are guestionable
from either an ethical or regulatory perspective or both but had so far kept my silence with respect to
yourselves. However, the events of the last week are so outrageous that | cannot in good conscience
keep silent any longer. Below is a list of those violations of ethics or regulation that | believe are most
serious and also easy to substantiate. There are certainly others that | feel would come out during a
thorough investigation but that | am not close enough to feel comfortable leveling an accusation here.

The following are the issues that | am aware of:

1. Criminal conduct. On June 15, Unilife terminated the employment of Massoud Samandi.
Massoud subsequently suffered an anxiety attack and was taken to the hospital. In his absence,
several Unilife employees withessed CEO Alan Shortall directing other Unilife employees while
they broke into and burglarized Massoud’s personal vehicle, When Massoud returned that
evening he found that his personal laptop had been taken along with personal records and
evidence indicating his vehicle had been thoroughly searched. He subsequently filed a police
report. Masscud was rumored to be in possession of infermation that was incriminating to Alan
and to Ramin Mojdeh and the likely motive of the burglary was to retrieve and destroy this
evidence.

2. Inappropriate relationship with a subordinate. It is considered common knowledge among

employees that Ramin Moideh is or has been involved in an affair with Jyoti Gupta and possibly
also with Sherry Fedorke. | can attest to only circumstantial evidence of an inapprepriate
relaticnship with Gupta (coming and leaving together in his vehicle, extreme favoritism shown
to her, the way they interact in meetings, etc.}, though there are many that claim to have seen
more direct evidence. However, regardless of the actual facts of their relationship, Ramin has
created the appearance of impropriety and thereby compromised his position as a senior
executive of the company.

3. Stock fraud. InJune and July of 2011, Unilife issued press releases indicating that the company
had shipped validated, commercial Unifill product to Sanofi and to another unnamed
pharmaceutical company (BMS). However, this information was false and misleading. In fact,
the validation activities and the associated documentation required by the FDA were not
completed and signed off until late March, 2012, There is an interesting problem here, for if
Alan Shortail and Ramin Mojdeh wish to claim that the press release is truthful they must
simultaneously admit to shipping “adulterated” product contrary to FDA regulations.
Aiternately, if they wish to claim that they complied with FDA reguiations then they must admit
to providing false information to shareholders.

4. Stock fraud and/or misuse of company resources. Ramin directed purchasing to buy 1,000,000

Unifill compenents per month in spite of the fact that there was no customer demand or
manufacturing capacity to support this level of purchasing. Ris stated objective was to make
suppliers believe that Unilife was producing at these volumes an the expectation that this would
leak to the financial markets. This action resulted in a warehouse which is literally overflowing
with millions of dollars of components that are now obsolete due to product design changes. In
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spite of their obsolescence, Ramin and Jyott will not allow these components to be disposed of,
There is also approximately $ 500,000 of Unifill barrels that were received defective from the
supplier and due to Jyoti’s inaction / poor decisions cannot be returned for credit,

5. Suppression of negative information. | am.aware of at least one specific incident where Alan
Shortall directed employees to suppress information that indicated that Unifill would not be
profitable (or barely so} at the price that Sanofi was expected to be willing to pay. Unilife has
also faited to disclose or even acknowledge internally that there are serious design and

manufacturing issues with Unifill that likely preclude customer shipments in any volume and
with any reasonable gross margin.
6. Compromise of the Quality System. There are numerous violations and questionable or high risk

actions with respect to FDA regulation and product quality in general. These include:

a. Both Ramin and lyoti have directed employees to ship unreleased or defective product
to customers

b. Unitract product was provided to Jyoti for use in the RV tour this summer with the clear
instruction that each piece be marked as not fit for human use (due to issues with the
product). Jyoti failed to do this and the product was observed on the RV with only an
identification as marketing samples on the cartons.

c. Jyoti directed Quality Contro! employees to falsify documents to give the appearance
that certain test methods existed when they in fact did not.

d. Jyoti demanded to assume control for the NCR and CAPA process and ordered Quality to
stop opening new NCR's, in violation of FDA rules.

e. The design review for Unifill was conducted by Ramin and Jyoti in such a way as to not
allow those required to sign off ample time to review the information or the related
data. Based on subsequent events, it is apparent that the activities necessary for sign-
off were in fact not complete at the time the documents were signed, that a serious

~quality issue was covered up by Jyoti, and there is good reason to believe that
falsification of records occurred. In at least one case Jyoti directed her team to conduct
testing on old, defective batches with no lot traceability, in order to create data.

f. Jyotiattempted to have members of her team sort two of the PQ {validation) katches
for Unifill subsequent to the design review above. This was an attempt to hide the fact
that the needle shields on the syringes were falling off sometime after manufacture, a
fact that was known to her during design review and should have precluded sign-off,
Jyoti attempted to prevent manufacturing from following proper procedure to open an
NCR and conduct a rework to address the issue. The rework ultimately rejected five out
of six tubs of product as having at least one defect.

g. Thereorganization and reduction in force orchestrated by Ramin and Jyoti on June 14"
and 15" compromised the independence and authority of the quality system by making
it subject to lyoti and eliminating key positions such that there was no longer an
appropriate number of people or level of skill to comply with FDA requirements. Given
Jyoti's track record as noted above and general lack of understanding of the Quality
System it is absolutely ludicrous to subordinate any portion of Quality to her,
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h. While it may be only circumstantial evidence, the layoffs of June 14" interrupted a fact
finding meeting which had the potential to result in a recall of certain Unitract product,
All those manufacturing and Quality Control personnel that had been involved in
identifying and initially scoping the issue were terminated.

i. While not directly a Quality System violation, it should also be noted that all employees
that had been trained to operate the Mikron line were terminated in the fayoffs of the
14" and 15", In fact, the layoffs combined with issues with the line and the product
design render Unilife currently incapable of producing Unifill in any volume.

7. Retaliation against whistleblowers. In most of the cases noted above where employees were

directed to violate FDA regulations {or at least Unilife SOP’s}, the employees refused to comply.
Mow, while a reduction in the workforce was likely needed to align with actual production
volumes, the selection of the individuals terminated was tightly managed by Ramin and Jyoti in
order to eliminate anyone that had ever expressed any reservation (whether based on ethics or
regulation) as to their behavior or refused to comply with the orders above.

| strongly encourage the board to conduct a thorough investigation of these issues. Several key
witnesses have been terminated; however it will be necessary to interview them to verify the truth of
the above. | strongly recommend that the board conduct exit interviews with atl managers / supervisors
that have been terminated and/or have voluntarily terminated employment in the first half of this year.




